
  
 

APOPKA CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
February 21, 2018 7:00 PM 

APOPKA CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

Agendas are subject to amendment through 

5:00pm on the day prior to City Council Meetings 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
INVOCATION - Pastor James Hicks of Center of Faith Church 
PLEDGE 
 
AGENDA REVIEW 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT; STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
Public Comment Period:  
The Public Comment Period is for City-related issues that may or may not be on today’s Agenda. If you are here for a matter that 
requires a public hearing, please wait for that item to come up on the agenda. If you wish to address the Council, you must fill out an 
Intent to Speak form and provide it to the City Clerk prior to the start of the meeting. If you wish to speak during the Public Comment 
Period, please fill out a green-colored Intent-to-Speak form. If you wish to speak on a matter that requires a public hearing, please fill 
out a white-colored Intent-to-Speak form. Speaker forms may be completed up to 48 hours in advance of the Council meeting. Each 
speaker  will  have  four minutes to  give  remarks,  regardless  of  the  number  of  items  addressed.  Please refer to Resolution No. 
2016-16 for further information regarding our Public Participation Policy & Procedures for addressing the City Council. 
 
Proclamations: 

1. Future Farmers of America Proclamation presented to Apopka High, Wekiva High,  
Apopka Memorial Middle, Piedmont Lakes Middle and Wolf Lake Middle Schools. 

 
Presentations: 

1. Present Carnegie Hero Fund Commission Medal to Jason Allen Williams. 
 
CONSENT (Action Item) 

1. Authorize a donation to the Kid's House Advocacy Center. 
2. Resolution for naming signatories on a city money market account at Iberia Bank. 
3. Appoint Byron Tobias as Fifth Trustee to the General Employees’ Pension Board. 
4. Appoint Raymond Thompson as Fifth Trustee to the Firefighters' Pension Board. 
5. Appoint James Greene as Fifth Trustee to the Police Officers' Pension Board. 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION (Action Item) 

1. Ordinance No. 2600 – Second Reading - Comprehensive Plan Amendment – Large Scale – Legislative         Phil Martinez 
Project:  A. D. Raulerson, Sr. & A. D. Raulerson, Jr. and Curtis & Karen Pumphrey - Located at 251 West Lester Road 

 
2. Ordinance No. 2634 – First Reading – Change of Zoning – Quasi-Judicial Jean Sanchez 

Project:  A. D. Raulerson, Sr. & A. D. Raulerson, Jr. and Curtis & Karen Pumphrey - Located at 251 West Lester Road 

 
3. Ordinance No. 2604 – Second Reading - Comprehensive Plan Amendment – Large Scale – Legislative David Moon 

Project:  TGINF, LLC - Located at 501 Old Dixie Highway 

 
4. Ordinance No. 2628 – First Reading – Change of Zoning – Quasi-Judicial Phil Martinez 

Project:  TGINF, LLC - Located at 501 Old Dixie Highway 

 
5. Ordinance No. 2624 – First Reading - Change of Zoning – Quasi-Judicial David Moon 

Project: George Thum, Jr. & Phillip & Peggy Dionne – Located west of Jason Dwelley Parkway, south of West Kelly Park Rd. 

 
6. Ordinance No. 2633 – Second Reading – Vacate – Platted Right-of-Way (Ransom Street) – Quasi-Judicial Jean Sanchez 

Project: City of Apopka – Located north of East 6th Street, south of U.S. Highway 441; west of South Sheller Avenue   

 

1



  
 

7. Ordinance No. 2629 – First Reading - Comprehensive Plan Amendment – Small Scale – Legislative David Moon  
 Project:  VBRO Enterprises, Inc. - Located at 41 East Lester Road 
 
8. Ordinance No. 2630 – First Reading – Change of Zoning – Quasi-Judicial David Moon 

Project:  VBRO Enterprises, Inc. - Located at 41 East Lester Road 

 
9. Ordinance No. 2631 – First Reading - Comprehensive Plan Amendment – Small Scale – Legislative Phil Martinez 

Project:  Iglesia Getsemani, Inc.  - Located at 2575 West Orange Blossom Trail 

 
10. Ordinance No. 2632 – First Reading – Change of Zoning – Quasi-Judicial Phil Martinez 

Project:  Iglesia Getsemani, Inc.  - Located at 2575 West Orange Blossom Trail 

 
11. Ordinance No. 2637 – First Reading - Change of Zoning &  Bobby Howell 

PUD Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan - Quasi-Judicial  
Project: City of Apopka, James D. & Deborah M. Lyda and Citizens Bank of Florida - Located on Johns Road, west of S.R. 451 

 
CITY COUNCIL REPORTS 
 
MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

MEETINGS AND UPCOMING EVENTS 

DATE TIME EVENT 

February 26, 2018 10:00am –  Lake Apopka Natural Gas District Board Meeting: Winter Garden 

March 1, 2018 5:30pm – 9:00pm Food Truck Round Up 

March 7, 2018 1:30pm –  City Council Meeting 

March 12, 2018 6:30pm –  CONA Meeting – UCF Apopka Business Incubator 

March 13, 2018 7:00am – 7:00pm Apopka General Election  

March 13, 2018 5:30pm –  Planning Commission Meeting  

March 20, 2018 6:00pm –  Code Enforcement Hearing 

March 21, 2018 7:00pm – City Council Meeting 

March 26, 2018 10:00am –  Lake Apopka Natural Gas District Board Meeting: Winter Garden  

 
Individuals with disabilities needing assistance to participate in any of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk at least two (2) working days in 
advance of the meeting date and time at (407) 703-1704.  F.S. 286.0105 If a person decides to appeal any decision or recommendation made by 
Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he will need record of the proceedings, and that for such purposes he may need to ensure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
 
Any opening invocation that is offered before the official start of the Council meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private person, to and for the 
benefit of the Council.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the City Council or 
the city staff, and the City is not allowed by law to endorse the religious or non-religious beliefs or views of such speaker.  Persons in attendance at the 
City Council meeting are invited to stand during the opening ceremony. However, such invitation shall not be construed as a demand, order, or any other 
type of command.  No person in attendance at the meeting shall be required to participate in any opening invocation that is offered or to participate in the 
Pledge of Allegiance.  You may remain seated within the City Council Chambers or exit the City Council Chambers and return upon completion of the 
opening invocation and/or Pledge of Allegiance if you do not wish to participate in or witness the opening invocation and/or the recitation of the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
  

2



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  
 

 X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: February 21, 2018 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:        Police Department 

    SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:     Request Memo 

     OTHER:   

  
 

SUBJECT: $700 EXPENDITURE FROM LAW ENFORCEMENT TRUST FUNDS 
 

Request: AUTHORIZE A $700 DONATION FROM LAW ENFORCEMENT TRUST FUNDS 

TO KID’S HOUSE CHILDRENS ADVOCACY CENTER. 

  
SUMMARY: 

 

The Police Department requests City Council approval to expend funds from the Law Enforcement Trust 

Fund in the amount of $700 to be donated to Kid’s House of Seminole County. Kid’s House is a non-profit 

organization that collaborates with all agencies of law enforcement, the state attorney's office, medical 

personnel, child protection professionals, social workers, and licensed mental health counselors to respond 

to incidents of child abuse and neglect. The team provides assistance with cases, shares information and 

ideas, assists with prosecution and ultimately determines the best course to provide emotional and 

psychological well-being for the child and family. 

 

Law Enforcement Trust Funds may be used to support community-based programs. In accordance with 

trust fund rules, a local law enforcement agency may use a percentage of the total of shared monies received 

for the costs associated with drug abuse treatment, drug and crime prevention education, or other nonprofit 

community-based programs or activities that are formally approved by the chief law enforcement officer. 

The Apopka Police Department supports initiatives that protect and defend vulnerable youth within Central 

Florida These expenditures are supportive of and consistent with the department’s support of local 

activities. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Law Enforcement Trust Fund.    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the Finance Department to disburse $700 from the Law Enforcement Trust Fund. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director 

Commissioners     HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

3



 
 

 

 

 

 

City of Apopka 
Police Department 

112 E. 6
th

 Street Apopka, Florida 32703 

 

Memorandum 
 

 

 

Date:  February 21, 2018 

 

To:  Honorable Joseph E. Kilsheimer and Commissioners 

 

RE:  LAW ENFORCEMENT TRUST FUNDS 

 

 

 

The Apopka Police Department request City Council approval to expend funds from the Law 
Enforcement Trust Fund in the amount of $700 to be donated to Kid’s House of Seminole County.  
Kid’s House is a non-profit organization that collaborates with all agencies of law enforcement, 
State’s Attorney Office, medical personnel, child protection professionals, social workers, and 
licensed mental health counselors to respond to incidents of child abuse and neglect.  The team 
provides assistance with cases, shares information and ideas, assist with prosecution, and 
ultimately determines the best course to provide emotional and psychological well-being for the 
child and family.    
 
Law Enforcement Trust Funds may be used to support community-based programs.  In 
accordance with trust fund rules, a local law enforcement agency may use a percentage of the total 
of shared monies received for the cost associated with drug abuse treatment, drug and crime 
prevention education, or other non-profit community-based programs or activities that are formally 
approved by the chief law enforcement officer.  
 

Respectfully, 

 
Michael McKinley 

Chief of Police         

4



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: February 21, 2018 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:             Administration 

       SPECIAL REPORTS     EXHIBITS:      Corporate Authorization                                          

X   OTHER: Resolution 
  

 

SUBJECT: DESIGNATION OF MONEY MARKET SIGNATORIES VIA CORPORATE 

AUTHORIZATION RESOLUTION 

 

REQUEST: DESIGNATE BOTH MAYOR JOE KILSHEIMER AND CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

GLENN IRBY AS SIGNATORIES ON A CITY MONEY MARKET ACCOUNT AT 

IBERIA BANK, APOPKA 
  
SUMMARY:  
 

Prior to the departure of Finance Director, Pam Barclay, both she and Mayor Kilsheimer were signatories 

on a City Money Market account held by Iberia Bank, Apopka.  Because the Bank requires a minimum of 

two signatures, Pam’s designation must now be changed.      
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:   
 

Vote to accept the following Resolution naming Mayor Joe Kilsheimer and Glenn Irby as signatories on a 

City money market account at Iberia Bank, Apopka. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

5



,*
-

VMP
2016

CA-1 3/1/2016
Wolters Kluwer Financial Services

Corporation Authorization
Bankers Systems

Page 1 of 4

VMPC158 (0612)

Corporate Authorization Resolution

By:

Agents.

Name and Title or Position Facsimile SignatureSignature

Referred to in this document as "Financial Institution" Referred to in this document as "Corporation"

date

(if used)

I,
organized under the laws of

meeting of the Board of Directors of the Corporation duly and properly called and held on
( ). These resolutions appear in the minutes of this meeting and have not been rescinded or modified.

Any Agent listed below, subject to any written limitations, is authorized to exercise the powers granted as
indicated below:

, engaged in business under the trade name of
, and that the resolutions on this document are a correct copy of the resolutions adopted at a

, certify that I am Secretary (clerk) of the above named corporation
, Federal Employer I.D. Number

B.

F.

X

X

X

A. X

X

X

XC. X

XD. X

XE. X

IBERIABANK

Longwood East

502 N US Hwy 17-92

Longwood, FL 32750-0000

CITY OF APOPKA

120 E MAIN ST

APOPKA,FL 32703-5346

LINDA GOFF

FLORIDA

59-6000265 CITY OF APOPKA

02/21/2018

GLENN A IRBY, CITY

ADMINSTR

JOSEPH E KILSHEIMER,

MAYOR

6



Endorse, assign, transfer, mortgage or pledge bills receivable,
warehouse receipts, bills of lading, stocks, bonds, real estate or other
property now owned or hereafter owned or acquired by the Corporation
as security for sums borrowed, and to discount the same,
unconditionally guarantee payment of all bills received, negotiated or
discounted and to waive demand, presentment, protest, notice of protest
and notice of non-payment.

(5)

(6) Enter into a written lease for the purpose of renting, maintaining,
accessing and terminating a Safe Deposit Box in this Financial
Institution.

.

,*
-

VMP
2016

CA-1 3/1/2016
Wolters Kluwer Financial Services

Corporation Authorization
Bankers Systems

Page 2 of 4

VMPC158 (0612)

(4) Borrow money on behalf and in the name of the Corporation, sign,
execute and deliver promissory notes or other evidences of
indebtedness.

(3) Endorse checks and orders for the payment of money or otherwise
withdraw or transfer funds on deposit with this Financial Institution.

The following are the Corporation's express limitations on the powers granted under this
resolution.

(7) Other:

(1) The Financial Institution is designated as a depository for the funds of the Corporation and to provide other
financial accommodations indicated in this resolution.

(2) This resolution shall continue to have effect until express written notice of its rescission or modification has been
received and recorded by the Financial Institution. Any and all prior resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors
of the Corporation and certified to the Financial Institution as governing the operation of this corporation's
account(s), are in full force and effect, until the Financial Institution receives and acknowledges an express written
notice of its revocation, modification or replacement. Any revocation, modification or replacement of a resolution
must be accompanied by documentation, satisfactory to the Financial Institution, establishing the authority for the
changes.

(3) The signature of an Agent on this resolution is conclusive evidence of their authority to act on behalf of the
Corporation. Any Agent, so long as they act in a representative capacity as an Agent of the Corporation, is
authorized to make any and all other contracts, agreements, stipulations and orders which they may deem
advisable for the effective exercise of the powers indicated on page one, from time to time with the Financial
Institution, subject to any restrictions on this resolution or otherwise agreed to in writing.

(Attach one or more Agents to each power by placing the letter corresponding to their name in the
area before each power. Following each power indicate the number of Agent signatures required to exercise the
power.)

(1) Exercise all of the powers listed in this resolution.

Open any deposit or share account(s) in the name of the Corporation.(2)

Limitations on Powers.

Resolutions

Powers Granted.

Indicate A, B, C, 
D, E, and/or F

Description of Power Indicate number
of signatures
required

The Corporation named on this resolution resolves that,

A,B 01

7



Pennsylvania. The designation of an Agent does not create a power of attorney; therefore, Agents are not subject to
the provisions of 20 Pa.C.S.A. Section 5601 et seq. (Chapter 56; Decedents, Estates and Fiduciaries Code) unless the
agency was created by a separate power of attorney. Any provision that assigns Financial Institution rights to act on
behalf of any person or entity is not subject to the provisions of 20 Pa.C.S.A. Section 5601 et seq. (Chapter 56;
Decedents, Estates and Fiduciaries Code).

(7)

(6)

The Corporation acknowledges and agrees that the Financial Institution may rely on alternative signature and
verification codes issued to or obtained from the Agent named on this resolution. The term "alternative signature
and verification codes" includes, but is not limited to, facsimile signatures on file with the Financial Institution,
personal identification numbers (PIN), and digital signatures. If a facsimile signature specimen has been provided
on this resolution, (or that are filed separately by the Corporation with the Financial Institution from time to time)
the Financial Institution is authorized to treat the facsimile signature as the signature of the Agent(s) regardless of
by whom or by what means the facsimile signature may have been affixed so long as it resembles the facsimile
signature specimen on file. The Corporation authorizes each Agent to have custody of the Corporation's private
key used to create a digital signature and to request issuance of a certificate listing the corresponding public key.
The Financial Institution shall have no responsibility or liability for unauthorized use of alternative signature and
verification codes unless otherwise agreed in writing.

The Corporation acknowledges and agrees that the Financial Institution may furnish at its discretion automated
access devices to Agents of the Corporation to facilitate those powers authorized by this resolution or other
resolutions in effect at the time of issuance. The term "automated access device" includes, but is not limited to,
credit cards, automated teller machines (ATM), and debit cards.

(4) All transactions, if any, with respect to any deposits, withdrawals, rediscounts and borrowings by or on behalf of
the Corporation with the Financial Institution prior to the adoption of this resolution are hereby ratified, approved
and confirmed.

The Corporation agrees to the terms and conditions of any account agreement, properly opened by any Agent of
the Corporation. The Corporation authorizes the Financial Institution, at any time, to charge the Corporation for
all checks, drafts, or other orders, for the payment of money, that are drawn on the Financial Institution, so long
as they contain the required number of signatures for this purpose.

(5)

,*
-

VMP
2016

CA-1 3/1/2016
Wolters Kluwer Financial Services

Corporation Authorization
Bankers Systems

Page 3 of 4

VMPC158 (0612)

8



,*
-

VMP
2016

CA-1 3/1/2016
Wolters Kluwer Financial Services

Corporation Authorization
Bankers Systems

Page 4 of 4

VMPC158 (0612)

Certification of Authority

Effect on Previous Resolutions.

For Financial Institution Use Only

Comments:

I further certify that the Board of Directors of the Corporation has, and at the time of adoption of this resolution had,
full power and lawful authority to adopt the resolutions stated above and to confer the powers granted above to the
persons named who have full power and lawful authority to exercise the same. (Apply seal below where appropriate.)

If checked, the Corporation is a non-profit corporation.

In Witness Whereof, I have subscribed my name to this document and affixed the seal of the Corporation on

. If notThis resolution supersedes resolution dated
completed, all resolutions remain in effect.

02/22/2018 (date).

.
Acknowledged and received on

This resolution is superseded by resolution dated
by

l

l

Secretary Attest by One Other Officer

(date) (initials)

= all prior dates

X

LINDA GOFF GLENN A IRBY

JBURR

20001262009-D 

9



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: February 21, 2018 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:  Mayor Kilsheimer 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS: Board Appointment 

Form, Résumé 

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: APPOINT BYRON TOBIAS AS FIFTH TRUSTEE TO THE GENERAL 

EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES. 

 

REQUEST: APPOINT BYRON TOBIAS AS FIFTH TRUSTEE TO THE GENERAL 

EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES FOR THE TERM 

ENDING FEBRUARY 15, 2019. 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

A vacancy was created in the Fifth Trustee position with the resignation of Lynne Harold.  At the General 

Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees quarterly meeting on Thursday, February 15, 2018, 

Mayor Kilsheimer recommended the appointment of Byron Tobias as its Fifth Trustee.  The 

recommendation was seconded by Trustee Jeanne Green and approved by a unanimous vote of 4-0.  

Pursuant to Section 63-23(a) of the Apopka Code of Ordinances, “the fifth trustee shall be chosen by a 

majority of the previous four trustees…and the city council shall, as a ministerial duty, appoint such person 

to the board as its fifth trustee.”  Accordingly, Mayor Kilsheimer recommends appointment of Byron Tobias 

as fifth trustee to the General Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees for the remainder of the 

term ending February 15, 2019. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Appoint Byron Tobias as Fifth Trustee to the General Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees 

for the remainder of the term ending February 15, 2019. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

10



11



12



Page 1

Byron Tobias
Financial Advisor with over 18 years of experience | Orlando/Apopka Area | Financial Strategies |
Retirement | Insurance

Summary

As a financial advisor, I believe it's extremely important to understand what financial goals are most important

 to you first. That's why I'm so happy to work with a firm that shares this value of putting clients' needs first.

 My over 18 years of experience in areas of investments, life insurance, business ownership and banking

 support me in being uniquely equipped to help my clients plan for now, later, and beyond. 

At the age of 18, I realized the importance of planning, understanding how money works, and investing your

 money. That lesson soon grew into a passion to help and show others the importance of not only investing but

 having financial strategies in place. I focus on retirement planning, insurance planning, saving for college, and

 tax advantaged investments. My clients typically have started planning in one or more of these areas and they

 value working with a professional to help prioritize and reach their serious financial goals. 

Over the years, I've also developed relationships with various professionals that can be resources for my clients

 with their financial planning goals. Actually any way I can help my clients or point them in the right direction,

 I try. 

Outside the office, I enjoy spending time with family and friends, watching and playing sports, and reminding

 myself and others that knowledge alone is not power...it's applied knowledge that's powerful.

Experience
Financial Advisor at Edward Jones
July 2014  -  Present

Relationship Banker at JPMorgan Chase & Co.
March 2010  -  July 2014 (4 years 5 months)

As a Relationship Banker my role is to acquire new customers, expand current and new relationships, and

 retain customer relationships. Also, maintain regular contact and deepen high balance customer book

 assigned to me. All of this is done by providing consultative needs and benefits based selling and exceptional

 customer service in various areas of banking and financial planning.

Financial Consultant at Primerica
September 2005  -  February 2010 (4 years 6 months)

13



Page 2

Acquired and assisted clients in areas of life insurance, investing, and debt management. Trained team

 members to do the same.

Business Owner
July 2004  -  February 2010 (5 years 8 months)

Executive level decision making in day to day operations, business strategies, and company objectives.

 Responsibilities and initiatives included business establishment and planning, sales and order processing,

 marketing and exposure, continuous sales and profit growth, customer experience and service, and

 information privacy.

Investment Specialist
May 1999  -  June 2004 (5 years 2 months)

Executed securities trades and provided high level of customer service while proactively cross-selling needs

 based investment advice and appropriate products and services. Also responsible for asset acquisition and

 retention.

Education
Florida Agricultural and Mechanical University
Bachelor of Arts (B.A.), Business/Managerial Economics, 1995 - 1999
Florida Institute of Technology
Certified Financial Planner - Prerequisites, 2002 - 2003

14



Page 3

Byron Tobias
Financial Advisor with over 18 years of experience | Orlando/Apopka Area | Financial Strategies |
Retirement | Insurance

byron.tobias@gmail.com

Contact Byron on LinkedIn

15



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: February 21, 2018 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:  Mayor Kilsheimer 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS: None 

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: APPOINT RAYMOND THOMPSON AS FIFTH TRUSTEE TO THE 

FIREFIGHTERS’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES. 

 

REQUEST: APPOINT RAYMOND THOMPSON AS FIFTH TRUSTEE TO THE 

FIREFIGHTERS’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES FOR THE 

TWO-YEAR TERM ENDING FEBRUARY 15, 2020. 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

The Firefighters’ Retirement System Board of Trustees held its first quarterly meeting on Thursday, 

February 15, 2018, on which date the Board of Trustees recommended to retain Raymond Thompson as its 

Fifth Trustee.  The recommendation was approved by a unanimous vote of 3-0.  Pursuant to Section 63-

63(a) of the Apopka Code of Ordinances, “the fifth trustee shall be chosen by a majority of the previous 

four trustees…and the city council shall, as a ministerial duty, appoint such person to the board as its fifth 

trustee.”  Accordingly, Mayor Kilsheimer recommends appointment of Raymond Thompson as fifth trustee 

to the Firefighters’ Retirement System Board of Trustees for the two (2) year term ending February 15, 

2020. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Appoint Raymond Thompson to the Firefighters’ Retirement System Board of Trustees for the two (2) year 

term ending February 15, 2020. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

16



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: February 21, 2018 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:  Mayor Kilsheimer 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS: None 

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: APPOINT JAMES GREENE AS FIFTH TRUSTEE TO THE POLICE OFFICERS’ 

RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES. 

 

REQUEST: APPOINT JAMES GREENE AS FIFTH TRUSTEE TO THE POLICE OFFICERS’ 

RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES FOR THE TWO-YEAR TERM 

ENDING FEBRUARY 15, 2020. 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

The Police Officers’ Retirement System Board of Trustees held its first quarterly meeting on Thursday, 

February 15, 2018, on which date the Board of Trustees recommended to retain James Greene as its Fifth 

Trustee.  The recommendation was approved by a unanimous vote of 3-0.  Pursuant to Section 63-103(a) 

of the Apopka Code of Ordinances, “the fifth trustee shall be chosen by a majority of the previous four 

trustees…and the city council shall, as a ministerial duty, appoint such person to the board as its fifth 

trustee.”  Accordingly, Mayor Kilsheimer recommends appointment of James Greene as fifth trustee to the 

Police Officers’ Retirement System Board of Trustees for the two (2) year term ending February 15, 2020. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Appoint James Greene to the Police Officers’ Retirement System Board of Trustees for the two (2) year 

term ending February 15, 2020. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

17



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: February 21, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 

X OTHER: Ordinance   Vicinity Map 

    Future Land Use Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Uses Map 

    Existing Uses 

    Ordinance No. 2600 
  

SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2600 – COMPREHENSIVE PLAN - LARGE SCALE - FUTURE 
LAND USE AMENDMENT – A. D. RAULERSON SR AND A. D. RAULERSON, JR, 
CURTIS AND KAREN PUMPHREY 

    
REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2600 – COMPREHENSIVE PLAN - 

LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT- A. D. RAULERSON SR 
AND A. D. RAULERSON, JR, CURTIS AND KAREN PUMPHREY – FROM 
“COUNTY” RESIDENTIAL LOW DENSITY (0-4 DU/AC) TO “CITY” 
RESIDENTIAL LOW DENSITY LOW (0-5 DU/AC) 

  
SUMMARY:  

 
OWNERS:   A. D. Raulerson Sr. & A. D. Raulerson Jr.; and Curtis & Karen Pumphrey 
 
APPLICANT:   Apopka Development II, LLC, c/o Richard C. Wohlfarth, P.E. 
 
LOCATION: North of Lester Road and west of Rock Springs Road 
 
PARCEL ID #(S): 28-20-28-0000-00-084; 28-20-28-0000-00-040; 28-20-28-0000-00-077 

 
EXISTING USE:  Pumphrey parcel – warehousing; Raulerson Parcels: warehousing and vacant land 
 
DEVELOPMENT  
POTENTIAL: Residential development with either townhomes, 40’wide single-family lots, or a 

mixed use of both. 
 
CURRENT ZONING:  “County” A-1  
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Planned Unit Development   
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT UNDER EXISTING: 92 du\36 du 
FLUM\ZONING:  PROPOSED: 112 du per PUD Master Plan (max. 115 du per RL FLUM) 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:   N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 
 

18



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 
A.D. RAULERSON, SR & A.D. RAULERSON, JR; AND CURTIS & KAREN PUMPHREY – LARGE SCALE FLUM 
AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 

 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The applicant intends to use the subject properties for a residential community 
with single family homes on 40 foot wide lots.  While the County zoning assigned to the property is A-1 (minimum 
half acre lots), the County Future Land Use Designation assigned to its in Low Density Residential, allowing up to 
four units per acre.  A narrow strip of land within the Pumphrey parcel isolates a parcel that is not within the 
proposed project boundary.  
  
The subject properties were annexed into the City under Ordinance 2594 and 2595 on October 4, 2017.  The 
proposed Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment is being requested by the owner/applicant.  Pursuant to Florida 
law, properties ten acres or more are required to undergo review by State planning agencies. 
 
A request to assign a Future Land Use Designation of Low Density is compatible with the character of the existing 
land use to the south, and anticipated commercial development to the east  

 
In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate 
public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Land Use Report).  Based on the findings of the 
Land Use report, the proposed FLUM amendment is compatible with the surrounding and nearby land uses and the 
character of the general area. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent with 
the Residential Low Future Land Use Designation and anticipated future development of vacant properties within 
the nearby areas. 
  
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  School capacity determination must be completed with Orange County Public 
Schools prior to the adoption hearing for this Future Land Use Amendment application. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County before any public hearing 
or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on September 22, 2017. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
October 10, 2017 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 
November 1, 2017 - City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading & Transmittal 
February 21, 2018 – City Council (7:00 pm) – 2

nd
 Reading & Adoption 

DULY ADVERTISED: 
September 29, 2017 – Public Notice and Notification 
February 9, 2018 – ¼ Page w/Map Ordinance Heading Ad    
  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and 
compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and recommends transmittal of the change in Future Land 
Use from “County” Low Density Residential to Residential Low Density for the properties owned by A.D. 
Raulerson and A.D. Raulerson, Jr, Curtis and Karen Pumphrey. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its on October 10, 2017, found the proposed amendment consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding area; and recommended (5/1) transmittal 
of the Future Land Use Map designation from “County” Low Density Residential to “City” Residential Medium 
Low Density to the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on November 1

st
, 2017, accepted the first reading of Ordinance 2600 with a Future 

Land Use Designation of Residential Low Density; and authorized the transmittal to the Florida Department of 

Economic Opportunity.  

 

Recommended Motion: Adopt Ordinance 2600 
 
Note: This item is considered Legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 
made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 19



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 
A.D. RAULERSON, SR & A.D. RAULERSON, JR; AND CURTIS & KAREN PUMPHREY – LARGE SCALE FLUM 
AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 

 
LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) “County” Low Density Residential “County” R-1AA Alexandria Place Residential Subdivision 

East (County) “County” Low Density Residential “County” A-1 Vacant\single family homes 

South (County) “County” Low Medium Density Residential “County” MHP Mobile home park (RSPI MHC LLC) 

West (City) Residential Low (0-5 du\ac)and Residential 

Very Low Suburban (0-3.5 un\ac) 

R-1 (ZIP); R-1A; 

“County” A-1 

City stormwater pond; vacant land owned 

by RSPI MHC LLC 

 

II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 

The applicant intends to develop the property a single family residential subdivision with a minimum lot 

width of 40 feet, townhomes, or a combination of both.  Predominant existing land uses and assigned 

zoning in the abutting and surrounding area are residential in nature, or transitioning to residential and 

commercial.  A mobile home park is located on the south side of Lester Road, across from the subject site.  

The mobile home park owner, RSPI Mobile Home Corporation, also owns land abutting the east or near 

the west side of the subject site.  Land to the east of the subject site is anticipated to develop as 

neighborhood commercial in the near future. 

 

North: Abutting the subject property to the north is a single-family homes and horticultural nursery.  

 

West: Properties to the west of the subject site have a future land use designation of Residential Low or 

Residential Low Density. Along Lester Road to the west the area is developing or transitioning 

from agriculture or large lot single family homes, to residential subdivisions. 

 

East: To the east the property is currently vacant or developed as large lot single family homes.  

However, close to the intersection of Rock Springs Road and Lester Road, and with Neighborhood 

Commercial future land use designation assigned to properties along Rock Springs Road, land 

between the subject property and Rock Springs Road is anticipated to transition into neighborhood 

commercial or office uses in the near future.  

 

South:  A large mobile home park, Rock Springs and Palm Isle mobile home park, is located to the south 

and has a “County” Low Medium Density future land use designation and mobile home zoning. 

 

West:  Along Lester Road to the west, single family residential communities are under construction or are 

planned. Existing agriculture uses between Vick Road and Rock Springs Road along Lester Road, 

are anticipated to transition to residential single family neighborhoods in the near future. 

 

The proposed future land use designation of “City” Low Density Residential consistent with the 

surrounding future land use designations and anticipated future development in the surrounding area.  

Commercial and office development is anticipated to occur from the subject property eastward to Rock 

Springs Road.  A mobile home park occurs to the south.  The Medium Low Density Residential FLUM 

designation serves a transition between commercial and office development to the east and single family 

residential uses to the west. 
20



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 
A.D. RAULERSON, SR & A.D. RAULERSON, JR; AND CURTIS & KAREN PUMPHREY – LARGE SCALE FLUM 
AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 

 

 

Therefore, staff supports the proposed future land use designation. 
 

 Other Information:  
 
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 
 Area of Critical State Concern: No 
 DRI / FQD: No 
 
 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement 
on September 22, 2017.   
 
 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act:   The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the 
adopted Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  While located within the Wekiva River Basin 
Study Area, the subject property is not located within the Protection Area. The proposed amendment is 
consistent with the adopted mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) 
amendment has been reviewed against the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater 
resources.  The City of Apopka's adopted Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater 
run-off through the following policies: 
 

 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 
 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 
 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 
Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of 

Environmental Protection shows that there are no karst features on this property. 
 
 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The property has access to both Rock Springs Road and 
Lester Road. The site has relatively level surface grades, and has no wetlands or water features. 
 
 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: The proposed future 
land use designation for the subject site is Residential Medium Low (0 – 7.5 du/ac) and currently has a 
“County” Residential Low designation (0-4 du/ac).   An increase of density by 3.5 residential units per 
acre will yield an additional population of 215 persons based on a site of 23.2 acres. Based on the housing 
element of the City's Comprehensive Plan, this amendment will increase the City’s future population but a 
housing supply is needed to meet the growing population. 
 
CALCULATIONS: 
ADOPTED (City and County designations): 1 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 3 persons 
 
EXISTING (County designation):  4 du/ac x 23.2 ac = max. 92.8 units x 2.659 = 246 persons 
PROPOSED (City designation):   5.0 du/ac x 23.2 ac = max 115 units x 2.659 = 305 person 
Net Increase:  + 59 persons 
 
 Housing Needs: This amendment will not negatively impact the housing needs as projected in the 
Comprehensive Plan. The amendment has the potential to create additional housing to accommodate 
future population growth anticipated within the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: Per policy 4.1 of the 
Conservation Element, a habitat study is required for developments ten (10) acres or more in size.  This 
site is greater than ten acres.  A habitat study will be required at the time of a development plan 

21



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 
A.D. RAULERSON, SR & A.D. RAULERSON, JR; AND CURTIS & KAREN PUMPHREY – LARGE SCALE FLUM 
AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 

 
application. 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to 
Chapter 3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. Access to the site occurs from Lester Road 
and from Rock Springs Road.  The northern end of the West Orange multi-use trail stops near the 
intersection of Rock Springs Road and Lester Road. A city multi-use trail occurs along Lester Road from 
Rock Springs Road to Vick Road. 
 
 Potable Water, Reclaimed Water & Sanitary Sewer Analysis: The subject property is located 
within the City of Apopka service area for potable water, reclaimed water and sanitary service.    
 

 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None ;   100 GPD/Capita; 
 100 GPD / Capita 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka                  
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  300 GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  2,550  GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  100 GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  5.1 GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: 
None 

 
 Potable Water Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  City of Apopka ; 100 
GPD/Capita; 
 100 GPD/Capita 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider:  City of Apopka   
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  300 GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  2,550  GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  100 GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  5.1 GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 
amendment: None 

 
8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area: Yes           

 

 Solid Waste 
 

1. Facilities serving the site: City of Apopka  
22



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 
A.D. RAULERSON, SR & A.D. RAULERSON, JR; AND CURTIS & KAREN PUMPHREY – LARGE SCALE FLUM 
AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 

 
 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 
City of Apopka 
 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation:  1.8 lbs./person/day 
 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  4.5 lbs./day/1000 sf 
 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 
amendment: None 

 
 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 
 

Infrastructure Information 
 
 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 
 
 Permitting agency: St. John's River Water Management District 
 
 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  9.353 MGD 
 
 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33.696 MGD 
 
 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 
 
 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property:  Yes 
 

 Drainage Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site: None 
 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation:  25 year - 96 hour design storm  
 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 25 year - 96 hour design storm  
 

4. Improvement/expansion: On-site retention/detention pond  
 
 Recreation - Not applicable. 
 
This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 
 
 
  

23



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 
A.D. RAULERSON, SR & A.D. RAULERSON, JR; AND CURTIS & KAREN PUMPHREY – LARGE SCALE FLUM 
AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 

 
 

A. D. Raulerson Sr & A. D. Raulerson, Jr and Curtis & Karen Pumphrey 
Property Owners 
23.20 +/- Acres 

Proposed Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 
From: “County” Low Density Residential (0-4 du/10 ac) 

To: “City” Low Density (0-5.0 du/ac)  
Parcel ID #s: 28-20-28-0000-00-084; 28-20-28-0000-00-040; 28-20-28-0000-00-077 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 
24



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 
A.D. RAULERSON, SR & A.D. RAULERSON, JR; AND CURTIS & KAREN PUMPHREY – LARGE SCALE FLUM 
AMENDMENT 
PAGE 8 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 25



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 
A.D. RAULERSON, SR & A.D. RAULERSON, JR; AND CURTIS & KAREN PUMPHREY – LARGE SCALE FLUM 
AMENDMENT 
PAGE 9 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 

26



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 
A.D. RAULERSON, SR & A.D. RAULERSON, JR; AND CURTIS & KAREN PUMPHREY – LARGE SCALE FLUM 
AMENDMENT 
PAGE 10 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES AND EXISTING USES 
 

 

 

 

27



ORDINANCE NO. 2600 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM “COUNTY” LOW 

DENSITY RESIDENTIAL TO “CITY” LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL 

FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED WEST OF 

ROCK SPRINGS ROAD NORTH OF LESTER ROAD, COMPRISING 

23.20 ACRES, MORE OR LESS AND OWNED BY A. D. RAULERSON SR 

AND A. D. RAULERSON, JR; AND CURTIS AND KAREN PUMPHREY; 

PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, on October 2, 1991 adopted 

Ordinance No. 653 which adopted the Comprehensive Plan for the City of Apopka; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has subsequently amended the Comprehensive Plan for 

the City of Apopka, most recently through Ordinance No. 2538; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka’s Local Planning Agency and the City Council have 

conducted the prerequisite advertised public hearings, as per Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, 

relative to the transmittal and adoption of this ordinance and the requirements for amendment to 

the Comprehensive Plan.   

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows:  

 

 SECTION I: The City of Apopka hereby amends the Future Land Use Element of the 

adopted Comprehensive Plan as follows:   

 

 The Future Land Use Map is hereby amended for the property identified in Exhibit “A” 

of this Ordinance, and incorporated herein by reference.  

 

 SECTION II: This Ordinance shall become effective following adoption and upon 

issuance by the Department of Economic Opportunity or the Administration Commission, as 

may be applicable, a final order finding the amendment to be in compliance in accordance with 

Chapter 163.3184.  

 

 SECTION III: If any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 

proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force, or effect of any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance.  

 

 SECTION IV:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

 

28



ORDINANCE NO. 2600 

PAGE 2 

 

SECTION V: This Ordinance shall become effective upon issuance of a final order by the 

Florida Department of Economic Opportunity finding the plan amendment in compliance in 

accordance with s.163.3184 (2)(a), Florida Statute. 

 

 ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, this 

____ day of _____________, 2017. 

 

 

READ FIRST TIME: November 1,2017 

  

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED: 

February 21, 2018 

 

 

 

_______________________________________                                                                       

       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                            

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

_______________________________                                                                       

Cliff B. Shepard, City Attorney 

 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: September 29, 2017; February 9, 2018 

29



 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

A.D. Raulerson and A.D. Raulerson, Jr, Curtis and Karen Pumphrey 
Property Owners 
23.20 +/- Acres 

Proposed Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 
From: “County” Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ ac) 

To: “City” Low Density (0-5.0 du/ac)  

Parcel ID #s: 28-20-28-0000-00-084; 28-20-28-0000-00-040; 28-20-28-0000-00-077 

30



CITY OF APOPKA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: February 21, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

X OTHER: PUD Master Plan   Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Uses Map 

    Existing Use Map 

 

   Ordinance No. 2634 

Ord. 2634 Ex. A - San Sebastian Reserve 

                              PUD Master Plan 

Ord. 2634 Ex. B – Dev. Design Standards 

    Ex. A – Subdivision Plan 

    Ex. B – Amenities/Open Space Plan 

    Ex. C – Landscape Plan 

    Ex. D – Building Elevations 
  

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE NO. 2634 - CHANGE OF ZONING – A.D. RAULERSON, SR. 
& A.D. RAULERSON, JR; AND CURTIS & KAREN PUMPHREY 

 
REQUEST:  ORDINANCE NO. 2634 - CHANGE OF ZONING – A.D. RAULERSON, SR. 

& A.D. RAULERSON, JR; AND CURTIS & KAREN PUMPHREY, FROM 
"COUNTY" A-1 (AGRICULTURAL) TO PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT (RESIDENTIAL) AND MASTER PLAN; AND HOLD 
OVER FOR SECOND READING AND ADOPTION.   

SUMMARY: 

 
OWNERS:    A.D Raulerson, Sr. & A.D. Raulerson, Jr. and Curtis and Karen Pumphrey 
 
APPLICANT:    Apopka Development II, LLC c/o Richard C. Wohlfarth, P.E. 
 
LOCATION:  North of Lester Road and west of Rock Springs Road 
 
PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 28-20-28-0000-00-084; 28-20-28-0000-00-040; 28-20-28-0000-00-077 
 
EXISTING USE: Pumphrey parcel – warehousing; Raulerson Parcels: warehousing and 

vacant land 
 
FLUM DESIGNATION:  Residential Low Density (0 -5 du\ac) 
 
CURRENT ZONING: PUD (Planned Unit Development), Mixed-EC (Mixed Employment 

Center), and I-1 (Restricted Industrial)   
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT: 112 single family homes with minimum lot widths of 40 feet 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: “City” PUD (Planned Unit Development) 
 
TRACT SIZE:    23.14 +/- acres 
 

FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 

 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 31



CITY COUNCIL –FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

RAULERSON PUMPHREY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 
 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: Presently, the subject property has not yet been assigned a “City” zoning 
category.  The applicant is requesting the City assign a zoning classification of PUD (Planned Unit Development) 
to the property to accommodate lot widths smaller than the minimum required width of 70 feet through an 
alternative plan. 
 
The subject properties were annexed into the City of Apopka on October 4, 2017, through the adoption of 
Ordinance No. 2595. 
 
The intent of the PUD zoning ordinance is to accommodate lots that are smaller in width than the regularly 
required residential zoning districts. The narrowest lot width allowed in other City zoning districts is 70 feet in 
the R-2 and R-3 zoning districts. 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The proposed development, San Sebastian Reserve, is a private and gated 
subdivision of 112 detached, single family homes. The site comprises of 23.2 acres, of which, 4.43 acres will be 
dedicated for recreation space. Residential lots have a minimum lot width of 40 feet and a minimum lot size of 
4,400 square feet.  Additional information, including the conceptual subdivision layout is displayed in the 
attached conceptual master plan.  
 
A request to assign a change of zoning to PUD is compatible to the adjacent zoning classifications and with the 
general character of abutting properties and the surrounding area. East of the subject properties is an arterial 
road, Rock Springs Road, as well as commercially zoned properties. A mobile home park (Rock Springs Mobile 
Home Park) and a townhome community (Wekiva Park Townhomes) are located to the south of the subject 
properties. A single family subdivision, with 40 feet lot widths will act as a transitional use between the larger 
lot community to the north (Alexandria Place) and the other previously mentioned surrounding uses.  
 
The change of zoning request is being processed in conjunction with a future land use amendment from “County” 
Rural to “City” Commercial. On February 21, 2018, the City Council will vote on Ordinance 2600, which 
proposes to change the future land use of the subject properties from “County” Residential Low Density to 
“City” Residential Medium Low.  
 
DEVIATIONS:  The applicant is requesting two deviations to the City's development standards.  For a PUD 
master plan, a deviation from the City's Land Development Code does not represent a variance but a 
development standard or zoning condition unique to and approved as part of the PUD zoning.   
 

1. Typical lot width standard.  The applicant is requesting a deviation from Land Development Code 
Section 2.02.18(D)(11) requiring the minimum single family lot size within a PUD to be a minimum of 
70 feet in width unless City Council finds that a proposed alternative development is adequate to protect 
public health, safety and welfare based on substantial evidence.  The plan shows a minimum40-foot 
wide single family lot with lot size minimum of 4,400 square feet. 

 
2. Number of canopy trees required per single family lot.  Due to size of each lot and size of canopy trees 

at its maturity, the applicant is also requesting a deviation from Section 3.6 of the Development Design 
Guidelines that requires a minimum of three trees on each lot.  The plan shows two trees on each lot 
with varying types including oak, red maple and crepe myrtle.  In lieu of  

 
3. Garage standard/architectural design.  The second deviation is Section 3.2.1 of the Development Design 

Guidelines that require front-entry garages to be setback a minimum of 30 feet from the property line.  
Two models of the four typical lot detail on the plans show that one lot layout is 25 feet from the property 
line and another shows 28 feet from the property line.  The applicant asserts that the variation garage 
setbacks provides a visual break along the streetscape. 
 

 

 

 
32



CITY COUNCIL –FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

RAULERSON PUMPHREY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 
 
Justification for Deviation.  The following justifications are provided for the three deviations that are proposed: 
 

1. Lot Width and Size. The Master Plan provides an enhanced recreation/amenities package.  The amenities 
include a cabana, gazebo, swimming pool, playground, dog park and mail kiosk.  In addition, landscape 
buffers are provided adjacent to the Alexandria Place residential community.  Such buffer is not required 
next to abutting single family residential development if a minimum 70-foot wide lot were provided. 

 
2.   Lot Tree Planting Requirement.  With a minimum lot size of 4,400 square feet and a minimum lot width 

of 40 feet, insufficient lot area occurs with the lot to plant the required three canopy trees.  As alternative, 
one canopy and one understory tree, or only two canopy trees (depending on the lot) will be planted, and 
the other required tree will be planted within the landscape buffers, park areas, or other open space within 
the project site.  Additional trees beyond the requirements of the buffer areas are provided, particularly 
on the northern perimeter of the site to account for the number of trees required for each lot. The plan 
also shows additional on-street parking throughout the community to off-set the reduced garage setback 
for those lots with 25' and 28' setbacks 

 
3.   Due to the shape of the overall site as well as the provision of buffers adjacent to existing residential 

community, compliance with a minimum open space area of 30%, the provision of over-flow parking 
areas, and more so because of a confined typical lot depth of 110 feet, the Master Plan offers a 25 foot 
long driveway instead of the required 30-foot long driveway.  Also, typical lot depth at 110 feet combined 
with the ground floor area of some of the proposed house plans restricts available pace within a 4,400 
square foot lot to accommodate a 30-foot long driveway.  Further, the San Sebastian residential 
community is planned as a gate, private community. 

 
PUD DEVEOPMENT AND ZONING CONDITIONS:  That the zoning classification of the following 

described property be designated as Planned Unit Development (PUD), as defined in the Apopka Land 

Development Code, and with the following Master Plan provisions subject to the following zoning provisions: 

 

The recommendations are that the zoning classification of the aforementioned properties be designated as 

Planned Unit Development (PUD), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and with the following 

Master Plan provisions are subject to the following provisions: 

 

A. The uses permitted within the PUD district shall be:  single family homes and associated accessory uses or 

structures consistent with land use and development standards established for the R- 1 zoning category 

except where otherwise addressed in this ordinance. 

 

B.   If a Final Development Plan associated with the PUD district has not been approved by the City within three 

years after approval of these Master Plan provisions, the approval of the Master Site Plan\PDP provisions 

will expire.   At such time, the City Council may: 

 

1. Permit a single six-month extension for submittal of the required Final Development Plan; 

2. Allow the PUD zoning designation to remain on the property pending resubmittal of new Master Site 

Plan provisions and any conditions of approval; or 

3. Rezone the property to a more appropriate zoning classification. 

 

C. The following PUD development standards shall apply to the development of the subject property: 
 

1. Exhibit “F” describes the development standards applicable to this PUD/PDP Master Site Plan. 
2. Unless otherwise addressed within the PUD development standards, the R-1 zoning standards will apply 

to the subject property. 

  

33



CITY COUNCIL –FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

RAULERSON PUMPHREY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 
 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent 
with the proposed Residential Medium Low (0-7.5 du/ac) Future Land Use designation and the proposed 
Planned Unit Development Zoning classification. Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the 
Future Land Use policies.  
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  A capacity enhancement agreement with Orange County Public Schools 
(OCPS) or a letter exempting the project from school capacity enhancement is required prior to submittal of a 
final development plan.  An application for School Capacity Determination and a mitigation agreement has been 
submitted to OCPS by the application.  A final development plan will not be approved by the City until such 
time the School Board approves a school capacity mitigation agreement. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 

public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on January 12, 2018.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
Planning Commission, February 13, 2018 (5:30 pm) 
City Council, February 21, 2018 (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 
City Council, March 7, 2018 (1:30 pm) - 2nd Reading 
 
DULY ADVERTISED:  
January 26, 2018 - Public Notice (Letters, Apopka Chief, Site Posting)  
February 23, 2018 - Public Notice (Apopka Chief)  
 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending approval of the proposed 
Change of Zoning from “County” A-1 to “City” PUD for the property owned by A.D Raulerson, Sr. & A.D. 
Raulerson, Jr. and Curtis and Karen Pumphrey, and located north of Lester Road and west of Rock Springs 
Road.  
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on February 13, 2018, found the proposed amendment consistent 
with the Comprehensive Plan, the Land Development Code, and compatible with the character of the 
surrounding areas; and recommended approval (5-1) of the proposed Change of Zoning from “County” A-
1 to “City” PUD/(Residential) zoning and Master Plan for the property owned by A.D Raulerson, Sr. & 
A.D. Raulerson, Jr. and Curtis and Karen Pumphrey, subject to the PUD Development and Zoning 
Conditions provided in the staff report, and subject to the City Council’s approval of the associated large 
scale future land use amendment. 
 
Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2634 and Hold Over for Second Reading and Adoption on 
March 7, 2018; and approve the PUD Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan; and Hold Over  
 
Note: This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 

  

34



CITY COUNCIL –FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

RAULERSON PUMPHREY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 
 

ZONING REPORT 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) “County” Low Density Residential “County” R-1AA Alexandria Place Residential Subdivision 

East (County) “County” Low Density Residential “County” A-1 Vacant\single family homes 

South (County) “County” Low Medium Density Residential “County” MHP Mobile home park (RSPI MHC LLC) 

West (City) Residential Low (0-5 du\ac)and Residential Very 

Low Suburban (0-3.5 un\ac) 

R-1 (ZIP); R-1A; 

“County” A-1 

City stormwater pond; vacant land owned 

by RSPI MHC LLC 

 
LAND USE & TRAFFIC  
COMPATIBILITY: The concept plan proposes accesses on Rock Springs Road and West 

Lester Road. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  
COMPLIANCE:  The proposed PUD zoning is consistent with the proposed Future Land 

Use designation, “Residential Medium Low” (0-7.5 du/ac) and with the 
character of the surrounding area and future proposed development. 
Development Plans shall not exceed the density allowed in the adopted 
Future Land Use designation.   

          
SITE ARCHITECTURAL 
DESIGN REQUIREMENTS  
AND MAINTENANCE:    

1. Architectural design shall meet the intent of City of Apopka Land 
Development Code and Development Design Guidelines. 

 
2. A twenty (20) foot buffer tract for perimeter wall and landscaping 

will be provided along the Lester Road frontage. This tract shall be 
dedicated to and maintained by the Homeowners' Association 
(HOA). The design of these buffer tracts shall generally follow the 
landscape design appearing on sheets L1.0 of the Master 
Plan/Preliminary Development Plan. A six (6’) foot high wall is 
provided in these tracts to provide buffering from the adjacent 
roadways. 

 
3. A ten (10) foot wide buffer tract for perimeter fence and landscaping 

will be provided on the eastern and western property line. These 
tracts shall be dedicated to and maintained by the HOA. The design 
of this buffer shall generally follow the landscape design appearing 
on sheets L 1.0 to L1.1 of the Master Plan/Preliminary Development 
Plan. A six (6’) foot high vinyl fence is provided in these tracts to 
buffer the adjacent agriculture-zoned properties. 

 
4. Garage must be flushed with front wall of the single family structure.  

Setback to wall shall be a minimum of 25’ from front property line. 
 
5. Country European, or Craftsman architectural styles or themes shall 

be applied to houses, community buildings, and mail kiosk. 
Architectural Style elements shall be applied to front façade only. 
See sheet “B-1.0” for conceptual front elevations. Modification or 
replacement of the exterior elevations on Sheet “B-1.0” shall be 
approved by the Community Development Director if such changes 35



CITY COUNCIL –FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

RAULERSON PUMPHREY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

represent equivalent architectural value.  Substantial deviations from 
architectural rendering shall be approved by City Council. 

 
6. Front facade materials such as cultured stone veneer, stucco, & fiber 

cement siding shall be utilized to be consistent with the applicable 
Architectural Style. 

 
7. 30-year asphalt shingle shall be installed on all roofs. 3-tab shingles 

are prohibited. Single shingle color shall be used for uniformity 
throughout the community. 

 
8. Aluminum fascia and soffit shall be standard for all houses. Single 

Fascia and soffit color shall be used for uniformity throughout the 
community. 

 
9. Window Banding/trim and front door shall be painted an accent 

color. 
 
10. Pavers shall be installed at front yard driveways, lead walks, porches, 

and porticoes. 
 
11. Model plan type shall not be constructed adjacent to the same model 

plan type without a different elevation style type. 
 
12. Specific elevation style types of homes shall have similar wall 

finishes, window grid patterns, window banding & trim, roof lines 
and slopes, etc. Applied to each lot width model plan type front 
elevations. 

 
13. Identical exterior paint schemes shall not be applied on adjacent lots. 
 
14. Modification or replacement of the exterior elevation on approved 

Final Development Plans shall be approved by the Community 
Development Director if such changes represent equivalent 
architectural value. Substantial deviations from architectural 
rendering shall be approved by City Council. 

 
15. Fencing is prohibited in front yards. 
 
16. Fencing at rear yards of 40’ wide or garage front loaded lots shall be 

tan vinyl opaque style fencing.  No fence shall exceed the height of 
an abutting common area wall.  Rear yard fences shall not project 
more than 5’ beyond rear side wall building corner. 

 
17. Swimming pools shall be allowed on single-family detached with 

rear yards of 20’ or greater. 
 
18. Swimming pools must be in-ground type. Above-ground pools are 

prohibited. 
 
19. Swimming pools and decks are prohibited from projecting beyond 

the side wall facade. 
 
20. Screen enclosures over swimming pools and their respective deck 

area shall be single story with dome or angled roofs. Enclosure 
structural members shall be bronze. Screening shall be dark mesh. 36



CITY COUNCIL –FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

RAULERSON PUMPHREY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 
 

Solid opaque or clear panels on the walls or roofs are prohibited. 
 
21. Screen enclosures with metal, vinyl, or screen mesh roofs over non-

swimming pool decks are prohibited. 
 
22. Screen enclosure shall maintain the same side yards as the main 

dwelling structure. 
 
23. Trash recycle bin pads (minimum 6’x4’) shall be provided within the 

rear yard or trash recycle bins to be left in the garage. 
 
24. Elevations for mail kiosk shall be compatible with the architectural 

elevation styles of the homes within the community.  
 

a. Modification to the approved mail kiosk elevation shall be 
approved by the Community Development Director if such 
changes represent equivalent architectural value.  Substantial 
deviations from architectural rendering shall be approved by City 
Council. 

 
25. Outdoor storage areas (boats, trailers, recreational vehicles, etc.) are 

not provided within the development and will be prohibited through 
the HOA documents. 

 
26. Landscaping requirements for existing platted lots of record and 

structures may be approved in a lesser amount than required after 
review by the development review committee. 

 
27. The HOA will maintain all lots, common areas, roadway tracts, 

fences\walls, and landscaping within all lots. 
 
28. The HOA shall be responsible for maintenance of streets, on-street 

parallel parking spaces, and street lighting and stormwater collection 
systems within the private rights-of-way within the San Sabastian 
Subdivision. 

 
ALLOWABLE USES:  As described in the PUD Recommendations herein provided above. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

37



CITY COUNCIL –FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

RAULERSON PUMPHREY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 
 

A.D. Raulerson Sr & A.D. Raulerson, Jr; and 
Curtis & Karen Pumphrey 

Property Owners 
23.14 +/- Acres 

Proposed Rezoning: 
 From: “County” A-1  

To: “City” PUD 

Parcel ID #s: 28-20-28-0000-00-084; 28-20-28-0000-00-040;  
28-20-28-0000-00-077 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

  38



CITY COUNCIL –FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

RAULERSON PUMPHREY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 
 

 

 
ADJACENT ZONING MAP 

 

  
 

 

 

 
39



CITY COUNCIL –FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

RAULERSON PUMPHREY – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 10 
 

ADJACENT USES MAP 
 

  
 

40



ORDINANCE NO. 2634 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM “CITY” A-1 (ZIP) TO PUD (PLANNED UNIT 

DEVELOPMENT) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY 

LOCATED WEST OF NORTH ROCK SPRINGS ROAD AND NORTH OF 

EAST LESTER ROAD, COMPRISING 23.41 ACRES MORE OR LESS, 

AND OWNED BY ADELBERT RAULERSON, SR & AD RAULERSON, JR. 

AND CURTIS & KAREN PUMPHREY; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS 

TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest 

of the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the 

City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as 

identified in Section I of this ordinance; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the proposed Planned Unit Development (PUD/Residential) zoning has been 

found to be consistent with the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land 

Development Code. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows: 

 

 Section I. That the zoning classification of the following described property be designated 

as Planned Unit Development (PUD), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and with 

the following Master Plan provisions subject to the following zoning provisions: 

 

A. The uses permitted within the PUD district shall be:  single family homes and 

associated accessory uses or structures consistent with land use and development 

standards in the Master Plan. 

 

B. Development of the property shall occur consistent with the Master Site Plan set forth 

in Exhibit “A”.  Development standards applicable to the San Sebastian are set forth 

within Exhibit “B”.  Where any development standard conflicts between the San 

Sebastian Master Site Plan and the Land Development Code, the Master Site Plan shall 

preside.  Any proposed revision to the Master Site Plan shall be evaluated and processed 

pursuant to Section 2.02.18.N. (Master plan revision), LDC. 
 

C.   If a Final Development Plan associated with the PUD district has not been approved by 

the City within three years after approval of these Master Plan provisions, the approval 

of the Master Site Plan\PDP provisions will expire.   At such time, the City Council 

may: 

 

1. Permit a single six-month extension for submittal of the required Final 

Development Plan; 

41



ORDINANCE NO. 2634 

PAGE 2 

 

 

2. Allow the PUD zoning designation to remain on the property pending resubmittal 

of new Master Site Plan provisions and any conditions of approval; or 

 

3. Rezone the property to a more appropriate zoning classification. 

 

 Section II.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being 

situated in the City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby Planned Unit Development (PUD), as defined in 

the Apopka Land Development Code. 

 

 Legal Description: 

 

COMM AT SE COR OF SEC, TH RUN S87-59-49W 600 FT TO POB; TH CONT 

S87-59-49W 630.44 FT, TH N01-41-41W 601.62 FT TO SOUTH LINE OF WELL 

LOT, TH N87-59-49E 38.5 FT TO SE COR OF WELL LOT, TH N01-41-41W 

148.40 FT, TH N87-59-45E 593.99 FT, TH S01-45-16E 750 FT TO POB (LESS S 

30 FT FOR RD R/W) IN SEC 28-20-28 

Parcel I.D.:  28-20-28-0000-00-040 

Contains:  10.30 +/- Acres 

 

AND 

 

Legal Description: 

 

COMM AT SE COR OF SEC, TH RUN N01-45-16W 750 FT, TH S87-59-45W 

50 FT TO POB; TH CONT S87-59-45WW 1143.99 FT TO EAST LINE OF WELL 

LOT, TH N02-00-11W 59.60 FT, TH S87-59-49W 173.12 FT, TH N01-49-26WW 

519.15 FT TO NORTH LINE OF S 1/2 OF SE 1/4, TH N88-02-24E 714.27 FT TO 

NE COR OF W 1/2 OF SE 1/4 OF SE 1/4, TH S01-49-16E 524 FT, TH N88-02-

24E 603.10 FT TO EAST R/W LINE, TH S01-45-16E 54.04 FT TO POB (LESS 

THAT PART PREVIOUSLY SOLD PER DB 829/86) IN SEC 28-20-28 

Parcel I.D.:  28-20-28-0000-00-077 

Contains:  9.99 +/- Acres 

 

AND 

 

Legal Description: 

 

BEG SE CORNER OF E1/2 OF SW1/4 OF SE1/4, RUN S87-59-49W 15 FT, TH 

N01-46-12W 586.62 FT, TH S87-59-49W 98.51 FT M/L, TH N01-46-12W 238 

FT, TH N87-59-49E 35.35 FT, TH N01-49-26W 159.83 FT, TH N88-03-21W 

595.03 FT M/L TO WEST LINE OF THE EAST 1/2 OF THE SW 1/4 OF THE SE 

1/4, TH N01-46-37W 345 FT M/L TO NORTH LINE OF E 1/2 OF OF SW 1/4 OF 

SE 1/4, TH E 609.75 FT M/L TO NW COR OF LANDS DESC IN 2748/1802, TH 

S01-49-26E 519.81 FT TO NORTH LINE OF WELL LOT DESC IN 3141/1427, 

TH S87-59-49W 34.88 FT TO NW COR OF WELL LOT, TH S01-46-12E 208 FT 

TO SW COR OF WELL LOT, TH N87-59-49E 98.51 FT M/L TO EAST LINE 

42



ORDINANCE NO. 2634 

PAGE 3 

 

OF THE E 1/2 OF THE SW 1/4 OF THE SE 1/4, TH S01-46-12E 601.62 FT TO 

POB (LESS S 30 FT FOR RD) OF SEC 28-20-28 SEE 3513/96 

Parcel I.D.:  28-20-28-0000-00-084 

Contains:  5.10 +/- Acres 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

43



ORDINANCE NO. 2634 

PAGE 4 

 

 

 Section III.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of 

the City of Apopka, Florida. 

 

 Section IV.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is 

hereby authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, to include said designation.  The Community Development Director shall not accept an 

application for a development plan until such time the property owner addresses school capacity 

enhancement review with Orange County Public Schools. 

 

 Section V. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves 

to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, 

force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

 Section VI.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed.   

 

 Section VII.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption of Ordinance No. 2619. 

 
 
 

           Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: February 9 and  
 

READ FIRST TIME:  February 21, 2018 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
March 7, 2018 

 
 
 
 

 

44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



A. Design Standards 

1. Lot Criteria 

2. Daf 

B. Architectural, Buildings, and Accessory Structures 

1. Architectural design shall meet the intent of City of Apopka Development Design 

Guidelines. 

2. All lots shall have detached single family homes. 

3. All lots shall have attached 2 car garages. 

4. Face of wall containing a front entry garage shall not extend past the front 

building wall. Setback to wall shall be 25’ minimum from front property line. 

5. Bedrooms per individual home must be between two to five. 

6. AC condenser units, utility storage& similar equipment shall be placed in the rear 

yard area. Units & similar equipment shall not be placed inside the side yard 

building setback. Units shall be screened from side streets with landscaping or 

opaque fencing. 

7. Trash recycle bin pads (minimum 6’x4’) shall be provided within the rear yard or 

trash recycle bins to be left in the garage. 

8. Storage sheds or similar storage facilities be allowed subject to the approval of the 

HOA and the City of Apopka. 

9. Swimming pools shall be allowed on Single-Family Detached with rear yards of 

20’ or greater. 

i. Swimming Pools must be in-ground type. Above Ground Pools are 

prohibited. 

ii. Swimming pools and decks are prohibited from projecting beyond the side 

wall facade. 

10. Screen enclosures over swimming pools and their respective deck area with non-

metal or non-vinyl roofs shall be allowed. 

i. Screen enclosures over swimming pools and their respective deck area 

shall be single story with dome or angled roofs. Enclosure structural 

members shall be bronze. Screening shall be dark mesh. Solid opaque or 

clear panels on the walls or roofs are prohibited. 

ii. Screen enclosures with metal, vinyl, or screen mesh roofs over non-

swimming pool decks are prohibited. 

73



iii. Screen enclosure shall maintain the same side yards as the main dwelling 

structure. 

11. Mail delivery for all lots shall occur at mail kiosk with cluster mailbox units. Mail 

kiosk shall provide covered roof area for protection from inclement weather. See 

plans for street elevation. 

12. Architectural Design Standards: 

i. Country European, or Craftsman architectural styles or themes shall be 

applied to houses, community buildings, and mail kiosk. Architectural 

Style elements shall be applied to front façade only. See sheet “B-1.0” for 

conceptual front elevations. Modification or replacement of the exterior 

elevations on Sheet “B-1.0” can be approved by the Community 

Development Director if such changes represent equivalent architectural 

value. Substantial deviations from architectural rendering must be 

approved by City Council. 

ii. Front facade materials such as cultured stone veneer, stucco, & fiber 

cement siding shall be utilized to be consistent with the applicable 

Architectural Style. 

iii. 30-year asphalt shingle shall be installed on all roofs. 3-tab shingles are 

prohibited. Single shingle color shall be used for uniformity throughout 

the community. 

iv. Aluminum fascia and soffit shall be standard for all houses. Single Fascia 

and soffit color shall be used for uniformity throughout the community. 

v. Window Banding/trim and front door shall be painted an accent color. 

vi. Pavers shall be installed at front yard driveways, lead walks, porches, and 

porticos. 

13.  Front Building Entrance Elevation Design Standards: 

i. Each home shall have a front porch or portico. 

ii. Model plan type shall not be constructed adjacent to the same model plan 

type without a different elevation style type. 

iii. Specific elevation style types shall have similar wall finishes, window grid 

patterns, window banding & trim, roof lines and slopes, etc. Applied to 

each lot width model plan type front elevations. 

iv. Identical exterior paint schemes shall not be applied on adjacent lots. 

v. Modification or replacement of the exterior elevation on Sheet “B-1.0” 

can be approved by the Community Development Director if such changes 

74



represent equivalent architectural value. Substantial deviations from 

architectural rendering must be approved by City Council. 

14. Mail Kiosk Elevation Design Standards: 

i. Elevation shall be compatible with the architectural elevation styles of the 

homes & mail kiosk within the community. See Sheet “C 5.0”. 

ii. Modification or replacement of the exterior elevation on Sheet “C5.0” can 

be approved by the Community Development Director if such changes 

represent equivalent architectural value. Substantial deviations from 

architectural rendering must be approved by City Council. 

15. Community Building Elevation Design Standards: 

i. Elevation shall be compatible with the architectural elevation styles of the 

homes & mail kiosk within the community. See Sheet “C5.0”. 

ii. Modification or replacement of the exterior elevation on Sheet “A-3” can 

be approved by the Community Development Director if such changes 

represent equivalent architectural value. Substantial deviations from 

architectural rendering must be approved by City Council. 

16. Fencing Standards: 

i. Community Perimeter Fencing not included. See applicable Landscape 

Plan Sheet L1.0-L1.1. 

ii. See sheet “C 5.0” for conceptual fencing plans. 

iii. Fencing is prohibited in front yards. 

iv. Fencing at rear yards of 40’ wide or garage front loaded lots shall be tan 

vinyl opaque style fencing. See sheet “C5.0” for illustration. 

v. Maximum height is 6’-0” above final grade. No fence shall exceed the 

height of an abutting common area wall. 

vi. Rear yard fences shall not project more than 5’ beyond rear side wall 

building corner. 

C. Utilities and Infrastructure 

1. Water service shall be provided by the City of Apopka. The water system shall be 

designed to city standards. 

2. Reclaim water service shall be provided by the City of Apopka. The reclaim water 

system shall be designed to city standards. 

75



3. Storm water management system shall be designed to comply with the 

requirements of the City of Apopka and St. Johns River Water Management 

District for projects without a positive outfall. 

4. A final drainage report and soils report will be submitted with final development 

plans 

5. Sanitary service shall be provided by the City of Apopka. The sanitary system 

shall be designed to city standards. 

6. Utility easements shall be dedicated to the City of Apopka. 

7. Drainage easements to be dedicated to the home owners association unless 

otherwise accepted by the City of Apopka. 

8. All storm water and utility pipes may be moved to save existing trees in the right-

of-way. Any change in the location of these pipes will be shown on the final 

engineering plans. 

9. On-site streets are to be constructed per City of Apopka standards. 

10. A signage plan will be provided with the final development plan submittal. 

11. Stabilized access roadways and fire hydrants must be in place before building 

construction may begin. 

12. Solid waste collection and public safety (police and fire) provided by the City of 

Apopka. 

13. The internal street right-of-way is to be Private. 

14. Four (4) and five (5) foot wide sidewalks to be constructed adjacent to internal 

roads throughout the entire project in compliance with the City of Apopka Land 

Development Code. Sidewalk alignment may be adjusted at final development 

plan to preserve existing trees. 

15. A five-foot wide sidewalk shall be constructed within the Easement along 

Entrance Pond. 

16. Lot parking shall be provided at a rate of 4 parking spaces per dwelling unit. 

Provided parking shall at a minimum contain 2 parking spaces within the 

driveway and 2 parking spaces within an enclosed garage. 

17. The development shall provide a minimum of 50 on-street parking spaces. 

18. Garages shall be accessed from the adjacent private right-of-way at the front of 

the lot. 

19. Power service within the development shall be underground. No overhead service 

will be allowed. 

76



20. Vehicular, Pedestrian and Accent lighting shall substantially conform the Section 

3.10 – Lighting of the City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines. 

D. Recreation and Open Space 

1. Required project open space shall be a minimum of 30% of the developed site 

area in accordance with City of Apopka Small Lot Overlay Zoning District 

Section 3.04.00(4)(A) and LDC Section 2.02.18(D)(19). 

2. Required project recreation shall be provided at a rate of 3.6 acres per 1,000 

population with 2.6 population per dwelling unit. ([113x2.6]/1000)x3.6=1.05 

acres. 

3. Recreation Tract “PR-1” shall be an approximate .52-acre Pool/Cabana. A 

specific park site plan and amenities/equipment shall be provided with the Final 

Development Plan. Pool Cabana area amenities shall include a single-story 

Cabana Bath, Swimming Pool and Deck, and Mail Kiosk at a minimum. The 

Cabana Bath and covered patio shall be minimum of 500 SF containing restroom 

facilities for the building and pool, covered unscreened lanai area. 

4. Recreation Tract “PR-2” shall be an approximate 0.20-acre Dog Park and shall be 

completed concurrent with Phase 1 of the development. A specific park site plan 

and amenities/equipment shall be provided with the Final Development Plan. Dog 

park area shall be enclosed and amenities shall include at a minimum one (1) Dog 

Waste Bag & Disposal Station 

5. Fence on the dog park perimeter will not exceed 4-feet in height.  Material may 

by wrought iron, vinyl or black vinyl-coated chain linked fences. 

6. Recreation Tracts 3-6 will incorporate pedestrian circulation, benches, and open 

play areas. Specific park site plans and amenities/equipment shall be provided 

with the Final Development Plan. 

E. Buffers and Landscaping 

1. A twenty (20) foot buffer tract for perimeter wall and landscaping will be 

provided along the Lester Road frontage. This tract shall be dedicated to and 

maintained by the HOA. The design of these buffer tracts shall generally follow 

the landscape design appearing on sheets L 1.0 of the Master Plan/Preliminary 

Development Plan. A six (6’) foot high wall is provided in these tracts to provide 

buffering from the adjacent roadways. 

2. A ten (10) foot wide buffer tract for perimeter fence and landscaping will be 

provided on the eastern and western property line. These tracts shall be dedicated 

to and maintained by the HOA. The design of this buffer shall generally follow 

the landscape design appearing on sheets L 1.0 to L1.1 of the Master 

Plan/Preliminary Development Plan. A six (6’) foot high vinyl fence is provided 

in these tracts to buffer the adjacent agriculture-zoned properties. 

77



3. Entrance feature and community sign will be provided with final development 

plans. 

4. Final landscape plans for the buffer areas along Lester Road will be provided with 

the final development plans. 

5. Tree Planting Conditions. Minimum of two new trees shall be planted per 40’ 

wide residential lot. The new trees shall be a minimum of 2.0 inches DBH at the 

time of planting and shall count toward the overall number of required tree 

replacement inches, if any. 

6. Tree Protection Plan - The Final Development Plan shall include tree protection 

techniques to prevent harm to any trees designate to be preserved or 

encroachment into protected natural areas, including but not limited to tree 

barricades, silt fencing, or other similar techniques accepted by the City Engineer. 

F. Maintenance and Plat 

1. Homeowners association will maintain all lots, common areas, roadway tracts, 

fences\walls, and landscaping within all lots. 

2. 2The final development plan shall include the plat document, and the plat shall be 

in final form. 

3. The Homeowner’s Association shall be responsible for maintenance of streets, 

on-street parallel parking spaces, and street lighting and stormwater collection 

systems within the private rights-of-way within the San Sabastian Subdivision.  

G. Wetlands and Environmental 

1. There are no wetlands or environmentally sensitive areas on the site. 

2. There are no 100-year flood plain areas within the site. 

3. An erosion protection plan will be submitted with final development plans. 

4. Tree removal, tree replacement, and landscaping shall be in conformance with 

Article V of the City of Apopka Land Development Code. 

5. Development Condition Continuity 

6. The PUD Development Standards shall be printed within the PUD Master Plan 

and the Final Development Plan. 

H. Signage 

1. Signage shall comply with the City of Apopka Land Development Code and City 

of Apopka Development Design Guidelines. 

I. Lighting 

78



1. Lighting shall comply with the City of Apopka’s City Ordinance No. 2069. Street 

and parking area or pedestrian path light poles shall be decorative type and details 

provided with the Final Development Plan. 

2. Garbage Pickup 

3. Front loaded single family units to be picked up at the adjacent front right-of-way. 

J. Miscellaneous 

1. Any existing septic tanks or wells shall be properly abandoned prior to earthwork 

or construction. Permits shall be applied for and issued by the appropriate 

agencies. 

2. All acreages are subject to change with final engineering and final plat review and 

approval. 

3. Outdoor storage areas (boats, trailers, recreational vehicles, etc.) are not provided 

within the development and will be prohibited through the HOA documents. 

79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: February 21, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 

X OTHER:  Ordinance  Vicinity Map 

    Future Land Use Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Uses Map 

    Existing Uses 

    Ordinance No. 2604 
  
SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2604 – COMPREHENSIVE PLAN - LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND 

USE AMENDMENT – TGINF LLC 

    

REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2604 – COMPREHENSIVE PLAN - LARGE 

SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT- TGINF LLC; CHANGING THE FUTURE 

LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM COMMERCIAL TO MEDIUM LOW DENSITY 

RESIDNTIAL. 
  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNERS:   TGINF LLC 
 
APPLICANT:   Old Dixie 15 LLC (Allan Goldberg) 
 
LOCATION: 501 Old Dixie Highway 
 
PARCEL ID #(S): 09-21-28-0000-00-006 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant 
 
DEVELOPMENT  
POTENTIAL:   Townhomes (max 102 residential units) 
 
CURRENT ZONING:  C-1 Commercial  
 
PROPOSED ZONING: R-3 Residential   
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT UNDER EXISTING: Commercial floor area -- 149,193 sq. ft. (max.) 
FLUM\ZONING:  PROPOSED: 102 townhomes (max.) 
 
TRACT SIZE:   +/- 15.8 acres\13.7 Developable 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:   N/A 

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

88



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 
TGNIF LLC – LARGE SCALE FLUM AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The applicant intends to use the subject properties for a residential community 
with townhomes.  Presently the subject property is assigned a Commercial future land use designation and a C-
1 commercial zoning.  
  
The proposed Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment is being requested by the owner/applicant.  Pursuant to 
Florida law, properties ten acres or more are required to undergo review by State planning agencies. 
 
A request to assign a Future Land Use Designation of Medium Low Density is as compatible or more compatible 
with the character of the existing land use to the west, north, and east. A public elementary school (Apopka 
Elementary) is situated to the west, and single family residential to the east and north.  Commercial retail occurs 
to the south across Old Dixie Highway.  

 
In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate 
public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Land Use Report).  Based on the findings of 
the Land Use report, the proposed FLUM amendment is compatible with the surrounding and nearby land uses 
and the character of the general area. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent 
with the Residential Medium Low Future Land Use Designation. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  School capacity determination must be completed with Orange County 
Public Schools prior to the adoption hearing for this Future Land Use Amendment application. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify before any public hearing or 
advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on September 25, 2017. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
October 10, 2017 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 
November 1, 2017 - City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading & Transmittal 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
September 29, 2017 – Public Notice and Notification 
February 9, 2018 – ¼ Page w/Map Ordinance Heading Ad  

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee found the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 
and compatible with the character of the surrounding area; recommended approval of the future land use 
amendment from Commercial to Residential Medium Low Density; and recommended transmittal to the Florida 
Department of Economic Opportunity for the property owned by TGNIF LLC. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on October 10, 2017, unanimously found the proposed amendment 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding area; 
recommended approval of the future land use amendment from Commercial to Residential Medium Low 
Density; and recommended transmittal to the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity for the property 
owned by TGNIF LLC. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on November 1, 2017 accepted the First Reading of Ordinance 2604 and 
authorized transmittal to the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity. 
 
City Council Second Reading: Adopt Ordinance 2604. 
 
Note: This item is considered Legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 
and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

89



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 
TGNIF LLC – LARGE SCALE FLUM AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 

 
LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Low Density (0-5 

du/ac) 

R-2 Single family homes; Clayton Estates 

East (County) “County” Low Medium Density 

Residential 

“County” R-1 Single family homes 

South (City and County) Commercial C-1 & C-2 Used car lots, vacant commercial 

West (City and County) “City” Institutional \Public and 

“County” 

“City” PO\I 

and “County”  R-2 

Apopka Elementary School\single family 

homes 

 

II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 

The applicant intends to develop the property as townhome community.  Predominant existing land uses 

and assigned zoning in the abutting and surrounding area are institutional, single family residential and 

commercial retail and commercial automotive. 

 

North: Abutting the subject property to the north is the Clayton Estates single-family residential 

community.  Typical lots therein are 70 feet wide and 7,700 sq. ft. 

 

West: Apopka Elementary School borders to the east and a few single family homes at the southwest 

corner.   

 

East: To the east the property is currently vacant single family lots and existing homes on 50 foot wide 

typical lots. An unpaved public right of-way runs along the western property line – North Bradshaw 

Road. 

 

South:  Existing commercial businesses and vacant commercial are currently present.  However, 

redevelopment of this commercial area is anticipated to occur with new commercial projects 

currently under review. 

 

The proposed future land use designation of Medium Low Density Residential consistent with the 

surrounding future land use designations and anticipated future development in the surrounding area.  

Commercial and office development is anticipated to occur to the south.  The proposed townhomes are a 

short walking distance to Apopka Elementary School for school-age children residing at the subject property 

in the future. 

Therefore, staff supports the proposed future land use designation. 
 

 Other Information:  
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 
 Area of Critical State Concern: No 
 DRI / FQD: No 
 
  
  

90



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 
TGNIF LLC – LARGE SCALE FLUM AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 

 
Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act:   The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the 

adopted Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  While located within the Wekiva River Basin 
Study Area, the subject property is not located within the Protection Area. The proposed amendment is 
consistent with the adopted mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) 
amendment has been reviewed against the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater 
resources.  The City of Apopka's adopted Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater 
run-off through the following policies: 
 

 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 
 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 
 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 
Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection shows that there is a potential karst feature on this property. 
 
 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The property has access to Old Dixie Highway. A 
pond\wetland occurs on approximately 2.5 acres of the site.  Wetland and upland buffer boundaries must be 
evaluated and identified as part of any development plan applications.  Additional soil analysis may be 
necessary because of the potential presences of karst features at the subject site. 
 
 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: The proposed future 
land use designation for the subject site is Residential Medium Low (0 – 7.5 du/ac) and currently has a 
Commercial.   A change to a residential land use of Medium Low Density will generate an estimated 
population increase up to 271 persons. Based on the housing element of the City's Comprehensive Plan, 
this amendment will increase the City’s future population but a housing supply is needed to meet the 
growing population. 
 
CALCULATIONS: 
ADOPTED: Medium Low Density (7.5 du/ac)  102 Units x 2.659 p/h = 271 persons 
EXISTING: Commercial – not applicable 
PROPOSED: Medium Low Residential):   7.5 du/ac x 13.7 ac = max 102 units x 2.659 = 271 person 
Net Increase:  + 271 persons 
 
 Housing Needs: This amendment will not negatively impact the housing needs as projected in the 
Comprehensive Plan. The amendment will allow for additional housing to accommodate anticipated 
population growth projected by the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: Per policy 4.1 of the 
Conservation Element, a habitat study is required for developments ten (10) acres or more in size.  This site 
is greater than ten acres.  A habitat study will be required at the time of a development plan application. 
 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to 
Chapter 3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. Access to the site occurs from Old Dixie 
Highway.   
 
 Potable Water, Reclaimed Water & Sanitary Sewer Analysis: The subject property is located within 
the City of Apopka service area for potable water, reclaimed water and sanitary service.    
 

 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None ;   100 GPD/Capita; 
 100 GPD / Capita 

 
91



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 
TGNIF LLC – LARGE SCALE FLUM AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka                  
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  300 GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  2,550  GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  100 GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  5.1 GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: 
None 

 
 Potable Water Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  City of Apopka ; 100 
GPD/Capita; 
 100 GPD/Capita 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider:  City of Apopka   
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  300 GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  2,550  GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  100 GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  5.1 GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 
None 

 
8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area: Yes           

 

 Solid Waste 
 

1. Facilities serving the site: City of Apopka  
 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 
City of Apopka 
 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation:  1.8 lbs./person/day 
 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  4.5 lbs./day/1000 sf 
 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 
None 

 
 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 
  

92



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 
TGNIF LLC – LARGE SCALE FLUM AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 

 
Infrastructure Information 

 
 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 
 
 Permitting agency: St. John's River Water Management District 
 
 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  9.353 MGD 
 
 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33.696 MGD 
 
 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 
 
 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property:  Yes 
 

 Drainage Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site: None 
 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation:  25 year - 96 hour design storm  
 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 25 year - 96 hour design storm  
 

4. Improvement/expansion: On-site retention/detention pond  
 
 Recreation - Not applicable. 
 
This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 
  

93



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 
TGNIF LLC – LARGE SCALE FLUM AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 

 
TGNIF LLC, Property Owner 

+/- 15.8 acres\13.7 Developable  
Proposed Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 

From: Commercial (.025 FAR max) 
To: Medium Low Density (0-7.5 du/ac)  

Parcel ID #: 09-21-28-0000-00-006 
 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 

 
 
 

94



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 
TGNIF LLC – LARGE SCALE FLUM AMENDMENT 
PAGE 8 

 

 
 
 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

95



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 
TGNIF LLC – LARGE SCALE FLUM AMENDMENT 
PAGE 9 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

96



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 
TGNIF LLC – LARGE SCALE FLUM AMENDMENT 
PAGE 10 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES AND EXISTING USES 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

97



ORDINANCE NO. 2604 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM COMMERCIAL TO 

MEDIUM LOW DENSITY RESIDNTIAL FOR CERTAIN REAL 

PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED NORTH OF OLD DIXIE 

HIGHWAY AND WEST OF NORTH MAINE AVENUE, COMPRISING 

15.73 ACRES, MORE OR LESS AND OWNED BY TGNIF LLC; 

PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, on October 2, 1991 adopted 

Ordinance No. 653 which adopted the Comprehensive Plan for the City of Apopka; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has subsequently amended the Comprehensive Plan for 

the City of Apopka, most recently through Ordinance No. 2538; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka’s Local Planning Agency and the City Council have 

conducted the prerequisite advertised public hearings, as per Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, 

relative to the transmittal and adoption of this ordinance and the requirements for amendment to 

the Comprehensive Plan.   

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows:  

 

 SECTION I: The City of Apopka hereby amends the Future Land Use Element of the 

adopted Comprehensive Plan as follows:   

 

 The Future Land Use Map is hereby amended for the property identified in Exhibit “A” of this 

Ordinance, and incorporated herein by reference.  

 

 SECTION II: This Ordinance shall become effective following adoption and upon 

issuance by the Department of Economic Opportunity or the Administration Commission, as 

may be applicable, a final order finding the amendment to be in compliance in accordance with 

Chapter 163.3184.  

 

 SECTION III: If any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 

proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force, or effect of any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance.   A development plan application will not be approved by the City until all school 

capacity enhancement requirements have been approved by Orange County Public Schools. 

 

 SECTION IV:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

98



ORDINANCE NO. 2604 

PAGE 2 

 

 

SECTION V: This Ordinance shall become effective upon issuance of a final order by the 

Florida Department of Economic Opportunity finding the plan amendment in compliance in 

accordance with s.163.3184 (2)(a), Florida Statute.   

 

 ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, this 

21st day of February, 2018. 

 

 

READ FIRST TIME: November 1, 2017 

  

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED: 

 

February 21, 2018 

 

 

 

_______________________________________                                                                       

       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                            

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

_______________________________                                                                       

Cliff B. Shepard, City Attorney 

 

 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: September 29, 2017; December 26, 2017; 
 March 9, 2018 
 

99



 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

 

TGNIF LLC, Property Owners 
15.73 +/- Acres 

Proposed Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment 
From: Commercial 

To: Residential Medium Low Density (0 – 7.5 du\ac) 

Parcel ID #: 09-21-28-0000-00-006 
 

 
 

 

100



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: February 21, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

X OTHER:  Ordinance  Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Uses Map 

    Ordinance No. 2628 
  
SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2628 – CHANGE OF ZONING – TGINF, LLC 

    

REQUEST:  FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2628 – CHANGE OF ZONING – 

TGINF, LLC - FROM C-1 (RETAIL COMMERCIAL) TO R-3 

(MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL); AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND 

READING AND ADOPTION.  (PARCEL ID #S: 09-21-28-0000-00-006) 
  
SUMMARY:  

 
OWNER/APPLICANT: TGINF, LLC 
 
LOCATION: 501 Old Dixie Highway 
 
EXISTING USE:  Woodlands 
 
FUTURE LAND USE: Residential Medium Low (0-7.5 Dwelling Units per Acre) 
 
CURRENT ZONING: C-1 Retail Commercial District 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT: Townhome Subdivision 
 
TRACT SIZE:   15.7 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  171,294 sq. ft. Commercial Use 
PROPOSED:   117 Dwelling Units (92 proposed on Preliminary Development Plan) 
 N 
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\REZONING\2017\TGINF 

101



CITY COUNCIL - FEBRUARY 21, 2018 
TGINF- REZONING 
PAGE 2 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The subject parcel was annexed into the City of Apopka on December 17, 
2003 through the adoption of Ordinance 1619.   
 
A request to assign a change of zoning to R-3 (Residential Multiple-Family District) is compatible with the 
adjacent zoning classifications and with the general character of abutting properties and surrounding area. 
The proposed townhome subdivision will act as a transitional use between the commercial properties on 
Old Dixie Highway and West Orange Blossom Trail and the single family residential subdivision to the 
north. The property owner is requesting the R-3 zoning classification for the development of a proposed 
townhome subdivision.  This use is consistent with the proposed Residential Medium Low Future Land Use 
Designation. The proposal to rezone the property to R-3 (Residential Multiple-Family District) is 
compatible with the general character of the surrounding zoning and uses. 
  
The change of zoning application covers approximately 15.73 acres.  
 
In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 
adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Zoning Report). 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed use of the property is consistent with the 
Residential Medium Low (0-7.5 d/u per acre) Future Land Use designation and with the proposed R-3 
zoning classification.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use 
policies. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  A capacity enhancement agreement and\or school mitigation 
agreement with OCPS or a letter exempting the project from school capacity enhancement is required prior 
to submittal of a final development plan. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 
any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on January 12, 2018.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
February 13, 2018 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 
March 7, 2018 - City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 
March 21, 2018 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
December 26, 2017 – Public Notice and Notification 
March 9, 2018 – Ordinance Heading & ¼ Page w/Map Ad 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan. The Development Review Committee recommends adoption of the change in zoning from C-1 
(Commercial) to R-3 (Residential Multiple Family), subject to the adoption of the associated large scale 
future land use amendment, for the property owned by TGINF, LLC. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on February 13, 2018, found the proposed rezoning consistent 
with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code; and unanimously recommended a change of 
zoning from C-1 (Commercial) to R-3 (Residential Multiple Family), for property owned by TGINF, LLC, 
subject to the adoption of the associated large scale future land use amendment. 
 
Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2628 and Hold it Over for Second Reading and Adoption on 
March 7, 2018. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

102



CITY COUNCIL - FEBRUARY 21, 2018 
TGINF- REZONING 
PAGE 3 

 
ZONING REPORT 

 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Low  R-2 Single Family Subdivision 

East (City and County) 
 Res. Medium Low & 

Res. Low Medium  
R-1 Single Family Homes 

South (City and County) Commercial  C-1 & C-2 Commercial & Vacant Properties 

West (City and County) 
 Institutional/Public Use 

& Institutional 
PO/I & R-2 

Apopka Elementary School & 

Single Family Homes 
 
LAND USE & TRAFFIC  
COMPATIBILITY: The subject property fronts and is accessed by a local roadway (Old Dixie 

Highway) and has access to a stub-out on Shirley Drive to the north. The 
proposed R-3 (Multiple Family Residential) zoning district is consistent 
and compatible with the adjacent zoning classifications and uses within 
the surrounding area.  

 
COMPREHENSIVE  
PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed R-3 zoning is consistent with the City’s Residential Medium 

Low (0-7.5 du/ac) Future Land Use designation and with the character of 
the surrounding area and future proposed development. The R-3 zoning 
classification is one of the acceptable zoning categories allowed within the 
Residential Medium Low Land Use category.   Development Plans shall 
not exceed the density allowed in the adopted Future Land Use 
Designation. 

 
R-3 DISTRICT REQUIREMENTS:  
 

District 
Min.  

Site Area. 

Min. Lot 
Width 

(Ft) 

Front 
(Ft) 

Side 
(Ft) 

Rear 
(Ft) 

Corner 
(Ft) 

Min. 
Living (Sq. 

Ft.) 
R-3. Residential        
 Single-Family 7,500 sf 70 25 *7.5 20 25 1,350 
 Duplex 15,000 sf 140 25 10 20 25 1,350 
 Multiple-Family        
  Rental/Apartments 1 AC None “ ‘’’ “ 25 750 
  Fee Simple, Condo or Townhouse 1 AC None “ ‘’’ “ 25 1,350 

** Distance Between Buildings: 50’ front to front and 50’ rear to rear 
 
 Based on the above zoning standards, the subject parcels comply with code requirements for the R-3 

district. 
 
BUFFERYARD  
REQUIREMENTS: 1. Areas adjacent to all road rights-of-way shall provide a minimum 

25-foot landscaped bufferyard.  
 
 2. Areas adjacent to agricultural uses or districts shall provide a 

minimum of ten feet abutting the property line with landscaping and 
a six-foot-high masonry wall. 

103



CITY COUNCIL - FEBRUARY 21, 2018 
TGINF- REZONING 
PAGE 4 

 
 
 3.    Areas adjacent to residential uses or districts shall provide a six-foot-

high masonry wall within a minimum of 50-foot landscaped 
bufferyard. 

 
 4. Industrial uses adjacent to nonresidential, nonindustrial uses or 

districts shall provide one of the following: 
 

a. A minimum of 25-feet abutting the property with landscaping 
and an earth berm, measuring three feet with a 3:1 slope; or 
 

        b.     A minimum six-foot-high masonry wall within a minimum of 
ten-foot landscaped bufferyard. 

 
ALLOWABLE USES: 1. Any use permitted in the R-2 zoning district. 

 

2. Multifamily dwellings, including, but not limited to, triplex, 

quadruplex, townhouses,    condominium, and apartment complexes. 

  

104



CITY COUNCIL - FEBRUARY 21, 2018 
TGINF- REZONING 
PAGE 5 

 
TGINF, LLC 

Property Owner 
15.73 +/- Acres 

Proposed Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 
From: Commercial 

To: Residential Medium Low (0-7.5 du/ac) 
Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: C-1 (Commercial) 
To: R-3 (Residential Multiple Family) 
Parcel ID #s: 09-21-28-0000-00-006 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

105



CITY COUNCIL - FEBRUARY 21, 2018 
TGINF- REZONING 
PAGE 6 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 
 

106



CITY COUNCIL - FEBRUARY 21, 2018 
TGINF- REZONING 
PAGE 7 

 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 
 

 

 

107



ORDINANCE NO. 2628 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING THE ZONING FROM 

C-1(COMMERCIAL) TO R-3 (RESIDENTIAL) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 

GENERALLY LOCATED NORTH OF OLD DIXIE HIGHWAY AND EAST OF VICK ROAD, 

COMPRISING 15.8 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY TGINF LLC; PROVIDING 

FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DIRECTOR,SEVERABILITY,CONFLICTS,AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest of the 
public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, TGINF, LLC has requested a change in zoning on said property as identified in 
Section I of this ordinance; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed R-3 zoning has been found to be consistent with the City of Apopka 
Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land Development Code. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, 
as follows: 
 
 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated in the 
City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby R-3 Residential, as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code.  
 
 Legal Description: 
 

COMM AT SW COR OF SEC 4 E ALONG SLY LINE OF SEC 667.39 FT TO SE 

COR OF SW1/4 OF SW1/4 OF SW1/4 FOR POB N 122.09 FT E 667.28 FT S 1239.25 

FT S 38 DEG W 46.02 FT TO N R/W LINE OF SR 424 N 51 DEG W 812.09 FT N 

654.21 FT TO POB IN SECS 04 & 09-21-28  

Parcel ID No: 09-21-28-0000-00-006 

Contains: 15.73 +/- Acres 108



ORDINANCE NO. 2628 

PAGE 2 
 

 

 Section II.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the City 

of Apopka, Florida. 

 

 Section III.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is hereby 

authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, Florida, to 

include said designation.   

 

 Section IV. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves to 

be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, force 

or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

 Section V.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.   

 

 Section VI.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon the effective date of Ordinance 2604. 

 
 

                       
 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: December 26, 2017; March 9, 2018 
 

 

READ FIRST TIME:  February 21, 2018 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
March 7, 2018 

109



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: February 21, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

X OTHER:  Ordinance  Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Uses Map 

    Existing Uses Map 
  

SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2624 - CHANGE OF ZONING – GEORGE THUM, JR. AND 

PHILLIP AND PEGGY DIONNE 

    

REQUEST:  ORDINANCE NO. 2624 – SECOND READING - CHANGE OF ZONING FROM 

“COUNTY” A-1 (AGRICULTURE) & “CITY” AG (AGRICULTURE) TO “CITY” 

PO/I (PROFESSIONAL OFFICE/INSTITUTIONAL); ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 

2624 
  
SUMMARY:  

 
OWNERS:    George Thum, Jr. & Phillip and Peggy Dionne 
 
APPLICANT:    Orange County Public Schools c/o Tyrone Smith, AICP 
 
LOCATION:  West of Jason Dwelley Parkway, south of West Kelly Park Road 
 
PARCEL ID NUMBERS:  18-20-28-0000-00-053; 18-20-28-0000-00-054 
 
EXISTING USE:   Single-family residences  
 
FLUM DESIGNATION:  Institutional\Public Use 
  
CURRENT ZONING:   “County” A-1 (Agriculture) and “City” AG (Agriculture) 
 
DEVELOPMENT POTENTAIL: Proposed elementary school 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: “City” PO/I (Professional Office/Institutional) (Note: this Change of 

Zoning amendment request is being processed along with a request to 
change the Future Land Use Map designation from “County” Rural (0-1 
du/10 ac) and “City” Agriculture (0-1 du/ 5 ac) to “City” 
Institutional/Public Use. 

 
TRACT SIZE:    15.17 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT UNDER  EXISTING: Single-family residences 
ZONING DISTRICT:                  PROPOSED: Elementary School 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:   N/A  
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 110



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

GEORGE THUM, JR; DIONE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 
 
 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\REZONING\2018\Thum Dionne 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS.  The subject properties were annexed into the City on November 16, 
2005 via Ordinance 1787; and on June 21, 2017 via Ordinance 2573.  The proposed Large Scale Future 
Land Use Amendment is being requested by the owner/applicant.  Pursuant to Florida law, properties ten 
acres or more are required to undergo review by State planning agencies. The applicant requests the 
change of zoning to Professional Office/Institutional to accommodate a public elementary school.  This 
change of zoning request is being processed in conjunction with a proposed future land use map 
amendment requesting Institutional/Public Use.  The proposed use as an elementary school is permitted 
within the proposed FLU designation per FLU Policy 3.1.Q, Institutional/Public Use: 
 

“Primary uses shall include public buildings and facilities. Existing public buildings and 
facilities and public education sites may be designated as institutional on the FLUM.” 

 
In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 
adequate public facilities exist to support this zoning change (see attached Zoning Report). 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is 
consistent with the proposed Institutional/Public Use Future Land Use designation and the City’s 
proposed PO/I Zoning classifications. An elementary school is a permitted use within the 
Institutional\Public Use FLUM designation.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the 
Future Land Use policies. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: Because this Change of Zoning represents a change to a non-
residential underlying zoning classification, a capacity enhancement agreement with Orange County 
Public Schools is not required. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 
any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
January 9, 2018 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 
February 7, 2018 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 1st Reading 
February 21, 2018 – City Council (7:00 pm) – 2

nd
 Reading 

 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
December 22, 2017 – Public Notice and Notification (Apopka Chief, letters, property posting) 
February 9, 2018 – Public Notice (Apopka Chief)   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan and recommends approval of the change in zoning from “County” A-1 (ZIP) and “City” AG 
(Agriculture) to “City” PO/I (Professional Office/Institutional). 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on January 9, 2018, found the proposed amendment consistent 
with the Comprehensive Plan and unanimously recommended approval of the change in zoning from 
“County” A-1 (ZIP) and “City” AG (Agriculture) to “City” PO/I (Professional Office/Institutional). 
 
City Council at its February 7, 2018 meeting accepted the First Reading of Ordinance 2624 and Held it 
Over for Second Reading and Adoption on February 21, 2018.  
 
Recommended Motion:  Adopt Ordinance 2624 
 111



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

GEORGE THUM, JR; DIONE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 
 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be 
incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

112



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

GEORGE THUM, JR; DIONE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

ZONING REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City & 

County) 

“County” Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) and “City” 

Agriculture (1-5 du/5 ac) 

AG Single-family residence 

East (City)  Residential Estates (1 du/ac) PUD R-O-W and Rock Springs Ridge 

subdivision 

South (City) Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) PUD Orchid Estates subdivision 

West (City & 

County) 

“County” Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) and “City” 

Agriculture (1-5 du/5 ac) 

A-1 Single family home 

 

LAND USE  

COMPATIBILITY: The proposed zoning and use is compatible with adjacent zoning 

districts and the general character of the surrounding area. 

Predominant land uses in the abutting and surrounding area are 

single family residential. However, properties abutting the subject 

site have the Residential Very Low Suburban Future Land Use.  The 

proposed use for a public elementary school is permitted within the 

Institutional/Public Use future land use designation policy, which 

supersedes zoning.  Further, the proposed use is located 

approximately one-half mile from the City’s Northwest Recreation 

Complex, which is a public/institutional use.   

 

The Land Use Compatibility supporting information from the Future 

Land Use amendment is incorporated into the findings of the Zoning 

Report. 
 
TRAFFIC  
COMPATIBILITY: The property has access to a city collector roadway (Jason Dwelley 

Parkway). Future land use designations and zoning categories 
assigned to properties to the north, south, east and west are 
consistent with the proposed future land use and zoning 
classification for the subject property. 

 
COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed PO/I (Professional Office/Institutional) zoning is 

compatible with policies set forth in the Comprehensive Plan.   
 
PO/I DISTRICT 
REQUIREMENTS:    FAR:     0.30 
     Open Space:    N/A 
     Minimum Site Area:   10,000 
     Minimum Lot Width:   85 
     Setbacks: Front:   25 ft. 
       Side:   10 ft. 
       Corner: 25 ft. 
       Rear:   10 ft. 
 113



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

GEORGE THUM, JR; DIONE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 
 
ALLOWABLE USES:   
 
2.02.10. - Professional Office/Institutional District (PO/I) 
 
1. Professional offices, including those of architects, engineers, lawyers, accountants, tax and financial 

services or consultants, bookkeepers, realtors and brokers, insurance, investment counselors, travel 
agencies, etc. 

 
2. Medical or dental clinics and offices. 
 
3. Establishments for the retail sale of pharmaceutical, medical and dental supplies and other hospital-

related items such as wheelchairs, braces, crutches, etc., for the handicapped and other similar 
merchandise 

 
4. Parks and recreational areas owned and operated by nonprofit organizations. 
 
5. Hospitals, museums, libraries, and cultural institution.  
 
6. General government offices, including, but not limited to, fire stations, police stations, and post 

offices.  
 
7.  Churches and attendant educational facilities. 
 
8. Educational facilities and day nurseries.  
 
9. Public and private utilities. 
 
10. Supporting infrastructure and public facilities. 
 
11. Other uses which are similar and compatible to the uses permitted herein which adhere to the intent 

of the district and which are not prohibited as specified in this code. Use determination shall be based 
on the community development director's recommendation 

 
  

114



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

GEORGE THUM, JR; DIONE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

George Thum, Jr. & Phillip and Peggy Dionne 

Proposed Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 

From: “County” Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) & 

“City” Agriculture (0-1 du/5 ac) 

To: “City” Institutional/Public Use 

Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: “County” A-1 (ZIP) & “City” AG (Agriculture) 

To: “City” PO/I (Professional Office/Institutional) 

Parcel ID #s:  18-20-28-0000-00-053; 18-20-28-0000-00-054 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

  

 

115



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

GEORGE THUM, JR; DIONE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 
 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 
 

 

  

116



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

GEORGE THUM, JR; DIONE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 
 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Subject Property 

117



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

GEORGE THUM, JR; DIONE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 
 

 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 

 

 

Subject Property 

118



ORDINANCE NO. 2624 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING THE 
ZONING FROM “COUNTY” A-1 (AGRICULTURE) AND “CITY” AG 
(AGRICULTURE) TO “CITY” PO/I (PROFESSIONAL OFFICE/ 
INSTITUTIONAL)   FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTIES LOCATED WEST 
OF JASON DWELLEY PARKWAY AND SOUTH OF WEST KELLY PARK 
ROAD, COMPRISING 15.17 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY 
GEORGE THUM JR. AND PEGGY DIONNE; PROVIDING FOR 
DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, 
SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest 
of the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the 
City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, George Thum Jr. and Peggy Dionne have requested a change in zoning on said 
property as identified in Section I of this ordinance; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed PO/I zoning has been found to be consistent with the City of 
Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land Development Code. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated 
in the City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby PO/I, as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code.  
 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Parcel ID Nos: 18-20-28-0000-00-053 & 18-20-28-0000-00-054 

Contains: 15.17 +/- Acres 

119



ORDINANCE NO. 2609 

PAGE 2 
 

 

Section II.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive 

Plan of the City of Apopka, Florida. 

 

 Section III.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is 

hereby authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of 

Apopka, Florida, to include said designation.   

 

 Section IV. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 

proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance. 

 

 Section V.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed.   

 

 Section VI.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption. 

 
 

                       
 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: December 22, 2017; September 9, 2018 
 

READ FIRST TIME:  February 7, 2018 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
February 21, 2018 

120



 

 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA MEETING OF: February 21, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS EXHIBIT(S): Ordinance No. 2633 

X OTHER: Ordinance   
  

 

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE NO. 2633 – VACATING A PORTION OF A PLATTED RIGHT-OF -

WAY - RANSOM STREET 

 

REQUEST: ACCEPT THE FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2633 – VACATE A 

PLATTED RIGHT OF WAY - RANSOM STREET; AND HOLD OVER FOR 

SECOND READING AND ADOPTION. 
  
 

SUMMARY: 

OWNER/APPLICANT: City of Apopka 
  
LOCATION: North of East 6th Street, south of U.S. Highway 441 and west of South 

Sheeler Avenue. 
 
EXISTING USE:  Right-of-way 
 
AREA TO BE VACATED: 0.14 acre +/- 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Right-of-Way N/A U.S. Highway 441/S.R. 500 

East (City) Institutional/Public Use C-2 Vacant  

South (City) Right-of-way N/A 6th Street 

West (City) Institutional/Public Use PO/I Vacant/Retention Pond 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
N/A 
    
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

121



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

RANSOM STREET VACATE 

PAGE 2 

 

 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The City is seeking to vacate Ransom Street that is an existing public 
right of way that was established within the R.F. Tilden's Addition plat.  The City will incorporated this -
right-of-way with City-owned parcels on the western and eastern properties as one parcel. 
 

The Public Services Department has evaluated the site and has no objection to the right-of-way being 

vacated.  The City has letters on file from all utility providers indicating no objections to the proposed 

vacate.   A replat will be required to combine this with the western and eastern parcels and must be approved 

by the City Council.   

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

February 7, 2018 - City Council - 1st Reading (1:30 p.m.) 

February 21, 2018 - City Council - 2nd Reading (7:00 p.m.) 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

January 19, 2018 - Public Hearing Notice 

February 9, 2018 - Ordinance Heading Ad 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the request by the City of Apopka to 
vacate Ransom Street platted right of way as described in the legal description, subject to the recording of 
a replat. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on February 7, 2018, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2633 
and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on February 21, 2018. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2633. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

122



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

RANSOM STREET VACATE 

PAGE 3 

 

 

Applicant:    City of Apopka 

Proposed Vacate Legal Description:  

   Begin at the Southwest corner of Lot 4, Block A of L. F. Tilden's Addition 

to Apopka City according to the plat thereof recorded in Plat Book A, Page 

140, Public Records of Orange County, Florida, said point being on the 

North right of way line of East 6TH. Street per the Florida Department of 

Transportation right of way map for State Road No. 436, Section 75120-

2506; thence North 89"38'53" West, a distance of 40.00 feet, along said 

North right of way line to a point on the East line of Block B as shown on 

said plat; thence North 00°59'38" East, a distance of 167.01 feet, along 

said East line to a point on Southerly right of way line of U. S. Highway 

441-State Road 500 as shown on said right of way map; thence South 51 

°50'20" East, a distance of 50.20 feet, along said Southerly right of way 

line to a point on the West line of said Block A; thence South 00·59'38" 

West, a distance of 136.23 feet, along said West line to the POINT OF 

BEGINNING. 

Total Acres:     0.14 +/- Acre 

 

 
 

123



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

RANSOM STREET VACATE 

PAGE 4 

 

 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

124



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

RANSOM STREET VACATE 

PAGE 5 

 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 

 

 
 
 

R-O-W to be vacated 

125



ORDINANCE NO. 2633 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, TO VACATE A RIGHT OF 
WAY, KNOWN AS RANSOM STREET, LOCATED NORTH OF EAST 6TH 
STREET, SOUTH OF U.S. HIGHWAY 441; WEST OF SOUTH SHEELER 
AVENUE  IN SECTION 10, TOWNSHIP 21, RANGE 28 OF ORANGE 
COUNTY, FLORIDA; PROVIDING DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 
FOR SEVERABILITY, FOR CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to provisions of Florida Statutes, Section 336.10, a Petition has been 
filed by the City of Apopka, to vacate, abandon, discontinue, renounce and disclaim alleyway as 
shown in Exhibit “A”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, CenturyLink (f/k/a Embarq), Duke Energy, Charter Spectrum 
Communications and Lake Apopka Natural Gas District have no objection to the abandonment of 
a portion of the existing utility easement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that under the proposed circumstances there 
exists no public need for this existing easement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after public notice in accordance with Florida Statute 336.10, the City 
Council has determined that it is not contrary to public interest to vacate and abandon said existing 
easement. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  That the following lands, and graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit “A,” 
shall be officially closed, discontinued, and vacated: 
 
 Legal Description: 
 

Begin at the Southwest corner of Lot 4, Block A of L. F. Tilden's Addition to 

Apopka City according to the plat thereof recorded in Plat Book A, Page 140, 

Public Records of Orange County, Florida, said point being on the North right of 

way line of East 6TH. Street per the Florida Department of Transportation right of 

way map for State Road No. 436, Section 75120-2506; thence North 89"38'53" 

West, a distance of 40.00 feet, along said North right of way line to a point on the 

East line of Block B as shown on said plat; thence North 00°59'38" East, a distance 

of 167.01 feet, along said East line to a point on Southerly right of way line of U. 

S. Highway 441-State Road 500 as shown on said right of way map; thence South 

51 °50'20" East, a distance of 50.20 feet, along said Southerly right of way line to 

a point on the West line of said Block A; thence South 00·59'38" West, a distance 

of 136.23 feet, along said West line to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 

 

CONTAINING 6065 SQUARE FEET, MORE OR LESS 
 
 Section II.  NOTICE.  That notice of the adoption of this Ordinance be published and the 
Ordinance be filed with the Clerk of the Circuit Court of Orange County, Florida, and duly 
recorded among the Public Records of Orange County, Florida. 

126



ORDINANCE NO. 2633 

PAGE 2 

 
 
 
 Section III. SEVERABILITY. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of 
this Ordinance proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate 
or impair the validity, force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or 
part of this Ordinance. 
 
 Section IV.  CONFLICT. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith 
are hereby repealed. 
 
 Section V.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon the date of 
adoption. 
 
      READ FIRST TIME:  February 7, 2018  
 
      READ SECOND TIME 
      AND ADOPTED:  February 21, 2018  
 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Clifford Shepard, Esq., City Attorney 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING:  January 19, 2018 and February 9, 2018 
 

 

 

 

G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\VACATE\Ransom Street - City of Apopka\CC 2nd Reading 

 

 

 

127



ORDINANCE NO. 2633 

PAGE 3 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2633 

EXHIBIT “A”. 
 

 

City of Apopka 

Proposed Vacate of Right-of-Way 

Ransom Street 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

  

128



ORDINANCE NO. 2633 

PAGE 4 

 
Applicant:  City of Apopka 

Proposed Vacate Legal Description:  

Begin at the Southwest corner of Lot 4, Block A of L. F. Tilden's Addition to Apopka City 

according to the plat thereof recorded in Plat Book A, Page 140, Public Records of Orange County, 

Florida, said point being on the North right of way line of East 6TH. Street per the Florida 

Department of Transportation right of way map for State Road No. 436, Section 75120-2506; 

thence North 89"38'53" West, a distance of 40.00 feet, along said North right of way line to a point 

on the East line of Block B as shown on said plat; thence North 00°59'38" East, a distance of 

167.01 feet, along said East line to a point on Southerly right of way line of U. S. Highway 441-

State Road 500 as shown on said right of way map; thence South 51 °50'20" East, a distance of 

50.20 feet, along said Southerly right of way line to a point on the West line of said Block A; 

thence South 00·59'38" West, a distance of 136.23 feet, along said West line to the POINT OF 

BEGINNING. 

Total Acres:  0.14 +/- Acre 

 

129



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: February 21, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Future Land Use Report 

X OTHER: Ordinance  Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Future Land Use Map 

    Adjacent Uses Map 

    Ordinance No. 2629 
  
SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2629 – COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – 

FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – VBRO ENTERPRISES, INC. 

    

REQUEST:  FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2629 – COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – 
SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – VBRO ENTERPRISES, 
INC.; FROM “COUNTY” LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (0-4 DU/AC) TO 
“CITY” COMMERCIAL (MAX. 0.25 FAR): AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND 
READING AND ADOPTION. (PARCEL ID #: 28-20-28-0000-00-018) 

  
SUMMARY:  

 
OWNER:    VBRO Enterprises, Inc.  
 
APPLICANT:    William E. Burkett    
 
LOCATION:  41 East Lester Road 
 
EXISTING USE:   Single-family residence  
 
CURRENT ZONING:   “County” A-1 
 
DEVELOPMENT POTENTIAL: Maximum 9,119 sq. ft. commercial use (.25 floor area ratio) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: “County” A-1 (Agriculture) (Note: this Future Land Use Map amendment 

request is being processed along with a request to annex and a request to 
change the Zoning Map designation from “County” A-1 to “City” PUD, 
Commercial Neighborhood). 

 
TRACT SIZE:    0.84 +/- acres 
  
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT UNDER  EXISTING: 3 Single Family Homes 
ZONING DISTRICT:                  PROPOSED: Up to 9,119 sq. ft. commercial use  

  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\SMALL SCALE FLU AMENDS\2017\VBRO Enterprises\City Council 
  

130



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

VBRO ENTERPRISES - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  A request to assign a Future Land Use Designation of “Commercial” is 
compatible with the designations assigned to abutting properties. The FLUM application covers 
approximately 0.84 acre.  Combined with the parcel to the east and several other parcels along the west side 
of Rock Springs Road, this parcel is proposed to be developed as a small commercial retail plaza.  A 
proposed zoning of Planned Unit Development will tailor the site to appropriate commercial and office uses 
compatible to residential development further to the west along Lester Road.  This proposed shopping plaza 
will be located at the northwest corner of Lester Road and Rock Springs Road. 
 
The east-adjacent properties, facing an arterial road have a “Commercial” Future Land Use designation. 
The Wekiva Plaza Shopping Center is approximately a half mile south of the subject property.  
 
In conjunction with state requirements, staff have analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 
adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Land Use Report). Based on 
the findings of the Land Use report, the proposed FLUM amendment is compatible with the surrounding 
and nearby land uses and the character of the general area.  
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed zoning of the subject property, “Commercial 
Neighborhood” is consistent with the Commercial (max. 0.25 FAR) Future Land Use designation. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  Because this request represents a change to a non-residential future 
land use designation and zoning classification, school capacity determination by Orange County Public 
Schools is not required. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 
any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on January 12, 2018. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
Planning Commission, February 13, 2018 (5:30 pm) 
City Council February 21, 2018 (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 
City Council, March 7, 2018 (1:30 pm) - 2nd Reading 
 
DULY ADVERTISED:  
January 26, 2018- Public Notice (Letters, Apopka Chief, Site Posting)  
February 2, 2018 - Public Notice (Apopka Chief) 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending approval of the proposed 
Future Land Use Designation of Office for the property owned by VBRO Enterprises, Inc., and located at 
41 East Lester Road.  
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on February 13, 2018, found the proposed Future Land Use 
amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding 
areas; and unanimously recommend approval of the change of Future Land Use Designation from “County” 
Low Density Residential to “City” Commercial, subject to the findings of the Staff Report. 
 
Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2629 and Hold Over for Second Reading and Adoption on 
March 7, 2018. 
 
Note: This item is considered Legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

131



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

VBRO ENTERPRISES - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 
 

LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Low Density Residential A-1 Single Family House 

East (City) Commercial CN Vacant 

South (County) Low Medium Density Residential R-T Mobile Home Park (Rock Springs/Palm Isle) 

West (County) Low Density Residential A-1 Single Family House 

 

II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 

North:  Abutting the subject property to the north is a single family home on a moderately wooded property. 

 

West:   The previously mentioned property is also west of the subject parcel. Beyond that is another single 

family home.  

 

South: Lester Road is south adjacent to the property, the Rock Springs/Palm Isle Mobile Home Park is 

across from Lester Road.   

 

East:   Abutting the subject property to the east are vacant parcels, zoned CN, with a Commercial Future 

Land Use designation.  

 

The proposed future land use designation of “City” Commercial serves as a transitional land use between 

the residential uses to the west and south.  

 

Therefore, staff supports the proposed future land use changes. 
 

 Other Information:  
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 
 Area of Critical State Concern: No 
 DRI / FQD: No 
 
 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement 
on October 26, 2004.  The subject property is located within “Core Area” of the JPA.   
 
 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act:   The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the 
adopted Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  While located within the Wekiva River Basin 
Study Area, the subject property is not located within the Protection Area. The proposed amendment is 
consistent with the adopted mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) 
amendment has been reviewed against the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater 
resources.  The City of Apopka's adopted Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and storm water 
run-off through the following policies: 
 

 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 
 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 
 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 
132



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

VBRO ENTERPRISES - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 
 

Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental 
Protection shows that there are no karst features on this property. 
 
 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: The proposed future 
land use designation for the Property is Commercial (max. FAR 0.25).  Based on the housing element of 
the City's Comprehensive Plan, this amendment will not increase the City’s future population.   
 
CALCULATIONS: 
 
 Future Population: 

Adopted (County Designation) 3 X 2.659 = 7 Persons 
Proposed (City designation):  no impact on population 

 
 Housing Needs: This amendment will not negatively impact the housing needs as projected in the 
Comprehensive Plan.   
 
 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: Per policy 4.1 of the 
Conservation Element, a habitat study is required for developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  This 
site is less than ten acres.  A habitat study will not be required at the time of a development plan application.   
 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to 
Chapter 3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None; 81 GPD/Capita ; 81 

GPD / Capita 

 

 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka 

 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  588    GPD 

 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:    1,372  GPD 

 

4. Capacity available:  Yes 

 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation: 81  GPD/Capita 

 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 

 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: 

None 
 

 Potable Water Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard: None; 177 GPD/Capita ; 177 

GPD / Capita 

  

 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider:  City of Apopka 

 
133



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

VBRO ENTERPRISES - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 
 

  

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:     630  GPD 

 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:   1,829  GPD 

 

4. Capacity available: Yes 

 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177  GPD / Capita 

 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177  GPD / Capita 

 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None 

 

8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area:  Yes 
 

 Solid Waste 

 

1. Facilities serving the site:  City of Apopka 

 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of 

Apopka 

 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation:   28    lbs/  day 

 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:   18    lbs /  day 

 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None  

 

 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 

development approval. 
 

 Infrastructure Information 

 

 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 

 

 Permitting agency: St. John’s River Water Management District 

 

 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  9.353  MGD 

 

 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33.696  MGD 

 

 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 

 

 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property: Yes 
 

  
134



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

VBRO ENTERPRISES - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 
 

Drainage Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site:   None 

 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation: 100 year – 24 hour design storm  

 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year – 24 hour design storm 

 

4. Improvement/expansion: On site retention / detention ponds 

 

 Recreation 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System ;  3 acre / 1000 capita 

 

2. Projected facility under existing designation:  0.021  acres 

 

3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  N/A   acres 

 

4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 

amendment: None 

 
 
 
 
 

  

135



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

VBRO ENTERPRISES - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 
 

VBRO Enterprises 

0.84 +/- acres  
Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 

From: “County” Low Density Residential   
To: “City” Commercial 

Proposed Change of Zoning: 
From: “County” A-1 

To: CN 
Parcel ID #: 28-20-28-0000-00-018 

 

VICINITY MAP  

136



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

VBRO ENTERPRISES - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 8 
 

 

 
ADJACENT ZONING MAP 

 

  

137



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

VBRO ENTERPRISES - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 9 
 

 

 

 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

138



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

VBRO ENTERPRISES - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 10 
 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES MAP 
  

139



 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2629 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING THE 
FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM “COUNTY” LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL (0-4 DU/AC) TO “CITY” COMMERCIAL (MAX. 0.25 FAR) 
FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 41 E. LESTER ROAD, 
COMPRISING 0.84 ACRE MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY VBRO 
ENTERPRISES INC.; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka adopted the Apopka Comprehensive 
Plan by Ordinance No. 653 on October 2, 1991, pursuant to Section 163.3184, Florida Statutes 
and most recently amended it by Ordinance No. 2583 adopted on December 20, 2017; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka’s local planning agency (Planning Commission) has, in 
preparation of the amended version of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan, analyzed the proposed 
amendment pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, F.S., found it to be consistent with the intent of the 
Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and held public hearings providing for full public participation. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I. Purpose and Intent. 
 
 This Ordinance is enacted to carry out the purpose and intent of, and exercise the authority 
set out in, the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation 
Act, Sections 163.3184 and 163.3187, Florida Statutes. 
 
 Section II. Future Land Use Element. 
  
 Page 1-15 (Map 1-3) of the Future Land Use Element of the City of Apopka 
Comprehensive Plan, as most recently amended by Ordinance No. 2629, is amended in its entirety 
to change the land use from “County” Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) to “City” Commercial 
(Max. 0.25 FAR), for certain real property located at 41 E. Lester Road, comprising 0.84 acres 
more or less, (Parcel No. 28-20-28-0000-00-018); as further described in Exhibit “A” attached 
hereto. 
 
 Section III. Applicability and Effect. 
 
 The applicability and effect of the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan shall be as provided 
by the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation Act, 
Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215, Florida Statutes. 
 
 Section IV.  Severability. 
 
 If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by any court of competent 
jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, then all remaining provisions and 
portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 Section V.  The Community Development Director is hereby authorized to amend the 
Future Land Use to comply with this ordinance. 

 

140



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2629 
PAGE 2 
 
 Section VI. Effective Date. 
 
 This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 
 
 ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, this 

 7th  day of  March , 2018 
 

 
READ FIRST TIME:  

 
February 21, 2018 

 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:  

 
 
March 7, 2018 

 
 
 ______________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                         
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR HEARING: January 26, 2018 and February 23, 2018 

141



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
VBRO ENTERPRISES INC. 

0.84 +/- acres  
Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 

From: “County” Low Density Residential  
To: “City” Commercial 

Proposed Change of Zoning: 
From: A-1 
To: PUD 

Parcel ID #: 28-20-28-0000-00-018 
 

 

 

142



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: February 21, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

X OTHER:  Ordinance  Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Uses Map 

    Ordinance No. 2630 
  
SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2630 – CHANGE OF ZONING – VBRO ENTERPRISES, INC.  

    

REQUEST:  FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2630 – CHANGE OF ZONING – VBRO 

ENTERPRISES, INC. FROM “COUNTY” A-1 (AGRICULTURE) AND “CITY” 

CN TO “CITY” PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPEMTN (PUD/COMMERCIAL); 

AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND READING AND ADOPTION.  (PARCEL ID 

#S: 28-20-28-0000-00-018; 28-20-28-0220-00-010; 28-20-28-0220-00-020; 28-20-28-

0220-00-030; 28-20-28-0220-00-040; 28-20-28-0220-00-050) 
  
SUMMARY:  

 
OWNER:    VBRO Enterprises, Inc. 
 
APPLICANT:    William E. Burkett 
 
LOCATION:  North of East Lester Road and West of Rock Springs Road 
 
EXISTING USE:   Single-family residence  
 
CURRENT ZONING:   “County” A-1 and “City” CN 
 
DEVELOPMENT POTENTIAL: Maximum 36,619 sq. ft. commercial use (.25 floor area ratio) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: “City” PUD (Planned Unit Development Commercial) (Note: this Change 

of Zoning request is being processed with an application for 41 E. Lester 
Road for annexation and with a request to amend the Future Land Use from 
“County” Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) to “City” Commercial (Max. 
0.25 FAR)  

 
TRACT SIZE:    3.36 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT UNDER  EXISTING: 3 single-family homes and 27,500 sq. ft. commercial use 
ZONING DISTRICT:                          PROPOSED: 36,619 sq. ft. commercial use 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\REZONING\2017\VBRO 143



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

VBRO ENTERPRISES – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 
 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:    The applicant desires to combine six small parcels at the northwest corner of 
North Rock Springs Road and Lester Road into a small commercial or office shopping center. For the five parcels 
abutting Rock Springs Road, “City” CN (Neighborhood Commercial) is currently assigned to each.  For the 
sixth parcel, which fronts Lester Road and which was recently annexed into the City, the zoning is “County” A-
1.   
 
The intent of the PUD (Planned Unit Development) zoning request is to allow a restaurant at the intersection of 
E. Lester Road and N. Rock Springs Road. Restaurants are prohibited in the current CN zoning category.  A 
request to rezone to C-1 (Retail Commercial District), to accommodate a restaurant, would potentially allow 
undesirable uses such as motels, laundry facilities, and outside storage of merchandise, equipment or 
commodities.   
 
A request to assign a change of zoning to PUD, for commercial use, is compatible with the adjacent zoning 
classifications and with the general character of abutting properties and surrounding area. The subject properties 
have 500 linear feet of frontage along Rock Springs Road, an arterial road. Other commercial properties, such 
as the Wekiva Plaza Shopping Center, are in the vicinity of the subject property.  
 
The applicant has voluntarily agreed to restrict the type of commercial uses that may be incompatible for 
allocation that serves as a gateway into an area dominated by existing and future residential neighborhoods along 
Lester Road, from Rock Springs Road to Plymouth-Sorrento Road.    
 
PUD DEVEOPMENT AND ZONING CONDITIONS:  That the zoning classification of the following 
described property be designated as Planned Unit Development (PUD), as defined in the Apopka Land 
Development Code, and with the following Master Plan provisions subject to the following zoning provisions: 
 

A. The uses permitted within the PUD district shall be: 
 

1. All permitted uses listed in the PO/I (Professional Office/Institutional) and CN (Commercial 

Neighborhood) district, except those listed as prohibited below. 

2. Restaurants, with or without outdoor seating, 

3. Adult day care, not to exceed 7,000 square feet net floor area. 

4. Retail businesses, except those listed as prohibited, 

5. Banks, 

6. Other uses which are similar and compatible to the uses permitted herein which adhere to the 

intent of the district and which are not prohibited as specified in this code. Use determination shall 

be based upon the community development director's recommendation. 

 

B. The uses prohibited within the PUD district shall be: 

 

1. Tobacco Store 

2. Laundromat businesses 

3. Medical Marijuana Dispensary 

4. Veterinary and pet grooming facilities 

5. Motorized Vehicle Service Stations 

6. New or used motorized vehicle sales 

7. Plumbing Shops 

8. Appliance Stores 

9. Tattoo/Piercing Parlors 

10. Adult entertainment as defined in section 10-98 of the Apopka Municipal Code 

11. Auto title loan, paycheck advance facilities, and other "personal credit institutions" 
144



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

VBRO ENTERPRISES – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 
 

12. Pawn shops. 

13. Employment agencies. 

14. Modular, mobile and pre-fab home display and sales. 

15. Mini-warehouse and self-storage facilities. 

16. Outside storage of supplies, materials, equipment, merchandise, and activities. 

17. Motorized Truck stops or terminal as defined by this code. 

18. Flea markets (indoor and outdoor). 

19. Motorized automotive and transportation related businesses including new and used retail 

automotive part stores, mechanic shops, new and used car sales, boat sales, vehicle rental, etc. 

20. Bail bonds businesses. 

21. Blood banks, blood donor stations, plasmapheresis facilities, or other similar bio-donating uses; 

provided however, that this prohibition shall not include the practice of the following duly licensed 

professionals: physicians, dentists, orthodontists or pharmacists, or other health care practitioners, 

which may perform incidental bio-donating functions and procedures; provided, further, however, 

that this prohibition shall not apply to bona fide blood drives and similar events conducted by non-

profit blood banks for a non-commercial purpose. 

22. Soup kitchens; provided however, that this prohibition shall not apply to the bona fide charitable 

activities of bona fide churches, synagogues, mosques and other places of worship that are 

occupied and in operation on the effective date of this ordinance. 

23. Outdoor parks and recreational areas. 

24. Bowling alleys, skating rinks, billiard parlors and similar amusement centers. 

25. Assisted Living Facilities. 

 

C. Development Design Standards for this PUD, in addition to the Development Design Standards set 

forth in the Land Development Code (LDC)shall be as follows: 

 

1. Drive through restaurants shall be limited to one drive aisle and no more than one menu board. 

2. Drive through establishments without food and beverage sales are limited to two service drive 

aisles. 

3. The development must have a unified architectural theme. 

4. The development shall have a plaza or prominent architectural feature at the corner of Rock 

Springs. Road and Lester Road. Examples include: statue, fountain, corner entrance, clock tower) 

5. Outdoor seating encouraged at restaurant(s). 

6. The development must have at least two separate buildings, each building shall have a footprint 

not greater than 15,000 square feet floor area. 

7. Driveways must be at least 50 feet away from the southeastern corner of the development. 

8. Building frontage along Rock Springs Road and Lester Road must resemble store fronts with 

windows and either faux or real entrances. 

9. If any conflict occurs between the above design standards and the LDC, the above standards shall 

apply. 

 

D. Terms of Expiration for this PUD shall be as follows: 

 

If a Final Development Plan associated with the PUD district has not been approved by the City within 

three years, and site development has not commenced within four years after approval of these Master 

Plan provisions, the approval of the Master Plan provisions will expire. At such time, the City Council 

may: 145



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

VBRO ENTERPRISES – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

 

1. Permit a single six-month extension for submittal of the required Final Development Plan; 

2. Allow the PUD zoning designation to remain on the property pending resubmittal of new 

Master Plan provisions and any conditions of approval; or 

3. Rezone the property to a more appropriate zoning classification. 

 
E.    The requisite Master Plan shall be submitted with or as part of the Preliminary Development Plan 

application. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed Planned Unit Development zoning of the 
property is consistent with the proposed Commercial (Max. 25% Floor Area Ratio) Future Land Use designation. 
Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies.  
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:   The proposed rezoning will not generate any residential development and, 
thus, will not have an impact on public schools. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 

public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on January 12, 2018.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
Planning Commission, February 13, 2018 (5:30 pm) 
City Council February 21, 2018 (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 
City Council, March 7, 2018 (1:30 pm) - 2nd Reading 
 
DULY ADVERTISED:  
January 26, 2018- Public Notice (Letters, Apopka Chief, Site Posting)  
February 2, 2018 - Public Notice (Apopka Chief)  

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 
and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending approval of the proposed Change of 
Zoning from “County” A-1 and “City” CN to “City” PUD for the property owned by VBRO Enterprises, Inc., 
and located at 41 E. Lester Road, 2038 Rock Springs Road, 2030 Rock Springs Road, 2022 Rock Springs Road, 
2014 Rock Springs Road, and 2006 Rock Springs Road. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on February 13, 2018, found the proposed amendment consistent 
with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas; and unanimously 
recommended approval of the proposed Change of Zoning from “County” A-1 and “City” CN to “City” PUD 
for the property owned by VBRO Enterprises, Inc., subject to the PUD development and zoning standards within 
the Staff Report. 
 
Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2630 and Hold Over for Second Reading and Adoption on March 7, 
2018. 
 
Note: This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 146



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

VBRO ENTERPRISES – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 
 

ZONING REPORT 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Low Density Residential A-1 Single Family House 

East (City) Agriculture AG Greenhouse Operations 

South (County) Low Medium Density Residential R-T Mobile Home Park 

West (County) Low Density Residential A-1 Single Family House 

 

LAND USE & TRAFFIC  

COMPATIBILITY: The subject property fronts and is accessed by a county collector, East 

Lester Road and a major arterial road, N. Rock Springs Road. 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  

COMPLIANCE:  The proposed Planned Unit Development zoning, with the proposed 

development and zoning standards in the Staff Report, is consistent 

with the proposed Future Land Use designation, “Commercial” (Max. 

25% FAR) and with the character of the surrounding area.  

Development Plans shall not exceed the intensity allowed in the 

adopted Future Land Use designation.  
     
BUFFERYARD  
REQUIREMENTS:   The CN zoning buffer requirement shall apply: 

 

1. Areas adjacent to all road rights-of-way shall provide a 

minimum ten-foot landscaped bufferyard. 

 

2. Areas adjacent to agricultural and residential uses or districts 

shall provide a minimum six-foot-high masonry wall within a 

ten-foot landscaped bufferyard. 

 

3. Areas adjacent to nonresidential uses or districts shall provide a 

minimum of five-foot landscaped bufferyard. 

 

4. Landscaping requirements for existing platted lots of record and 

structures may be approved in a lesser amount than required 

after review by the development review committee. 

 

  

147



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

VBRO ENTERPRISES – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

VBRO Enterprises 

3.36 +/- acres  
Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 

From: “County” Low Density Residential   
To: “City” Commercial 

Proposed Change of Zoning: 
From: “County” A-1 and “City” CN 

To: PUD 
Parcel ID #: 28-20-28-0000-00-018; 28-20-28-0220-00-010; 28-20-28-0220-00-020; 

 28-20-28-0220-00-030; 28-20-28-0220-00-040; 28-20-28-0220-00-050 

 
 

VICINITY MAP 
  

148



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

VBRO ENTERPRISES – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 
 

 

 
ADJACENT ZONING MAP 

  

149



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

VBRO ENTERPRISES – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 
 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES MAP 
  

 
 

150



ORDINANCE NO. 2630 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING THE 

ZONING FROM “COUNTY” A-1 AND “CITY” CN TO “CITY” PLANNED 

UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD/COMMERCIAL) FOR CERTAIN REAL 

PROPERTY LOCATED AT 41 E. LESTER ROAD, 2038 ROCK SPRINGS 

ROAD, 2030 ROCK SPRINGS ROAD, 2022 ROCK SPRINGS ROAD, 2014 

ROCK SPRINGS ROAD, AND 2006 ROCK SPRINGS ROAD, COMPRISING 

3.36 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY VBRO ENTERPRISES, INC.; 

PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest of 

the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the City; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as identified 

in Section I of this ordinance; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the proposed Planned Unit Development (PUD/Commercial) zoning has been 

found to be consistent with the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land 

Development Code. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows: 

 

 Section I. That the zoning classification of the following described property be designated as 

Planned Unit Development (PUD), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and with the 

following Master Plan provisions subject to the following zoning provisions: 

 

PUD DEVEOPMENT AND ZONING CONDITIONS:  That the zoning classification of the 

following described property be designated as Planned Unit Development (PUD), as defined in the 

Apopka Land Development Code, and with the following Master Plan provisions subject to the 

following zoning provisions: 

 
 

A. The uses permitted within the PUD district shall be: 
 

1. All permitted uses listed in the PO/I (Professional Office/Institutional) and CN (Commercial 

Neighborhood) district, except those listed as prohibited below. 

2. Restaurants, with or without outdoor seating, 

3. Adult day care, not to exceed 7,000 square feet net floor area. 

4. Retail businesses, except those listed as prohibited, 

5. Banks, 

6. Other uses which are similar and compatible to the uses permitted herein which adhere to the 

intent of the district and which are not prohibited as specified in this code. Use determination 

shall be based upon the community development director's recommendation. 

 

B. The uses prohibited within the PUD district shall be: 

 
151



ORDINANCE NO. 2630 

PAGE 2 

 

1. Tobacco Store 

2. Laundromat businesses 

3. Medical Marijuana Dispensary 

4. Veterinary and pet grooming facilities 

5. Motorized Vehicle Service Stations 

6. New or used motorized vehicle sales 

7. Plumbing Shops 

8. Appliance Stores 

9. Tattoo/Piercing Parlors 

10. Adult entertainment as defined in section 10-98 of the Apopka Municipal Code 

11. Auto title loan, paycheck advance facilities, and other "personal credit institutions" 

12. Pawn shops. 

13. Employment agencies. 

14. Modular, mobile and pre-fab home display and sales. 

15. Mini-warehouse and self-storage facilities. 

16. Outside storage of supplies, materials, equipment, merchandise, and activities. 

17. Motorized Truck stops or terminal as defined by this code. 

18. Flea markets (indoor and outdoor). 

19. Motorized automotive and transportation related businesses including new and used retail 

automotive part stores, mechanic shops, new and used car sales, boat sales, vehicle rental, etc. 

20. Bail bonds businesses. 

21. Blood banks, blood donor stations, plasmapheresis facilities, or other similar bio-donating 

uses; provided however, that this prohibition shall not include the practice of the following 

duly licensed professionals: physicians, dentists, orthodontists or pharmacists, or other health 

care practitioners, which may perform incidental bio-donating functions and procedures; 

provided, further, however, that this prohibition shall not apply to bona fide blood drives and 

similar events conducted by non-profit blood banks for a non-commercial purpose. 

22. Soup kitchens; provided however, that this prohibition shall not apply to the bona 

fide charitable activities of bona fide churches, synagogues, mosques and other places of 

worship that are occupied and in operation on the effective date of this ordinance. 

23. Outdoor parks and recreational areas. 

24. Bowling alleys, skating rinks, billiard parlors and similar amusement centers. 

25. Assisted Living Facilities. 

 

C. Development Design Standards for this PUD, in addition to the Development Design Standards 

set forth in the Land Development Code (LDC)shall be as follows: 

 

1. Drive through restaurants shall be limited to one drive aisle and no more than one menu 

board. 

2. Drive through establishments without food and beverage sales are limited to two service 

drive aisles. 

3. The development must have a unified architectural theme. 

4. The development shall have a plaza or prominent architectural feature at the corner of Rock 

Springs. Road and Lester Road. Examples include: statue, fountain, corner entrance, clock 

tower) 

5. Outdoor seating encouraged at restaurant(s). 

152



ORDINANCE NO. 2630 

PAGE 3 

 

6. The development must have at least two separate buildings, each building shall have a 

footprint not greater than 15,000 square feet floor area. 

7. Driveways must be at least 50 feet away from the southeastern corner of the development. 

8. Building frontage along Rock Springs Road and Lester Road must resemble store fronts with 

windows and either faux or real entrances. 

9. If any conflict occurs between the above design standards and the LDC, the above standards 

shall apply. 

 

D. Terms of Expiration for this PUD shall be as follows: 

 

If a Final Development Plan associated with the PUD district has not been approved by the City 

within three years, and site development has not commenced within four years after approval of 

these Master Plan provisions, the approval of the Master Plan provisions will expire. At such time, 

the City Council may: 

 

1. Permit a single six-month extension for submittal of the required Final Development Plan; 

2. Allow the PUD zoning designation to remain on the property pending resubmittal of new 

Master Plan provisions and any conditions of approval; or 
3. Rezone the property to a more appropriate zoning classification. 

 
E.    The requisite Master Plan shall be submitted with or as part of the Preliminary Development Plan 

application. 

 

Section II.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated 

in the City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby Planned Unit Development (PUD/CN), as defined in the 

Apopka Land Development Code0. 

 

Legal Description: 

 

Lots 1-5: Lying in Section 28, Township 20 South, range 28 East, and Apopka North 

7/11 Lot 1-5 recorded in Plat Book 7, Page, of the Public Records of Orange County, 

Florida. (Parcel Numbers 28-20-28-0220-00-010, 28-20-28-0220-00-020, 28-20-28-

0220-00-030, 28-20-28-0220-00-040, 28-20-28-0220-00-050). 

 

41 E. Lester Road: Commence at the Southeast corner of Section 28, Township 20 

South, Range 28 East, Orange County, Florida; thence run South 87 degrees 59 minutes 

49 seconds West along the South line of said Section 28 for a distance of 270.00 feet to 

a point; thence run North 01 degrees 45 minutes 16 seconds West for a distance of 30.00 

feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING; thence run South 87 degrees 59 minutes 49 

seconds West, along the North line of West Lester Road, a distance of 180.00 feet to a 

point; thence run South 01 degrees 45 minutes 16 West for a distance of 190.00 feet to 

a point; thence run North 80 degrees 05 minutes 34 seconds East for a distance of 182.05 

feet to a point; thence run South 01 degrees 45 minutes 16 seconds East for a distance 

of 215 feet to the POINT OF BEGIINNING and close; being a point on the North Right 

of Way of West Lester Road. All of said Parcel lies in Southeast quarter of said Section 

28.  

Contains: 3.36 +/- Acres 

153



ORDINANCE NO. 2630 

PAGE 4 

 

 Section III.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the 

City of Apopka, Florida. 

 

 Section IV.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is hereby 

authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, Florida, to 

include said designation.  The Community Development Director shall not accept an application for a 

development plan until such time the property owner addresses school capacity enhancement review 

with Orange County Public Schools. 

 

 Section V. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves to 

be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, force 

or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

Section VI.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.   

 

Section VII.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption of Ordinance No. 2629 
 
 

                                    
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: January 26, 2018 and February 23, 2018  

 

 
READ FIRST TIME: 

 
February 21, 2018 

 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
March 7, 2018 

 
 
 
 

 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor   

154



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: February 21, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Future Land Use Report 

X OTHER:  Ordinance  Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Future Land Use Map 

    Adjacent Uses Map 

    Ordinance No. 2631 
  
SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2631 - COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – 

FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – IGLESIA GETSEMANI, INC.  

    

REQUEST:  FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2631 - COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – 

SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – IGLESIA 

GETSEMANI, INC.; FROM “COUNTY” COMMERCIAL (3.0 FAR) TO “CITY” 

COMMERCIAL (MAX. FAR 0.25); AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND READING 

AND ADOPTION.  (PARCEL ID #: 06-21-28-7172-02-021) 
  
SUMMARY:  

 
OWNER/APPLICANT:   Iglesia Getsemani, Inc. 
 
LOCATION:  2575 W. Orange Blossom Trail 
 
EXISTING USE:   Place of worship and single-family residence  
 
CURRENT ZONING:   “County” C-1 
 
DEVELOPMENT POTENTIAL: Maximum 15,612 sq. ft. commercial use (.25 floor area ratio) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: “City” C-1 (Commercial) (Note: this Future Land Use Map amendment 

request is being processed along with a request to change the Zoning Map 
designation from “County” C-1 to “City” C-1 and an application for 
annexation.) 

 
TRACT SIZE:    1.43 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT UNDER  EXISTING: Up to 187,350 sq. ft. commercial use. (“County” 3.0 FAR) 
ZONING DISTRICT:                      PROPOSED: Up to 15,621 sq. ft. commercial use. (City” .025 FAR) 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\SMALL SCALE FLU AMENDS\2017\Iglesia/City Council 
 
 155



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 
SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – IGLESIA 
PAGE 2 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The applicant intends to annex the existing house of worship and single 
family residence to unite this parcel with the abutting eastern parcel, which is located within the City’s 
jurisdiction and is used for a parking lot by the Church.  
 
The annexation for the subject property was approved by the city council, for a second reading, on 
December 20, 2017 by ordinance 2613.  
 
A request to assign a Future Land Use Designation of “Commercial” is compatible with the designations 
assigned to abutting properties. City parcels to the east share this same Future Land Use designation. The 
commercial uses act as a transition space between the residential neighborhood to the north and the arterial 
road, and an industrial park to the south. The FLUM application covers approximately 1.43 acres.  
 
In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 
adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Land Use Report). Based on 
the findings of the Land Use report, the proposed FLUM amendment is compatible with the surrounding 
and nearby land uses and the character of the general area.  
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the subject property is 
consistent with the Commercial (max. 0.25 FAR) Future Land Use designation and the City’s proposed C-
1 Zoning. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  Because this request represents a change to a non-residential future 
land use designation and zoning classification, school capacity determination by Orange County Public 
Schools is not required. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 
any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on January 12, 2018.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
February 13, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 
February 21, 2018 - City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 
March 7, 2018 – City Council (1:30 pm) - 2nd Reading 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
January 26, 2018 -- Public Notice (Letters, Apopka Chief, Site Posting)  
February 2, 2018 -- Public Notice (Apopka Chief)  

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending approval of the proposed 
Future Land Use Designation of Commercial for the property owned by Iglesia Getsemani Inc. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on February 13, 2018, found the proposed Future Land Use 
amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding 
areas; and unanimously recommended approval of the change of Future Land Use Designation from 
“County” Commercial to “City” Commercial, subject to the findings of the Staff Report. 
 
Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2631 and Hold Over for Second Reading and Adoption on 
March 7, 2018. 
 
Note: This item is considered Legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 156



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 
SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – IGLESIA 
PAGE 3 
 

LAND USE REPORT 
 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 
II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 
North: Abutting the subject property to the north is W. Highland Avenue and the Plymouth Landing 

subdivision. 
 
West: West of the subject property is a series of commercial and single family residential properties in 

unincorporated orange county.     
 
South: State Route 441, W. Orange Blossom Trail is south and adjacent to the subject property. Across from 

this arterial road is an industrial park 
 
East: Abutting the subject property to the east are commercial properties, of which, two are owned by 

Iglesia Getsemani and are currently used for parking.  
 
Therefore, staff supports the proposed future land use changes. 

 
 Other Information:  
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 
 Area of Critical State Concern: No 
 DRI / FQD: No 
 
 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement 
on October 26, 2004.  The subject property is located within “Core Area” of the JPA.   
 
 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act:   The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the 
adopted Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  While located within the Wekiva River Basin 
Study Area, the subject property is not located within the Protection Area. The proposed amendment is 
consistent with the adopted mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) 
amendment has been reviewed against the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater 
resources.  The City of Apopka's adopted Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater 
run-off through the following policies: 
 

 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 
 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 
 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 
Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection shows that there are no karst features on this property. 
 
 Analysis of the character of the Property:   The proposed amendment is consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan, including Policy 3.1.i Commercial Future Land Use designation. 
 
 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: The proposed future 
land use designation for the Property is Commercial (max. FAR 0.25).  Based on the housing element of 
the City's Comprehensive Plan, this amendment will not increase the City’s future population. 
   

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) R-1 Single-family residence 

East (County) Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) R-1 Woodlands 

South (County) Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) P-D Assisted Living Facility 

West (City) Commercial (max 0.25 FAR) C-1 Strip Mall 

157



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 
SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – IGLESIA 
PAGE 4 
 
CALCULATIONS: 
ADOPTED (County designation): No impact on City population 
PROPOSED (City designation): No impact on City population 
 
 Housing Needs: This amendment will not negatively impact the housing needs as projected in the 
Comprehensive Plan.   
 
 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: Per policy 4.1 of the 
Conservation Element, a habitat study is required for developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  This 
site is less than ten acres.  A habitat study will not be required at the time of a development plan application.   
 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to 
Chapter 3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None; 81 GPD/Capita ; 81 GPD 
/ Capita 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka 
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  2,803  GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  2,335  GPD 
 

4. Capacity available:  Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation: 81  GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: 
None 

 
 Potable Water Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard: None; 177 GPD/Capita ; 177 
GPD / Capita 

  
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider:  City of Apopka 
  

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:    3,737  GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  3,114  GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177  GPD / Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177  GPD / Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 
None 

 
8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area:  Yes 

 
 158



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 
SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – IGLESIA 
PAGE 5 
 
 Solid Waste 
 

1. Facilities serving the site:  City of Apopka 
 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of 
Apopka 

 
3. Projected LOS under existing designation:   37  lbs/  day 

 
4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:   31  lbs /  day 

 
5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None  
 
 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 
 
 Infrastructure Information 
 
 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 
 
 Permitting agency: St. John’s River Water Management District 
 
 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  9.353  MGD 
 
 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33.696  MGD 
 
 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 
 
 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property: Yes 
 
 Drainage Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site:   None 
 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation: 100 year – 24 hour design storm  
 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year – 24 hour design storm 
 

4. Improvement/expansion: On site retention / detention ponds 
 
 Recreation 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System ;  3 acre / 1000 capita 
 

2. Projected facility under existing designation:   N/A  acres 
 

3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  N/A acres 
 

4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 
amendment: N/A 
 

This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 
 
 
 
 

159



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 
SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – IGLESIA 
PAGE 6 
 
 

 
Iglesia El Getsemani, Inc.  

1.43 +/- acres  
Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 

From: “County” Commercial 
To: “City” Commercial 

Proposed Change of Zoning: 
From: “County” C-1 

To: “City” C-1 
Parcel ID #: 06-21-28-7172-02-021 

 

VICINITY MAP 

160



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 
SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – IGLESIA 
PAGE 7 
 

ADJACENT ZONING MAP 

  

161



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 
SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – IGLESIA 
PAGE 8 
 
 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
 

 

 

 

 

 162



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 
SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – IGLESIA 
PAGE 9 
 
 

 

ADJACENT USES MAP 
 
 

163



ORDINANCE NO. 2631 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING THE 

FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM “COUNTY” COMMERCIAL 

TO “CITY” COMMERCIAL FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 

GENERALLY LOCATED NORTH OF WEST ORANGE BLOSSOM 

TRAIL AND SOUTH OF HIGHLAND AVENUE, COMPRISING 1.43 

ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY IGLESIA EL GETSEMANI, 

INC.; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE.  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka adopted the Apopka Comprehensive 
Plan by Ordinance No. 653 on October 2, 1991, pursuant to Section 163.3184, Florida Statutes 
and most recently amended it by Ordinance No. 2619 adopted on February 7, 2018; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka’s local planning agency (Planning Commission) has, in 
preparation of the amended version of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan, analyzed the proposed 
amendment pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, F.S., found it to be consistent with the intent of the 
Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and held public hearings providing for full public participation. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I. Purpose and Intent. 
 
 This Ordinance is enacted to carry out the purpose and intent of, and exercise the authority 
set out in, the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation 
Act, Sections 163.3184 and 163.3187, Florida Statutes. 
 
 Section II. Future Land Use Element. 
  
 Page 1-15 (Map 1-3) of the Future Land Use Element of the City of Apopka 
Comprehensive Plan, as most recently amended by Ordinance No. 2619, is amended in its entirety 
to change the land use from “County” Commercial (Max. FAR 3.0) to “City” Commercial (Max. 
0.25 FAR), for certain real property located at 2575 W. Orange Blossom Trail, comprising 1.43 
acres more or less, (Parcel No. 06-21-28-7172-02-021); as further described in Exhibit “A” 
attached hereto. 
 
 Section III. Applicability and Effect. 
 
 The applicability and effect of the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan shall be as provided 
by the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation Act, 
Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215, Florida Statutes. 
 
 Section IV.  Severability. 
 
 If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by any court of competent 
jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, then all remaining provisions and 
portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

164



Ordinance No. 2631 

Page 2 

 
 Section V.  The Community Development Director is hereby authorized to amend the 
Future Land Use to comply with this ordinance. 

 
 
 Section VI. Effective Date. 
 
 This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 
 
ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, this 
  7th   day of March, 2018 
 

 
READ FIRST TIME:  

 
February 21, 2018 

 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:  

 
 
March 7, 2018 

 
 
 ______________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                         
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR HEARING: January 2, 2018 

 

165



Ordinance No. 2631 

Page 3 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
Iglesia Getsemani 

1.43 +/- acres  
Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 

From: “County” Commercial  
To: “City” Commercial 

Proposed Change of Zoning: 
From: “County” C-1 

To: “City” C-1 
Parcel ID #: 06-21-28-7172-02-021 

 

166



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: February 21, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

X OTHER:  Ordinance   Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Uses Map 

    Ordinance No. 2632 
  

SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2632 – CHANGE OF ZONING - IGLESIA GETSEMANI, 
INC. 

    
REQUEST:  FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2632 – CHANGE OF ZONING FROM 

“COUNTY” C-1 (COMMERCIAL) TO “CITY” C-1 (COMMERCIAL) FOR 
PROPERTY OWNED BY IGLESIA GETSEMANI, INC.; AND HOLD OVER 
FOR SECOND READING AND ADOPTION. (PARCEL ID #: 06-21-28-7172-02-
021) 

  
SUMMARY:  

 
OWNER/APPLICANT:  Iglesia Getsemani, Inc.  
 
LOCATION:  2575 W. Orange Blossom Trail 
 
EXISTING USE:   Place of worship and single family residence   
 
CURRENT ZONING:   “County” C-1 
 
DEVELOPMENT POTENTAIL: Maximum 15,612 sq. ft. office use (.25 floor area ratio) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: “City” C-1 (Commercial) (Note: this Change of Zoning request is being 

processed along with a request to amend the Future Land Use from 
“County” Commercial (3.0 FAR) to “City” Commercial (Max. 0.25 
FAR) and a request for annexation.  

 
TRACT SIZE:    1.43 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT UNDER EXISTING: Up to 187,350 sq. ft. commercial use (“County” 3.0 FAR) 
ZONING DISTRICT:                          ROPOSED: Up to 15,612 sq. ft. (“City” .025 FAR) 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
  

167



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

IGLESIA GETSEMANI – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: Presently, the subject property has not yet been assigned a “City” zoning category. 
The site is used as a church. The applicant is requesting the City assign a zoning classification of C-1 (Retail 
Commercial District) to the property.   Abutting the eastern parcel line for the subject sites is a parcel that is owned 
by the same church, which is currently used as the parking lot. 
 
The annexation of the subject property was reviewed and approved by the City Council, on December 20, 2017 
through ordinance number 2613. 
 
The place of worship, located on the subject property, is in unincorporated Orange County. The parking lot for this 
religious use is one parcel to the east, and the parcel is in the city limits. This parking lot has “City” C-1 zoning and 
Commercial Future Land Use. The existing zoning and Future Land Use designations of Iglesias’s parking lot will 
complement the zoning and Future Land Use designations for the place of worship.  
 
A request to assign a change of zoning to C-1 (Retail Commercial District) is compatible to the adjacent zoning 
classifications and with the general character of abutting properties and surrounding area. The change of zoning 
request is being processed in conjunction with a future land use amendment from “County” Commercial to “City” 
Commercial. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent with 
the proposed Office (Max. 25% Floor Area Ratio) Future Land Use designation and the proposed City C-1 (Retail 
Commercial District) zoning classification. Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future 
Land Use policies.  
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: The proposed future land use change will result in an insignificant increase 
(less than 9) in the number of residential units which could be developed at the subject property.  Therefore, the 
property is exempt from school capacity enhancement per the School Interlocal Planning Agreement. 
  
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any public 

hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on January 12, 2018. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
February 13, 2018 Planning Commission, (5:30 pm) 
February 21, 2018 City Council, (7:00 pm) - 1

st
 Reading 

March 7, 2018 City Council, (1:30 pm) - 2nd Reading 
 
DULY ADVERTISED:  
January 26, 2018 - Public Notice (Letters, Apopka Chief, Site Posting)  
February 2, 2018 - Public Notice (Apopka Chief)  

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and 
compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending approval of the proposed Change of Zoning 
from “County” C-1 to “City” C-1 for the property owned by Iglesia Getsemani, Inc., and located at 2575 W. Orange 
Blossom Trail.  
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on February 13, 2018, found the proposed amendment consistent with 
the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas; and unanimously 
recommended approval of the proposed Change of Zoning from “County” C-1 to “City” C-1 for the property 
owned by Iglesia Getsemani, Inc. 
 
Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2632 and Hold Over for Second Reading and Adoption. 
 
Note: This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 
and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 

168



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

IGLESIA GETSEMANI – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 
 

ZONING REPORT 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Low R-2 Single Family Home Subdivision 

East (City) Commercial C-1 Parking Area/Commercial Structure 

South (City) Industrial I-1 Industrial Park 

West (County) Commercial C-3 Office/Warehouse 

 

LAND USE & TRAFFIC  

COMPATIBILITY: The subject property fronts and is accessed by a county collector (W. 

Highland Road) and an arterial road (W. Orange Blossom Trail).    

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  

COMPLIANCE:  The proposed C-1 zoning is consistent with the proposed Future 

Land Use designation, “Commercial” (Max. 25% FAR) and with the 

character of the surrounding area. Development Plans shall not 

exceed the density allowed in the adopted Future Land Use 

designation.  

C-1 DISTRICT  
REQUIREMENTS:  
      

Floor Area Ratio (%): 25% max. 

Minimum Site Area: 10,000 sq. ft. 

Minimum Lot Width 100 ft.  

Setbacks: Front: 10 ft. (From property line) 

 Rear: 10 ft.  

 Side: 10 ft. 

 Corner 15 ft.  

Based on the above zoning standards, the subject parcel does meet 
code requirements for the C-1 (Commercial) district. 

 

ALLOWABLE USES:   
1. Any nonresidential permitted use in the PO/I or CN districts 

 

2.  Retail establishments 

 

3.  Banks, savings and loan and other financial institutions 

 

4.  Bowling alleys, skating rinks, billiard parlors and similar 

amusement centers, provided such activities and facilities are 

enclosed within a sound-proof building 

 

5.  Churches and schools 

 

169



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

IGLESIA GETSEMANI – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

6.  Day nurseries, kindergartens and other child care centers 

 

7.  Drive-in restaurants, with property lines no closer than 200 

feet from any residential districts or uses 

 

8.  Florist shops, the products of which are displayed and sold 

wholly within an enclosed building 

 

9. Hotels, motels, bed and breakfast facilities 

 

10. Personal service establishments such as barbershops, beauty 

parlors, professional and other offices, parking garages and 

lots, laundry and dry cleaning pickup station, self-service 

coin-operated laundry and dry cleaning establishments, shoe 

shine and repair, tailoring, travel services, watch and clock 

repair and locksmiths, etc 

 

11. Post offices 

 

12. Restaurants 

 

13. Theaters, enclosed in structures 

 

14. Clubs and lodges 

 

15. Funeral parlors, when the sole use of the facility shall be for 

funeral rites 

 

16. Animal clinics for the treatment of small animals, excluding 

farm animals, but including those animals no larger than a 

dog, commonly kept as pets in a residence, provided the care, 

treatment or housing of such animals shall not be allowed on 

the outside 

 

17. Other uses which are similar and compatible to the uses 

permitted herein which adhere to the intent of the district and 

which are not prohibited as specified in this code. Use 

determination shall be based upon the community 

development director's recommendation 

  

170



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

IGLESIA GETSEMANI – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 
 

 
Iglesia El Getsemani, Inc.  

1.43 +/- acres  
Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 

From: “County” Commercial 
To: “City” Commercial 

Proposed Change of Zoning: 
From: “County” C-1 

To: “City” C-1 
Parcel ID #: 12-21-28-6896-00-181  

 VICINITY MAP 

171



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

IGLESIA GETSEMANI – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

ADJACENT ZONING MAP 

  

172



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

IGLESIA GETSEMANI – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 
 

 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
 

 

 

 

173



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

IGLESIA GETSEMANI – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 
 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES MAP 
 

174



ORDINANCE NO. 2632 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA CHANGING THE 
ZONING FROM “COUNTY” C-1 (COMMERCIAL) TO “CITY” C-1 
(COMMERCIAL) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2575 W. 
ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL, COMPRISING 1.43 ACRES, MORE OR LESS 
AND OWNED BY IGLESIA GETSEMANI; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS 
TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, 
CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest of the 
public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Iglesia Getsemani has requested a change in zoning on said property as identified in 

Section I of this ordinance; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed C-1 zoning has been found to be consistent with the City of Apopka 
Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land Development Code. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, 
as follows: 
 
 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated in the 
City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby C-1, as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code.  
 
 Legal Description: 
 

MAP OF PLYMOUTH B/17 THE W 100 FT OF S 300 FT OF LOT 2 N OF HWY BLK B 

& BEG NW COR LOT 2 RUN S 345.18 FT TH S 70 DEG E 100 FT TH N 380.25 FT TO 

N LINE LOT 2 TH W 94.21 FT TO POB BLK B 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Parcel ID No: 06-21-28-7172-02-021 

Contains: 1.43 +/- Acres 175



ORDINANCE NO. 2632 

PAGE 2 

 

 Section II.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the City 

of Apopka, Florida. 

 

 Section III.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is hereby 

authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, Florida, to 

include said designation.   

 

 Section IV. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves to 

be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, force 

or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

 Section V.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.   

 

 Section VI.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon the effective date the Small Scale Future 

Land Use Ordinance No. 2631. 

  
 

                     

  
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: February 2, 2018 

 

READ FIRST TIME: February 21, 2018 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
March 7, 2018 

 
 
 
  
Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

176



CITY OF APOPKA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: February 21, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

X OTHER: PUD Master Plan   Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Uses Map 

 
   Existing Use Map 

Ordinance No. 2637 

    Ex. A – Phase 1 Master Plan  

    Ex. B – Phase 1 Development Standards 

    Ex. C – Phase 1 Landscape/Rec. Plan 

    Ex. D – Phase 2 Master Plan 

    Ex. E – Phase 2 Development Standards 

    Ex. F – Phase 2 Landscape Plan 
  

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE NO. 2637 - CHANGE OF ZONING – LAKE MARSHALL 
SUBDIVISION, PHASES 1 AND 2 

 

REQUEST: FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2637 – CHANGE OF ZONING – 

LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION, PHASES 1 AND 2, FROM PLANNED 

UNIT DEVELOPMENT, MIXED-EC, AND I-1 TO PLANNED UNIT 

DEVELOPMENT (NEW MASTER PLAN); AND HOLD OVER FOR 

SECOND READING AND ADOPTION. (PARCEL ID #S:  28-21-08-0000-00-

005; 28-21-08-0000-00-043; 28-21-17-0000-00-014) 
  
SUMMARY: 

 
OWNERS:    City of Apopka, James D & Deborah M. Lyda, and Citizens Bank of 

Florida 
 
APPLICANT:    Appian Engineering, LLC 
 
LOCATION:  South of Marshall Lake and West of SR 451 
 
EXISTING USE: Vacant 
 
FLUM DESIGNATION:  Low Density Residential, Mixed-Use 
 
CURRENT ZONING: PUD (Planned Unit Development), Mixed-EC (Mixed Employment 

Center), and I-1 (Restricted Industrial)   
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT: 301 single family homes; developed in two phases 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Planned Unit Development (PUD)  
 
TRACT SIZE:    154.18 +/- acres 
 

FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 

 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 177



CITY COUNCIL –FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 
 

SUMMARY:  The subject property is approximately 154.17 acres in size and is zoned PUD (Planned 

Unit Development), Mixed-EC (Mixed Employment Center) and I-1 (Restricted Industrial), and a has a 

future land use designation of Low Density Residential and Mixed-Use. The subject property is 

comprised of three parcels and is located south of Marshall Lake and west of SR 451. The owners of the 

properties are the City of Apopka, James D. and Deborah M. Lyda, and Citizens Bank of Florida. Of the 

154.17 acres, the City of Apopka owns 103 acres, Citizens Bank of Florida owns 39.9 acres, and Mr. and 

Mrs. Lyda own 11.28 acres. The proposed change of zoning to PUD is being requested by a representative 

of the prospective developer, Royal Oak Homes who proposes to construct 301 single-family units in two 

phases on the three parcels.  

 

In 2005, 83.28 acres of the property now owned by the City was originally proposed to be developed into 

a 90 unit single-family subdivision known as Lake Marshall Preserve. This development received City 

Commission approval and subsequently was never developed. In 2007, the City of Apopka purchased the 

property. In 2017 after an advertised bid process, Royal Oak Homes agreed to purchase the property from 

the City contingent upon City Commission approval of a PUD rezoning and Preliminary Development 

Plan for the proposed development.  

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  The PUD Master Plan and Preliminary Development Plan propose 

development of the property in two phases as a private, gated residential community with a total of 301 

single-family homes. The subject property is located south of Marshall Lake and west of SR 451. The 

surrounding properties consist primarily of single-family residential, and agricultural uses. The 

development is proposed to be accessed via Johns Road. Adjacent to the west of the subject property is 

the Breckenridge subdivision. A gated access for emergency vehicle access will be provided between the 

two subdivisions. This access point will only be for emergency vehicles. In response to the Breckenridge 

homeowners association, pedestrian access will not be permitted between the two subdivisions.  

 

A.  Lot Size. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The developer is proposing 55-foot, 60-foot and 75-foot wide lots with a minimum average lot area of 

7,425 square feet for the 55-foot wide lots, 8,100 square feet for the 60-foot wide lots, and 10,875 square 

feet for the 75-foot wide lots. The minimum lot depth is proposed at 135-feet. The minimum living area is 

proposed at 1,800 square feet in Phase 1 and 1,600 square feet in Phase 2. Both phases of the subdivision 

will be accessed via Johns Road. Johns Road will terminate at the main entrance of the development, 

which will be accessed via a gate. The developer will be dedicating a 0.27 acre portion of right-of-way 

along Johns Road to the City. The subdivision will consist of private roads and infrastructure that is 

owned and maintained by the homeowners association.  

 

B. Deviations. The applicant is requesting three deviations to the City’s required development standards.  

For a PUD master plan, a deviation from the City’s Land Development Code does not represent a 

variance but a development standard or zoning condition unique to and approved as part of the Planned 

Typical Lot 

Width 
Number of units 

Percentage of 

development 

Typical lot area 

(minimum size) 

55-feet 119 39% 7,425 square feet 

60-feet 149 50% 8,100 square feet 

75-feet 33 11% 10,875 square feet  

Total 301            100%  

178



CITY COUNCIL –FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 
 

Unit Development zoning. PUD’s are required to satisfy the requirements of the land Development 

Code unless the City Council finds that, based on substantial evidence, a proposed alternative 

development guideline is adequate to protect to the public health safety, and welfare.  Any deviations 

must be consistent with the policies of the Comprehensive Plan. 

 

1. Typical Lot Width Standard. The first deviation is to Land Development Code Section 

2.02.18.D.11, which requires a minimum lot size within a PUD to be 70-feet in width, and to 

have a minimum site area of 7,500 square feet. In addition to 75-foot wide lots, the developer is 

proposing 60-foot and 55-foot wide lots with minimum lots sizes of 8,100 square feet and 7,425 

square feet respectively.  

 

2.    Garage Standards. The second deviation requested is from Section 3.2.1 of the Development 

Design Guidelines which requires front-entry garages to be setback a minimum of thirty (30) 

feet from the front property line. The Master Plan provides a 25-foot setback for front entry 

garages. Based on the shape of the property and the lot yield that the applicant has indicated is 

necessary for financial feasibility, a 25-foot garage setback will potentially result in a larger back 

yard .  

 

3. Architectural Design.  The third deviation requested is from Section 3.2.1 of the Development 

Design Guidelines, an architectural appearance standard, which requires front entry garages to 

be flush with or behind the primary residential façade. The applicant is proposing three garage 

types – protruding, flush, and recessed. According to the applicant, side entry garages are not an 

option on 55-foot, 60-foot, and 75-foot wide lots. The applicant contends that providing the three 

garage options will help to break up the monotony of each home being offset the same distance 

from the sidewalk.  

 

4. Architectural Design. The fourth deviation requested is from Section 3.2.1 of the Development 

Design Guidelines, which requires front entry garages to comprise no more than 50 percent of 

the length of a residential structure’s frontage. The applicant is requesting to permit all 60-foot 

wide lots with 50-foot wide homes to allow for the garage to cover a maximum of 60 percent of 

the length of the front primary façade only in the case a three (3) car garage is selected by the 

homebuyer. The Development Design Guidelines allow a three car front-entry garage to 

comprise more than 50 percent of the front façade length if one (1) habitable floor is located 

over the majority of the garage, or (2) an architectural feature such as dormers that give an 

appearance of an occupied floor above the garage are provided. The prospective homebuilder is 

currently finalizing the architectural package for the development, and is not certain whether the 

homes with three (3) car garages will have a habitable floor over the majority of the garage or an 

architectural feature that gives the appearance of habitable space such as a dormer will be 

provided.  

 

C. Justification for Deviations\Development Standard.  The following justifications are provided for the 

three deviations that are proposed. 

 

1. An improved recreation amenities package is proposed. The recreation package will consist of a 

cabana with restrooms, a swimming pool, a playground, and a mixed-use active field at a 

minimum. In addition the developer is dedicating a tract in Phase 1 adjacent to Marshall Lake as 

a Community Lake Park that will have a community dock, and a 1.03 acre open space tract 

across the street from this park. In the Phase 2 area, two tracts will be dedicated as a park/open 179



CITY COUNCIL –FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

space area, and a 15.12 acre Conservation area will also be dedicated. 

 

2. Protection of Environmentally Sensitive Areas and Preservation of Open Space.  The PUD 

master plan protects wetlands within the northwest and northeast corners of the project 

boundaries, containing approximately 19 acres within Tracts “K” and “L” of Phase I.  Open 

space is preserved through approximately 15 acres within Tract “I” of Phase 2.   

 

3. Abutting Site Characteristics. Fifty-foot landscape buffer. An existing 50-foot landscape buffer 

occurs along the western and northern project line within the Breckenridge plat. This buffer is 

noted as a tract on the Breckenridge plat. The Lake Marshall development will not be visible 

from the homes within Breckenridge and separation between the larger lots in Breckenridge and 

the smaller lots within Lake Marshall PUD will be provided.  S.R. 451 (tollway) abuts a 

significant portion of the eastern project line, making the area less attractive for large lot 

residential development. 

 

4. No other residential neighborhoods will be impacted by the development. The development 

abuts SR 451 to the east and Marshall Lake to the north. As mentioned above, a 50-foot wide 

landscape buffer will separate the Breckenridge development from the subject property. The 

development will not visible from the surrounding properties.  

 

5. The Master Plan proposes a diversity of lot sizes-- (55-feet, 60-feet, and 75-feet lot widths). 

 

6. Access to the site is limited because of lake and wetland systems to the north and an odd shape 

parcel to the south.  The southern end of the property is also blocked by a wetland system.  

Therefore, access to the property is severely limited, leaving Johns Road as the only reasonable 

access point without impacting environmentally sensitive areas. 

 

7. The Master Plan proposes a gated residential community with private roads and infrastructure.  

 

TRANSPORTATION: The traffic generated by this project will cause a reduced level of service at the 

intersection of Johns Road and Bradshaw Road and the intersection of Bradshaw Road and Ocoee Apopka 

Road. The intersection of Johns Road and Bradshaw Road will require the following roadway 

improvements to be constructed prior to the issuance of the 87th Certificate of Occupancy for Phase 1, 

Phase 2, or a combination of Phase 1 and Phase 2: 

 
1.  A 260- foot northbound left turn lane; 
 
2.  A 185-foot southbound right turn lane; and 
 
3.  A 150-foot eastbound turn lane. 

 

The intersection of Bradshaw Road and Ocoee Apopka Road is projected to experience significant delays 

at the stop sign with the addition project traffic and committed traffic on both roadways. While existing 

conditions do not warrant a signal, the intersection may meet warrants in the future. It is recommended 

the Developer be required to conduct a signal warrant analysis for the intersection of Bradshaw Road and 

Ocoee Apopka Road prior to the issuance of the 251
st
 Certificate of Occupancy. If it is determined a signal 

is warranted, then a proportionate share value shall be coordinated between the City and the Developer to 

design and install a traffic signal at the intersection within a year of the issuance of the final Certificate of 
180



CITY COUNCIL –FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 
 

Occupancy. 

 

PUD RECOMMENDATIONS:  That the zoning classification of the following described property be 

designated as Planned Unit Development (PUD), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and 

with the following Master Plan provisions subject to the following zoning provisions: 
 

A. The uses permitted within the PUD district shall be single-family residential uses. 
B. Terms of Expiration for this PUD shall be as follows: 

 

If a Final Development Plan associated with the PUD district has not been approved by the City 

within three years, and site development has not commenced within four years after approval of 

these Master Plan provisions, the approval of the Master Plan provisions will expire. At such time, 

the City Council may: 

 

1. Permit a single six-month extension for submittal of the required Final Development Plan; 

 

2. Allow the PUD zoning designation to remain on the property pending resubmittal of new 

Master Plan provisions and any conditions of approval; or 

 

3. Rezone the property to a more appropriate zoning classification. 

  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed use of the property is consistent with the 

Low Density Residential and Mixed-Use Future Land Use designations and is consistent with the Land 

Development Code.   

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  An application for School capacity determination and a mitigation 

agreement has been submitted to OCPS by the application.  A plat will not be recorded by the City until 

such time the School Board approves a school capacity mitigation agreement. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: Pursuant to Section 7 of the Joint Planning Area agreement, 

notification to Orange County is not required for a rezoning application as the subject parcels are not 

adjacent to unincorporated Orange County.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

February 13, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

February 21, 2018 - City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 

March 7, 2018 – City Council (1:30 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

February 2, 2018 – Public Notice; Letter, Poster 

February 23, 2018 – Public Notice (Apopka Chief) 

  

181



CITY COUNCIL –FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed rezoning to Planned Unit Development (PUD), 

PUD Master Plan, and the Preliminary Development Plan consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and 

Land Development Code and recommends approval of the Lake Marshall Subdivision Planned Unit 

Development Master Plan and Preliminary Development Plan. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting held on February 13, 2018, found the proposed rezoning 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code; and recommended approval (4-2) 

of the rezoning of the subject parcels from Planned Unit Development (PUD), Mixed-EC (Mixed 

Employment Center) and I-1 (Restricted Industrial) to Planned Unit Development/Residential (PUD); and 

approval of the PUD Master Plan\Preliminary Development Plan based on the findings and facts 

presented in the staff report and exhibits. 

 

Recommended Motion: Accept the First Reading of Ordinance 2637 and Hold it Over for Second 

Reading and Adoption on March 7, 2018; and approval of the PUD Master Plan\Preliminary Development 

Plan based on the findings and facts presented in the staff report and exhibits. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be 

incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

182



CITY COUNCIL –FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 
 

ZONING REPORT 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Low Density Residential (0-5 du/ac) R-3 Marshall Lake, Lake Doe 

Estates subdivision  

East (City) Industrial, None assigned  (SR 451 right-of-way)  I-1, no zoning 

assigned  

Existing agricultural use 

(John’s Nursery), SR 451 

right-of-way  

South (City) Low Density Residential (0-5 du/ac), 

Commercial (max 0.25 FAR) 

R-1A, C-1 Vacant property, SR 451 

retention pond 

West (City) Low Density Residential (0-5 du/ac) R-1A, R-2, 

PUD  

Breckenridge residential 

subdivision buffer tract,  

vacant property   

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The property is accessed via Johns Road, which connects to South 

Bradshaw Road. Internal streets are private and are proposed to be 
owned and maintained by a yet to be established homeowners 
association. Future land use designations and zoning categories 
assigned to properties to the north, south, east, and west are 
predominantly residential.   

 
COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed PUD zoning is compatible with policies set forth in 

the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
ALLOWABLE 
USES:  Single-family residential uses as set forth within the Planned Unit 

Development Master Plan. 
  

183



CITY COUNCIL –FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 
 

 
Project: LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION, PHASES 1 & 2 

Owned by:  City of Apopka; James D. & Deborah Lyda; and Citizens Bank of Florida 

Located: North and south of Johns Road; west of SR 451 

Parcel ID#s: 08-21-28-0000-00-005; 08-21-28-0000-00-043; 17-21-28-0000-00-014 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

  

184



CITY COUNCIL –FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 
 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 
 

 

  

185



CITY COUNCIL –FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 10 
 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 186



CITY COUNCIL –FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 11 
 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 

 
 

 

187



ORDINANCE 2637 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING THE 

ZONING FROM PUD (PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT), MIXED-EC 

(MIXED EMPLOYMENT CENTER), AND I-1 (RESTRICTED INDUSTRIAL) 

TO PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT/RESIDENTIAL (PUD) FOR 

CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED SOUTH OF 

MARSHALL LAKE AND WEST OF SR 451, COMPRISING 154.18 ACRES 

MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY THE CITY OF APOPKA, JAMES D. & 

DEBORAH M. LYDA, AND CITIZENS BANK OF FLORIDA; PROVIDING 

FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, 

SEVERABILITY,CONFLICTS,AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest 
of the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the 
City; and 
 
 WHEREAS,  The City of Apopka, James D. & Deborah M. Lyda, and Citizens Bank of 
Florida has requested a change in zoning on said property as identified in Section I of this ordinance; 
and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed Planned Unit Development (PUD) zoning has been found to be 
consistent with the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land Development 
Code. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property be designated as 
Planned Unit Development (PUD), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and with the 
following Master Site Plan provisions subject to the following zoning provisions: 
 

A. The uses permitted within the PUD district shall be:  single family homes and associated 
accessory uses or structures consistent with land use and development standards 
established for the PUD district except where otherwise addressed in this ordinance and 
the Master Site Plan. 

 
B.   Development of the property shall occur consistent with the Master Site Plan set forth in 

Exhibit “A”.  If a development standard or zoning regulation is not addressed within 
Exhibit “A”, development shall comply with the PUD zoning standards set forth in the 
Land Development Code.  Where any development standard conflicts between the Lake 
Marshall Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan and the Land Development Code, 
the Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan shall prevail.  Any proposed revision to 
the Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan shall be evaluated and processed pursuant 
to Section 2.02.18.N. (Master Plan revision), LDC. 

 
C.   If a Final Development Plan associated with the PUD district has not been approved by 

the City within three years after approval of these Master Plan provisions, the approval of 
the Master Plan\Preliminary Development Plan provisions will expire.   At such time, the 
City Council may: 

 
1. Permit a single six-month extension for submittal of the required Final Development 

Plan; 

188



ORDINANCE NO. 2637 

PAGE 2 

 

 
 

 

2. Allow the PUD zoning designation to remain on the property pending resubmittal of 
new Master Site Plan provisions and any conditions of approval; or 

 
3.  Rezone the property to a more appropriate zoning classification. 

 
D.   The intersection of Johns Road and Bradshaw Road will be significantly impacted by the 

addition of traffic generated by this project. Design plans for the following improvements 
will be included in the Final Development Plan for Phase 2 of the development.  The 
roadway improvements shall be constructed by the developer prior to the issuance of the 
87th Certificate of Occupancy for Phase 1, Phase 2, or a combination of Phase 1 and Phase 
2, according to City standards: 

 
1.  A 260-foot northbound left turn lane; 
 
2.  A 185-foot southbound right turn lane; and 
 
3.  A150-foot eastbound turn lane. 

 
E. The intersection of Bradshaw Road and Ocoee Apopka Road will be significantly 

impacted by the addition of traffic generated by this project. Prior to the issuance of the 
251st Certificate of Occupancy, the developer will conduct a signal warrant analysis for 
the intersection of Bradshaw Road and Ocoee Apopka Road. Since Ocoee-Apopka Road 
is an Orange County controlled road and Bradshaw Road is a City controlled road, the 
City, in cooperation with the County, will determine if a signal is warranted. If a signal is 
warranted, then a proportionate share value shall be coordinated between the City and the 
Developer to design and install a traffic signal at the intersection within a year of the 
issuance of the final Certificate of Occupancy. 

 
Section II.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated 

in the City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby Planned Unit Development (PUD/R-1A) as defined in the 
Apopka Land Development Code. 
 

Legal Description: Attachment “A” 
 

 Section III.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the 
City of Apopka, Florida. 
 
 Section IV.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is hereby 
authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, Florida, to 
include said designation. 
 
 Section V. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves 
to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, 
force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 
 
 
 Section VI.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed.  
 
 

189



ORDINANCE NO. 2637 

PAGE 3 

 

 
 Section VII.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon the date of adoption. 
 
 

                     
 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: February 2, 2018     
    February 23, 2018 
 
  

 
READ FIRST TIME:  February 21, 2018 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     March 7, 2018 

190



ORDINANCE NO. 2637 

PAGE 4 

 

ATTACHMENT “A” 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

Parcel ID Nos.: 28-21-08-0000-00-005; 28-21-08-0000-00-043; 28-21-17-0000-00-014 
Combined Acreage: 154.18 +/- Acres 

 
OCPA PARCEL ID 28-21-08-0000-00-005: 
 
FIRST AMERICAN TITLE FILE NUMBER:  2037-3759052 - THE LAND 
REFERRED TO HEREIN BELOW IS SITUATED IN THE COUNTY OF ORANGE, 
STATE OF FLORIDA, AND IS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
PARCEL 1:  
 
NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, 
RANGE 28 EAST, LESS:  BEGIN AT SOUTHWEST CORNER OF NORTHEAST 
1/4 OF SOUTHWEST 1/4, SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, 
RUN NORTH 343 FEET, EAST 400 FEET, SOUTH 343 FEET, WEST 400 FEET 
TO POINT OF BEGINNING, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA.  
 
PARCEL 2:  
 
WEST 1/2 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, 
TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA.  
 
AND  
 
BEGIN AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE EAST HALF OF THE 
SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 21 
SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, RUN NORTH 89°33'48" EAST 950 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTH 00°30'54" WEST 35 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89°33'48" WEST 950 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 00°30'54" EAST 35 FEET TO POINT OF BEGINNING, 
ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA.   
 
AND  
 
THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4, ALSO 
THAT PORTION OF THE SOUTH 12 ACRES OF THE WEST HALF OF THE 
NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 SOUTH OF CENTER LINE OF 
LAKE, LESS THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PARCEL: BEGIN AT THE 
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE WEST HALF OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE 
SOUTHEAST 1/4, SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, RUN 
SOUTH 89°33'48" WEST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID WEST HALF 
328.92 FEET; THENCE NORTH 11°16'48" EAST 580 FEET TO THE CENTRAL 
LINE OF LAKE; THENCE SOUTH 44°53'28" EAST ALONG CENTRAL LINE OF 
LAKE, 306.45 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF SAID WEST HALF; THENCE 
SOUTH ALONG EAST LINE OF SAID WEST HALF 350 FEET TO POINT OF 
BEGINNING, SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ORANGE 
COUNTY, FLORIDA, AND COMMENCE EAST 1/4 CORNER OF SECTION 8, 
TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, RUN THENCE SOUTH 89°30'41" 
WEST 1070.14 FEET, SOUTH 00°18'05" WEST 388.7 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING; RUN THENCE SOUTH 00°18'05" WEST 25 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTH 89°30'41" WEST 247.92 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00°21'52" WEST 115.13 

191



ORDINANCE NO. 2637 

PAGE 5 

 

FEET; THENCE NORTH 89°30'41" EAST 307.92 FEET; THENCE NORTH 
00°18'05" EAST 140.13 FEET; THENCE WEST TO POINT OF BEGINNING, LESS 
SOUTH 383.7 FEET OF THE NORTH 413.7 FEET OF THE EAST 100 FEET OF 
THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 
21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA. LESS ANY 
PORTION OF THE ABOVE DESCRIPTION LYING WITHIN THE BOUNDARY 
OF LAKE MARSHALL DRIVE AS DESCRIBED IN QUIT CLAIM DEED 
RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 3726, PAGE 2538, OF THE PUBLIC 
RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA.  
 
ALSO LESS AND EXCEPT FROM THE ABOVE DESCRIPTIONS, ANY 
PORTION LYING WITHIN THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN STIPULATED 
ORDER OF TAKING RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 5461, PAGE 
2470, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA.  
 
PARCEL 3 
 
THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 
AND THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 
1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ORANGE 
COUNTY, FLORIDA. 
 
OCPA PARCEL ID 28-21-08-0000-00-043 
 
FIRST AMERICAN FILE NUMBER: 2037-3736852 - THE LAND REFERRED TO 
HEREIN BELOW IS SITUATED IN THE COUNTY OF ORANGE, STATE OF 
FLORIDA, AND IS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
THE EAST 1/2 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4, SECTION 
8, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
LYING SOUTH OF MASEK ROAD NOW KNOWN AS JOHNS ROAD. 
 
AND  
 
THE WEST 1/2 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4, SECTION 
8, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
LYING SOUTH OF MASEK ROAD NOW KNOWN AS JOHNS ROAD. 
 
OCPA PARCEL ID 28-21-17-0000-00-014 
 
FIRST AMERICAN FILE NUMBER: 2037-3736840 - THE LAND REFERRED TO 
HEREIN BELOW IS SITUATED IN THE COUNTY OF ORANGE, STATE OF 
FLORIDA, AND IS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

 
 
THE SOUTH HALF (S ½) OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (NW ¼) OF THE 
NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE ¼) OF NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE ¼) OF 
SECTION SEVENTEEN (17) TOWNSHIP TWENTY-ONE SOUTH OF RANGE 
TWENTY-EIGHT EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA.  
 
AND  
 
 

192



ORDINANCE NO. 2637 

PAGE 6 

 

THE NORTH HALF (N ½) OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (NW ¼) OF 
NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE ¼) OF NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE ¼) OF 
SECTION SEVENTEEN (17) TOWNSHIP TWENTY-ONE SOUTH OF RANGE 
TWENTY EIGHT EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA  
 
AND  
 
THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (SE ¼) OF NORTHEAST 
QUARTER (NE ¼) OF SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, 
ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, LYING WEST OF STATE ROAD 429 AND LESS 
PORTION THEREOF DESCRIBED IN ORDER OF TAKING RECORDED IN 
OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 5487, PAGE 1547, PUBLIC RECORDS OF 
ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA. 
 
AND  
 
THAT PART OF THE EAST HALF (E ½) OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE 
¼) OF NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE ¼), SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, 
RANGE 28 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, LYING WEST OF STATE 
ROAD 429 RIGHT OF WAY, AND LESS PORTION DESCRIBED IN ORDER OF 
TAKING RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 5487, PAGE 1547, 
PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA. 
 
AND  
 
THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW ¼) OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE 
¼), OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE ¼), OF SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 21 
SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA; LESS PORTION 
DESCRIBED IN ORDER OF TAKING RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS 
BOOK 5487, PAGE 1547, PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, 
FLORIDA.  
 
AND  
 
ALL THAT PORTION OF THE EAST HALF ½ (E½) OF THE SOUTHEAST 
QUARTER (SE ¼) OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (SE¼) OF SECTION 8, 
TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, LYING SOUTH OF THE COUNTY 
CLAY ROAD AS NOW EXISTING, IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA; AND 
LYING WEST OF LANDS DESCRIBED IN ORDER OF TAKING RECORDED IN 
OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 5487, PAGE 1547 AND LESS RIGHT OF WAY 
DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 1981, PAGE 295, PUBLIC 
RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA.  

193



194



195



1 
 

LAKE MARSHALL PHASE 1 MASTER PLAN DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 
 
 
A.  Design Standards 
 
1. LOT CRITERIA: 
 

Description Single-Family Detached 
60’ Lot 

Single-Family Detached 
75’ Lot 

Lot Setbacks (1) 
Front Porch(2) 15’ 15’ 

Front 25’ 25’ 
Rear 20’ 20’ 
Side 5’ 7.5’ 

Side Corner 15’ N/A 
Garage 25’ (6) 25’ (6) 

Accessory Structure Rear 5’ 5’ 
Lot Dimensions 

Min. Average Lot Area 8,100 SF(5) 10,875 SF 
Min. Lot Width 60’ (3) 75’ (4) 
Min. Lot Depth 135’(5) 145’ 

Max. Lot Coverage 75% 75% 
Max. Building Height 35’/2 Stories 35’/2 Stories 

Min. Living Area 1,800 SF 1,800 SF 
(1) See sheet titled “Curve and Lot Data Table” for depiction of conceptual typical site plans. 
(2) Front porch setback as allowed per City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines 3.2.1. 
(3) Minimum lot width may be reduced to 40’ around curves so long as lot width at the building 

line is 60’ minimum. 
(4) Minimum lot width may be reduced to 40’ around curves so long as lot width at the building 

line is 75’ minimum. 
(5) Lots 56, 57, and 65 have lot areas of 7,326 SF, 8,192 SF, and 7,838 SF, respectively, and 

minimum lot depths of 114’, 129’, and 122’, respectively.  See sheet titled “Curve and Lot 
Data Table” of the Lake Marshall Subdivision Phase 1 PUD Master Plan/Preliminary 
Development Plan for lot sizing and setback details for these lots. 

(6) A deviation from the City of Apopka’s requirement of a 30’ garage setback is hereby 
requested. 

 
B.  Architectural, Buildings, and Accessory Structures 
1. Architectural design shall meet the intent of City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines or 

unless otherwise stated. 
2. All lots shall have detached single family homes. 
3. Each individual single-family home shall have a minimum of two (2) bedrooms. 
4. All lots shall have attached minimum two (2) car garages. 
5. A deviation from the City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines is hereby requested to allow 

for side-entry, flush, recessed, and protruding garage styles throughout the Lake Marshall 
Subdivision. 

196



2 
 

6. Mail delivery for all lots within both phases of the Lake Marshall Subdivision shall occur at mail 
kiosks with cluster mailbox units.  Approval from the Postmaster of the mail kiosks and their location 
shall be submitted prior to approval of the Final Development Plan. 

7. AC condenser units & similar equipment placed in the side yard area shall be screened with 
landscaping or opaque fencing.  

8. Storage sheds or similar storage facilities shall not be allowed. 
9. Swimming pools shall be allowed on all lots.  

a) Swimming Pools must be in-ground type. Above Ground Pools are prohibited. 
b) Swimming pools and decks are prohibited from projecting beyond the side wall facade. 

10. Screen enclosures over swimming pools and their respective deck area with non-metal or non-vinyl 
roofs shall be allowed.  

a) Screening shall be dark mesh. Opaque, semi-opaque or clear panels on the walls or roofs are 
prohibited. 

11. Screen enclosures with metal, vinyl, or screen mesh roofs over non-swimming pool decks are 
prohibited. 

12. Architectural Design Standards: 
a) Architectural styles shall be determined prior to Final Development Plan approval, and these 

shall meet the intent of to the City of Apopka’s Development Design Guidelines except as noted 
on these Development Standards.  Modification or replacement of the exterior elevations can be 
approved by the Community Development Director if such changes represent equivalent 
architectural value.  Substantial deviations from architectural rendering must be approved by 
City Council. 

b) A deviation from the City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines is hereby requested for all 
60’ lots with 50’ wide homes to allow for the garage to cover a maximum of 60% of the length 
of the front primary façade only in the case a three (3) car garage is selected by the homebuyer. 

c) Front facade materials such as cultured stone veneer, stucco, & fiber cement siding shall be 
utilized to be consistent with the applicable Architectural Style. 

d) Minimum roof pitch over the main house and garage shall be 5/12. Roof pitch over porches shall 
be a minimum of 4/12. 

e) 30-year asphalt shingle shall be installed on all roofs. 3-tab shingles are prohibited. Single 
shingle color shall be used for uniformity throughout the community. 

f) Aluminum fascia and soffit shall be standard for all houses. Single Fascia and soffit color shall 
be used for uniformity throughout the community. 

g) Trim around windows and doors shall be painted a different color from the body of the house.  
Doors may be painted either the same as the trim or separate accent color. 

h) Pavers shall be installed in front yard driveways and lead walks. 
13. Front Building Entrance Elevation Design Standards: 

a) Front porches & porticos at grade level. 
b) Identical model plan type shall not be constructed on neighboring lots who share a side yard 

property boundary line without a different elevation style type. 
c) Identical exterior paint schemes shall not be applied on neighboring lots who share a side yard 

property boundary line. 
d) Modification or replacement of the exterior elevations can be approved by the Community 

Development Director if such changes represent equivalent architectural value. Substantial 
deviations from architectural rendering must be approved by City Council. 

14. Rear Elevation Design Standards: 
a) Large expanses of solid wall shall be avoided thru use of windows, wall features, or wall / roof 

jogs. 
b) Window grid patterns and window banding & trim shall match front elevation windows. 

197



3 
 

c) Identical exterior paint schemes shall not be applied on neighboring lots who share a side yard 
property boundary line  

d) Modification or replacement of the exterior elevation can be approved by the Community 
Development Director if such changes represent equivalent architectural value. Substantial 
deviations from architectural rendering must be approved by City Council. 

15. Mail Kiosk Elevation Design Standards: 
a) Elevation shall be compatible with the architectural elevation styles of the homes & mail kiosks 

within the community. 
16. Individual Lot Front & Rear Yard Fencing Standards: 

a) Maximum height of a fence shall be 6'-0" above final grade. When abutting a common area wall, 
the fence height shall taper to the height of the wall across a horizontal distance no less than 8’-
0”. 

b) Rear yard fences shall not project more than five feet (5') beyond rear side wall building corner. 
 
 
C.   Utilities and Infrastructure 
 
1. Water service shall be provided by the City of Apopka.  The water system shall be designed to City 

standards. 
2. Reclaim water service shall be provided by the City of Apopka.  The reclaim water system shall be 

designed to City standards. 
3. Stormwater management system shall be designed to comply with the design standards of this 

Master Plan and the St. Johns River Water Management District. 
4. A final drainage report and soils report will be submitted with the Final Development Plan. 
5. Sanitary service shall be provided by the City of Apopka. The sanitary system shall be designed to 

City of Apopka standards.  
6.  Utility easements shall be dedicated to the City of Apopka. 
7. Drainage easements to be dedicated to the Home Owners’ Association unless otherwise required by 

the City of Apopka. 
8. All stormwater and utility pipes may be moved to save existing trees in the right-of-way.  Any 

change in the location of these pipes will be shown on the Final Development Plan. 
9. On-site streets are to be constructed per City of Apopka standards. 
10. Stabilized access roadways and fire hydrants must be in place before building construction may 

begin. 
11. Solid waste collection and public safety (police and fire) provided by the City of Apopka. 
12. The internal street right-of-way is to be private.  
13. Five-foot (5’) wide sidewalks are to be constructed adjacent to internal roads throughout the entire 

project in compliance with the City of Apopka Land Development Code.  Sidewalk alignment may 
be adjusted at final development plan to preserve existing trees. 

14. A five-foot (5’) wide sidewalk shall be constructed within the southern side of the Johns Road right-
of-way from the main entrance proposed within Parcel ID 28-21-08-0000-00-005 east until the 
western parcel boundary of Parcel ID 28-21-08-0000-00-043.  At this point, a crosswalk will be 
installed across the Johns Road paved roadway to the northern side of the right-of-way, from where 
the proposed sidewalk will run east and connect to the existing sidewalk.  

15. Right-of-way dedication along Johns Road shall be as depicted on sheet C4.0 or the Lake Marshall 
Subdivision Phase 1 Planned Unit Development Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan. 

16. Garages shall be accessed from the adjacent public right-of-way at the front of the lot for all lots. 
17. Power service within the development shall be underground. No overhead service will be allowed. 

198



4 
 

18. Vehicular, Pedestrian and Accent lighting shall substantially conform the Section 3.10 – Lighting 
of the City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines. 

19. Based upon the development’s daily trip generation of 1,779 vehicles, the provision of one 
northbound deceleration lane at the intersection of Johns Road and Bradshaw Road is warranted 
when the development reaches 50 percent (50%) of its Phase 1 development program, or prior to 
the completion of the 87th residential unit in the entire Lake Marshall Subdivision, whichever 
comes first. 

20. A twenty-four-foot (24’), gated emergency access road shall be constructed between lots 135 and 
136, connecting the Lake Marshall Subdivision Street C right-of-way to the Breckenridge 
Subdivision Cavan Drive right-of-way to provide an emergency-only route for both subdivisions.  
This access road shall be constructed within a 40-foot emergency access easement, pedestrian 
ingress/egress, and utility easement.   

21. The potable and reclaimed water mains connecting Breckenridge to the City of Apopka utilities 
shall be rerouted through Lake Marshall Subdivision H.O.A.-owned tracts to remove them from 
the rear of lots 132 through 135.  Within the Breckenridge Subdivision, these mains will run north 
through the 40-foot emergency access easement, pedestrian ingress/egress, and utility easement 
mentioned above. 

 
 
D.  Recreation and Open Space 
 
1. Required project open space shall be a minimum of 30% of the developed site area in accordance 

with City of Apopka LDC Section 2.02.18(D)(19). 
2. Required project recreation shall be provided at a rate of 3.6 acres per 1,000 population with 2.6 

population per dwelling unit. 
3. Tract “E” shall be an approximate 1.56-acre Park.  A specific park site plan and amenities/equipment 

shall be provided with the Final Development Plan.  Park amenities shall include a cabana with 
restrooms, a swimming pool, a playground, and a mixed-use active field at a minimum.  The 
Community Building shall be a minimum of 900 SF containing, at a minimum, restroom facilities 
for the building and pool. The swimming pool and deck area shall be a minimum of 3,000 SF and 
water area a minimum of 2,000 SF.  Documentation/calculations that the proposed pool size 
complies with state health standards will be provided at the Final Development Plan. 

4.   Tract “F” shall be an approximate 1.58-acre Community Lake Park.  A specific park site plan and 
amenities/equipment shall be provided with the Final Development Plan.  Community lake park 
amenities shall include at a minimum one community ramp, one community dock, and picnic tables. 

5. Tract G and H will incorporate pedestrian circulation, benches, and open play areas.  Specific park 
site plans and amenities/equipment shall be provided with the Final Development Plan.  

6. All recreation and open space areas within the limits of Phase 1 will be accessible to all homeowners 
of Phase 2 of the Lake Marshall Subdivision. 

 
E.  Buffers and Landscaping 
 
1. A twenty-foot (20’) buffer for entry wall and landscaping will be provided along each side of the 

proposed main entrance on Johns Road.  These tracts shall be dedicated to and maintained by the 
H.O.A.  The design of these buffer tracts shall generally follow the landscape design appearing on 
sheets LS-04 and LS-08 of the Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan.   A six foot (6’) high 
wall or fence is provided in these tracts to provide buffering from the adjacent roadway.  

2.  A five-foot (5’) wide buffer tract for landscaping will be provided along the rear of lots 1-24 to 
provide buffering from industrial-zoned properties.  This tract shall be dedicated to and maintained 

199



5 
 

by the H.O.A.  The design of this buffer shall generally follow the landscape design appearing on 
sheets LS-01, LS-02, LS-04, LS-05, LS-06, and LS-08 of the Master Plan/Preliminary Development 
Plan.  

3. A ten-foot (10’) wide buffer tract for landscaping will be provided along each side of the proposed 
emergency access tract for Lake Marshall Subdivision and Breckenridge Subdivision.  These tracts 
shall be dedicated to and maintained by the H.O.A.  The design of these buffer tracts shall generally 
follow the landscape design appearing on sheet LS-06 of the Master Plan/Preliminary Development 
Plan. 

4.  Entrance feature and community sign details will be provided with the Final Development Plan.   
5. Final landscape plans for the buffer areas along the proposed main entrance at Johns Road will be 

provided with the Final Development Plan. 
6. Tree Planting Conditions.  Minimum of three new trees shall be planted per 60’ and 75’ residential 

lot.  The new trees shall be a minimum of three inches (3”) DBH at the time of planting and shall 
count toward the overall number of required tree replacement inches, if any. 

7.  Tree Protection Plan - The Final Development Plan shall include tree protection techniques to 
prevent harm to any trees designate to be preserved or encroachment into protected natural areas, 
including but not limited to tree barricades, silt fencing or other similar techniques accepted by the 
City Engineer.    

 
 
F.  Maintenance and Plat  
 
1.   The Lake Marshall Home Owners’ Association will maintain common areas, fences/walls, and 

landscaping within the front and corner yards of all lots.  The HOA shall also be responsible for 
maintenance of streets, street lighting, and stormwater collection systems within the right-of-way 
and drainage easements within the Lake Marshall Subdivision. 

2. The Final Development Plan shall include the plat document, and the plat shall be in final form. 
 
 
G.  Wetlands and Environmental 
 
1. There are three wetland areas within the site.  These are located in the northwest, north, and northeast 

portions of the property.   
2. According to the FEMA Flood Insurance Rate Map for Orange County, FL, Panel No. 12095-C-

0120-F, dated September 25, 2009, the majority of the proposed development is located within Zone 
X (areas determined to outside the 500-year floodplain) and limited northern portions of Parcel ID 
28-21-08-0000-00-005 fall within FEMA flood zone AE.  The areas within these portions that will 
be developed will be removed from the floodplain.  

3. An erosion control plan will be submitted with the Final Development Plan.  
4. Tree removal, tree replacement, and landscaping shall comply with Water Wise Ordinance 2069 

and shall be consistent with Article V of the City of Apopka Land Development Code.   
5.  Individual lot arbor/clearing permit is required prior to clearing or grading of any lot or issuance of 

building permit. Placement of the house shall preserve existing trees to the greatest extent practical.  
Plot plan for each lot shall illustrate tree locations as presented within the PUD Master 
Plan\Preliminary Development Plan.  

 
 
H.  Development Condition Continuity 
  

200



6 
 

The PUD Development Standards shall be printed within the PUD Master Plan and the Final 
Development Plan. 
 
 

I.  Signage 
 

Signage shall comply with Article 8 of the City of Apopka Land Development Code and with the 
City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines. 

 
 
J.  Lighting    
 

Lighting shall comply with the City of Apopka’s City Ordinance No. 2069 and Section 3.10 of the 
City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines.  Street and parking area or pedestrian path light 
poles shall be decorative type.  Details will be provided with the Final Development Plan. 

 
 
L.  Miscellaneous    
 
1. Any existing septic tanks or wells shall be properly abandoned prior to earthwork or construction. 

Permits shall be applied for and issued by the appropriate agencies. 
2. All acreages are subject to change with final engineering and final plat review and approval. 

201



202



203



204



205



206



207



1 
 

LAKE MARSHALL PHASE 2 MASTER PLAN DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 
 
 
A.  Design Standards 
 
1. LOT CRITERIA: 
 

Description Single-Family Detached 
60’ Lot 

Single-Family Detached 
55’ Lot 

Lot Setbacks (1) 
Front Porch(2) 15’ 15’ 

Front 25’ 25’ 
Rear 20’ 20’ 
Side 5’ 7.5’ 

Side Corner 15’ N/A 
Garage 25’ (5) 25’ (5) 

Accessory Structure Rear 5’ 5’ 
Lot Dimensions 

Min. Average Lot Area 8,100 SF 7,425 SF 
Min. Lot Width 60’ (3) 55’ (4) 
Min. Lot Depth 135’ 135’ 

Max. Lot Coverage 75% 75% 
Max. Building Height 35’/2 Stories 35’/2 Stories 

Min. Living Area 1,600 SF 1,600 SF 
(1) See Sheet C3.6 for depiction of conceptual typical site plans. 
(2) Front porch setback as allowed per City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines 3.2.1. 
(3) Minimum lot width may be reduced to 40’ around curves so long as lot width at the building 

line is 60’ minimum. 
(4) Minimum lot width may be reduced to 35’ around curves so long as lot width at the building 

line is 55’ minimum. 
(5) A deviation from the City of Apopka’s requirement of a 30’ garage setback is hereby 

requested. 
 
B.  Architectural, Buildings, and Accessory Structures 
1. Architectural design shall meet the intent of City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines or 

unless otherwise stated. 
2. All lots shall have detached single family homes.  
3. Each individual single-family home shall have a minimum of two (2) bedrooms. 
4. All lots shall have attached minimum two (2) car garages. 
5. A deviation from the City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines is hereby requested to allow for 

side-entry, flush, recessed, and protruding garage styles throughout the Lake Marshall Subdivision. 
6. Mail delivery for all lots within both phases of the Lake Marshall Subdivision shall occur at mail 

kiosk with cluster mailbox units.  Approval from the Postmaster of the mail kiosks and their location 
shall be submitted prior to approval of the Final Development Plan. 

7. AC condenser units & similar equipment placed in the side yard area shall be screened with 
landscaping or opaque fencing.  

8. Storage sheds or similar storage facilities shall not be allowed. 
9. Swimming pools shall be allowed on all lots.  

208



2 
 

a) Swimming Pools must be in-ground type. Above Ground Pools are prohibited. 
b) Swimming pools and decks are prohibited from projecting beyond the side wall facade. 

10. Screen enclosures over swimming pools and their respective deck area with non-metal or non-vinyl 
roofs shall be allowed.  

a) Screening shall be dark mesh. Opaque, semi-opaque or clear panels on the walls or roofs are 
prohibited. 

11. Screen enclosures with metal, vinyl, or screen mesh roofs over non-swimming pool decks are 
prohibited. 

12. Architectural Design Standards: 
a) Architectural styles shall be determined prior to Final Development Plan approval, and these 

shall meet the intent of to the City of Apopka’s Development Design Guidelines except as noted 
on these Development Standards.  Modification or replacement of the exterior elevations can be 
approved by the Community Development Director if such changes represent equivalent 
architectural value.  Substantial deviations from architectural rendering must be approved by 
City Council. 

b) A deviation from the City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines is hereby requested for all 
60’ lots with 50’ wide homes to allow for the garage to cover a maximum of 60% of the length 
of the front primary façade only in the case a three (3) car garage is selected by the homebuyer. 

c) Front facade materials such as cultured stone veneer, stucco, & fiber cement siding shall be 
utilized to be consistent with the applicable Architectural Style. 

d) Minimum roof pitch over the main house and garage shall be 5/12. Roof pitch over porches shall 
be a minimum of 4/12. 

e) 30-year asphalt shingle shall be installed on all roofs. 3-tab shingles are prohibited. Single 
shingle color shall be used for uniformity throughout the community. 

f) Aluminum fascia and soffit shall be standard for all houses. Single Fascia and soffit color shall 
be used for uniformity throughout the community. 

g) Trim around windows and doors shall be painted a different color from the body of the house.  
Doors may be painted either the same as the trim or separate accent color. 

h) Pavers shall be installed in front yard driveways and lead walks. 
13. Front Building Entrance Elevation Design Standards: 

a) Front porches & porticos at grade level. 
b) Identical model plan type shall not be constructed on neighboring lots who share a side yard 

property boundary line without a different elevation style type. 
c) Identical exterior paint schemes shall not be applied on neighboring lots who share a side yard 

property boundary line. 
d) Modification or replacement of the exterior elevations can be approved by the Community 

Development Director if such changes represent equivalent architectural value. Substantial 
deviations from architectural rendering must be approved by City Council. 

14. Rear Elevation Design Standards: 
a) Large expanses of solid wall shall be avoided thru use of windows, wall features, or wall / roof 

jogs. 
b) Window grid patterns and window banding & trim shall match front elevation windows. 
c) Identical exterior paint schemes shall not be applied on neighboring lots who share a side yard 

property boundary line  
d) Modification or replacement of the exterior elevation can be approved by the Community 

Development Director if such changes represent equivalent architectural value. Substantial 
deviations from architectural rendering must be approved by City Council. 

15. Mail Kiosk Elevation Design Standards: 

209



3 
 

a) Elevation shall be compatible with the architectural elevation styles of the homes & mail kiosk 
within the community. 

16. Individual Lot Front & Rear Yard Fencing Standards: 
a) Maximum height of a fence shall be 6'-0" above final grade. When abutting a common area wall, 

the fence height shall taper to the height of the wall across a horizontal distance no less than 8’-
0”. 

b) Rear yard fences shall not project more than five feet (5') beyond rear side wall building corner. 
 
C.   Utilities and Infrastructure 
 
1. Water service shall be provided by the City of Apopka.  The water system shall be designed to City 

standards. 
2. Reclaim water service shall be provided by the City of Apopka.  The reclaim water system shall be 

designed to City standards. 
3. Stormwater management system shall be designed to comply with the design standards of this 

Master Plan and the St. Johns River Water Management District. 
4. A final drainage report and soils report will be submitted with the Final Development Plan. 
5. Sanitary service shall be provided by the City of Apopka. The sanitary system shall be designed to 

City of Apopka standards.  
6.  Utility easements shall be dedicated to the City of Apopka. 
7. Drainage easements to be dedicated to the Home Owners’ Association unless otherwise required by 

the City of Apopka. 
8. All stormwater and utility pipes may be moved to save existing trees in the right-of-way.  Any 

change in the location of these pipes will be shown on the Final Development Plan. 
9. On-site streets are to be constructed per City of Apopka standards. 
10. Stabilized access roadways and fire hydrants must be in place before building construction may 

begin. 
11. Solid waste collection and public safety (police and fire) provided by the City of Apopka. 
12. The internal street right-of-way is to be private.  
13. Five-foot (5’) wide sidewalks are to be constructed adjacent to internal roads throughout the entire 

project in compliance with the City of Apopka Land Development Code.  Sidewalk alignment may 
be adjusted at final development plan to preserve existing trees. 

14. Garages shall be accessed from the adjacent public right-of-way at the front of the lot for all lots. 
15. Power service within the development shall be underground. No overhead service will be allowed. 
16. Vehicular, Pedestrian and Accent lighting shall substantially conform the Section 3.10 – Lighting 

of the City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines. 
17. Based upon the Lake Marshall Subdivision Phase 1 and Phase 2 total daily trip generation of 2,896 

vehicles, the provision of one southbound deceleration lane on Bradshaw Road and one eastbound 
left turn lane on John’s Road at the intersection of John’s Road and Bradshaw Road to the east of 
the development are warranted.  These are in addition to the northbound deceleration lane on 
Bradshaw Road warranted prior to the completion of the 87th residential unit within the entire 
Lake Marshall Subdivision. 

 
D.  Recreation and Open Space 
 
1. Required project open space shall be a minimum of 30% of the developed site area in accordance 

with City of Apopka LDC Section 2.02.18(D)(19). 
2. Required project recreation shall be provided at a rate of 3.6 acres per 1,000 population with 2.6 

population per dwelling unit. 

210



4 
 

3. All parks and open space within the limits of Phase 1 of the Lake Marshall Subdivision shall be 
accessible to and account towards required recreation and open space areas for Phase 2 per the Lake 
Marshall Subdivision Phase 1 Planned Unit Development Master Plan/Preliminary Development 
Plan. 

4. Tracts E and F will incorporate pedestrian circulation, benches, and open play areas.  Specific park 
site plans and amenities/equipment shall be provided with the Final Development Plan.  

 
E.  Buffers and Landscaping 
 
1. A twenty-foot (20’) densely vegetated/landscaped tract will be provided along the rear of Lots 242-

257 and Tracts ‘E’ and ‘F’ to provide buffering from the adjacent SR 451 right-of-way.  This tract 
shall be dedicated to and maintained by the H.O.A.  The design of this buffer tract shall generally 
follow the landscape design appearing on sheets LS-02 and LS-04 of the Master Plan/Preliminary 
Development Plan.  

2.  A minimum ten-foot (10’) wide buffer tract for landscaping will be provided along the rear of lots 
175-199 to provide buffering from the Johns Road right-of-way.  This tract shall be dedicated to and 
maintained by the H.O.A.  The design of this buffer shall generally follow the landscape design 
appearing on sheets LS-01, LS-02, LS-04, and LS-05 of the Master Plan/Preliminary Development 
Plan.  

3.  Main access for Phase 2 will be through the Main Entrance located within the Phase 1 limits of the 
Lake Marshall Subdivision.   

4.  Entrance provided within the Phase 2 limits is to be a secondary, resident-only access, which will 
also be accessible to Phase 1 of the Lake Marshall Subdivision.  

5.  Entrance feature and community sign details will be provided with the Final Development Plan.   
6. Final landscape plans for the buffer areas along the proposed main entrance at John’s Road will be 

provided with the Final Development Plan. 
7. Tree Planting Conditions.  Minimum of three (3) new trees shall be planted per 55’ and 60’ 

residential lot.  The new trees shall be a minimum of three inches (3”) DBH at the time of planting 
and shall count toward the overall number of required tree replacement inches, if any. 

8.  Tree Protection Plan - The Final Development Plan shall include tree protection techniques to 
prevent harm to any trees designate to be preserved or encroachment into protected natural areas, 
including but not limited to tree barricades, silt fencing or other similar techniques accepted by the 
City Engineer.    

 
F.  Maintenance and Plat  
 
1.   The Lake Marshall Home Owners’ Association will maintain common areas, fences/walls, and 

landscaping within the front and corner yards of all lots.  The HOA shall also be responsible for 
maintenance of streets, street lighting, and stormwater collection systems within the right-of-way 
and drainage easements within the Lake Marshall Subdivision. 

2. The Final Development Plan shall include the plat document, and the plat shall be in final form. 
 
 
G.  Wetlands and Environmental 
 
1. There is one wetland area onsite.  It is entirely located within the Tract ‘I’ Conservation Area. 
2. There are no areas within a FEMA floodplain onsite.  
3. An erosion control plan will be submitted with the Final Development Plan.  

211



5 
 

4. Tree removal, tree replacement, and landscaping shall comply with Water Wise Ordinance 2069 
and shall be consistent with Article V of the City of Apopka Land Development Code.   

5.  Individual lot arbor/clearing permit is required prior to clearing or grading of any lot or issuance of 
building permit. Placement of the house shall preserve existing trees to the greatest extent practical.  
Plot plan for each lot shall illustrate tree locations as presented within the PUD Master 
Plan\Preliminary Development Plan.  

 
 
H.  Development Condition Continuity 
  

The PUD Development Standards shall be printed within the PUD Master Plan and the Final 
Development Plan. 
 
 

I.  Signage 
 

Signage shall comply with Article 8 of the City of Apopka Land Development Code and with the 
City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines. 

 
 
J.  Lighting    
 

Lighting shall comply with the City of Apopka’s City Ordinance No. 2069 and Section 3.10 of the 
City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines.  Street and parking area or pedestrian path light 
poles shall be decorative type.  Details will be provided with the Final Development Plan. 

 
 
L.  Miscellaneous    
 
1. Any existing septic tanks or wells shall be properly abandoned prior to earthwork or construction. 

Permits shall be applied for and issued by the appropriate agencies. 
2. All acreages are subject to change with final engineering and final plat review and approval. 
 

212



213



214


	Top
	1. 02-21-18 - CC - Presentations - Carnegie Hero Fund Commission Award Presentation
	1. 02-21-18 - CC - Consent Agenda - PD Trust Fund
	Kid&amp; 39;s House Donation GS 2018.docx
	Kid&amp;#39;s House Donation MEMO - 2018.docx

	2. 02-21-18 - CC - Consent Agenda - Bank Resolution
	Glenn - Staff Report Signature Card Name Change.docx
	Glenn - Corporate Resolution - City of Apopka.pdf

	3. 02-21-18 - CC - Consent Agenda - Appoint Fifth Trustee to General Employees Pension Board
	Agenda - 2018-02-21 CC Confirm Appointment of Byron Tobias to Gen EEs Pension Board  5th Trustee.pdf
	Byron Tobias Board Appointment Form Redacted_Redacted.pdf
	ByronTobiasProfileRESUME_Redacted.pdf

	4. 02-21-18 - CC - Consent Agenda - Appoint Fifth Trustee to the Firefighters&apos; Pension Board
	Agenda - 2018-02-21 CC Confirm Appointment of Ray Thompson to FD Pension Board  5th Trustee.pdf

	5. 02-21-18 - CC - Consent Agenda - Appoint Fifth Trustee to Police Officers&apos; Pension Board
	Agenda - 2018-02-21 CC Confirm Appointment of Jim Greene to PD Pension Board  5th Trustee.pdf

	1. 02-21-18 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2600 - 2nd Rd - Comp Plan Large Scale FLUM - Raulerson/Pumphrey
	1 Raulerson Pumphrey -  FLU - CC 2 -21-18 2nd ReadingA.docx
	2 Ord 2600- Raulerson Pumphry FLUM.doc

	2. 02-21-18 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2634 - 1st Rd - Change of Zoning - Raulerson/Pumphrey
	1 Raulerson Pumphrey ZON - CC 02 21 18 Staff Report.pdf
	2 Ordinance 2634.pdf
	3 Exhibit A  San Sebastian Reserve FULL PUD Master Plan.pdf
	4 Exhibit B PUD Development Design Standards.pdf
	5 Amenity Open Space Plan.pdf
	8 Building Elevations - Architectural Renderings.pdf
	6  Landscape Plan.pdf
	7 Entrance and Wall Features.pdf

	3. 02-21-18 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2604 - 2nd Rd - Comp Plan Large Scale FLU - TGINF LLC
	1 TGNIF FLU CC 2nd 2-21-2018.pdf
	2 Ord 2604- TGNIF.pdf

	4. 02-21-18 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2628 - 1st Rd - Change of Zoning - TGINF LLC
	1 TGINF ZON CC 02-21-18 1st Rd.pdf
	2 ORD 2628 - TGINF ZON.pdf

	5. 02-21-18 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2624 - 2nd Rd - Change of Zoning - Thum/Dionne
	1 Thum Dionne RZ CC 2nd 02-21-2018.docx
	2 ORDINANCE NO 2624.docx

	6. 02-21-18 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2633 - 2nd Rd - Vacate - Ransom Road
	1 Ransom Street ROW vacate Staff Report CC 02.21.18.pdf
	2 Ord 2633 - City of Apopka - Ransom Street - Vacate Ord.pdf

	7. 02-21-18 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2629 - 1st Rd - Comp Plan Small Scale FLUM - VBRO Enterprises, Inc.
	1 VBRO_FLU_CC 2-21-2018 1st Rd.pdf
	2 ORDINANCE NO 2629.pdf

	8. 02-21-18 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2630 - 1st Rd - Change of Zoning - VBRO Enterprises, Inc.
	1 VBRO PUD RZ CC 02-21-18 1st Rd.pdf
	2 ORD 2630 - VBRO - PUD RZ.pdf

	9. 02-21-18 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2631 - 1st Rd - Comp Plan Small Scale FLU - Iglesia Getseani, Inc.
	1 Iglesia FLU CC 2-21-2018 1st Rd.pdf
	2 ORDINANCE NO 2631.pdf

	10. 02-21-18 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2632 - 1st Rd - Change of Zoning - Iglesia Getsemani, Inc.
	1 Iglesia RZ CC 2-21-2018 1st Rd.docx
	2 ORDINANCE NO 2632.pdf

	11. 02-21-18 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2637 - 1st Rd - Change of Zoning - Lake Marshall PUD Master Plan/PDP
	1 Lake Marshall PUD - ZON - CC 02 21 18.docx
	2 Ord  2637 - Lake Marshall PUD.pdf
	3 Exhibit A Phase 1 Master Plan.pdf
	4 Exhibit B Lake Marshall Phase 1 Master Plan Development Standards.pdf
	5 Exhibit C Phase 1 Landscape_recreation plan.pdf
	6 Exhibt D Phase 2 Master Plan.pdf
	7 Exhibit E Lake Marshall Phase 2 Master Plan Development Standards.pdf
	8 Exhibit F Phase 2 Landscape plan.pdf

	Bottom

